& Herefordshire
O Council

Agenda

Environment and
Sustainability Scrutiny
Committee

Date: Monday 2 March 2026

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Conference Room 2 - Herefordshire Council, Plough
Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 OLE

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Simon Cann, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01432 260667
Email: simon.cann@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format, please call Simon Cann, Democratic Services Officer on
01432 260667 or e-mail simon.cann@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of
the meeting.



Agenda for the meeting of the Environment and
Sustainability Scrutiny Committee

Membership

Chairperson Councillor Louis Stark
Vice-chairperson Councillor Justine Peberdy

Councillor Elizabeth Foxton
Councillor Robert Highfield
Councillor Nick Mason
Councillor Rob Owens
Councillor Richard Thomas



Herefordshire Council 2 MARCH 2026

Agenda

Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for absence.

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES
To receive details of members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a
member of the committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations of interest from members of the committee in respect
of items on the agenda.

4. MINUTES 9-14

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2025.

HOW TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS

The deadline for the submission of questions for this meeting is 5pm on Tuesday 24
February 2026.

Questions must be submitted to councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk.
Questions sent to any other address may not be accepted.

Accepted questions and the responses will be published as a supplement to the
agenda papers prior to the meeting. Further information and guidance is available at
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved

5. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

To receive any written questions from members of the public.

6. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

To receive any written questions from members of the council.

7. WASTE RECOVERY CONTRACTING

To provide an update to the scrutiny committee on the establishment of new
waste recovery contract and an update on roll-out of garden waste collection.

[Papers to follow]

8. LOCAL CYCLING WALKING AND WHEELING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN | 15 - 96

To seek the views of the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee
on the draft Local Cycling Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan, prior to
its consideration by Cabinet.

9. WORK PROGRAMME 97 - 166

To consider the draft work programme for Herefordshire Council’s scrutiny
committees for the municipal years 2025/26 and 2026/7.



mailto:councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/getinvolved

Herefordshire Council 2 MARCH 2026

10. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
Wednesday 17 June 2026, 10am



The public’s rights to information and attendance at meetings

In view of the continued prevalence of Covid, we have introduced changes to our usual
procedures for accessing public meetings. These will help to keep our councillors, staff and
members of the public safe.

Please take time to read the latest guidance on the council website by following the link at
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings and support us in promoting a safe environment for
everyone. If you have any queries please contact the governance support team on 01432
261699 or at governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk

We will review and update this guidance in line with Government advice and restrictions.

Thank you for your help in keeping Herefordshire Council meetings safe.

You have aright to:

e Attend all council, cabinet, committee and sub-committee meetings unless the business to
be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.
Agenda and reports (relating to items to be considered in public) are available at
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings

¢ Inspect minutes of the council and all committees and sub-committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the cabinet or individual cabinet members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting (a list of the background papers to a report is given
at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer has
relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all councillors with
details of the membership of cabinet and of all committees and sub-committees.
Information about councillors is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. The council’s
constitution is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
council, cabinet, committees and sub-committees and to inspect documents.


http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/councillors
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution

Recording of meetings

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting.

Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware.

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the
reporting to ensure that they comply.

The council may make a recording of this public meeting or stream it live to the council’s
website. Such recordings are made available for members of the public via the council’s
YouTube channel at www.youtube.com/user/HerefordshireCouncil/videos

Public transport links

The Herefordshire Council office at Plough Lane is located off Whitecross Road in Hereford,
approximately 1 kilometre from the City Bus Station.

The location of the office and details of city bus services can be viewed at:
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/1597/hereford-city-bus-map-local-services-



http://www.youtube.com/user/HerefordshireCouncil/videos
http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/1597/hereford-city-bus-map-local-services-

. Herefordshire
O Council

The seven principles of public life

(Nolan Principles)

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work.
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve
any interests and relationships.

Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit,
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful reasons for so doing.

Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and

treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the
principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.






AGENDA ITEM 4

2~ Herefordshire
O Council

Minutes of the meeting of Environment and Sustainability
Scrutiny Committee held at Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire
Council, Plough Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 OLE on Tuesday 16
December 2025 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor Louis Stark (chairperson)
Councillor Justine Peberdy (vice-chairperson)

Councillors: Elizabeth Foxton, Nick Mason, Rob Owens, John Stone and
Richard Thomas

In attendance: Councillor Elissa Swinglehurst (Cabinet Member Environment).

Officers: Simon Cann (Democratic Services Officer/Committee Clerk), John Coleman
(Democratic Services Manager), Victoria Eaton (Senior Planning Officer),
Daniel Lenain (Principle Sustainability and Climate Change Officer), Siobhan
Riddle (Strategic and Climate Change Officer), Richard Vaughan (Acting
Head of Environment).
141. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies had been received from ClIr Robert Highfeld.
142. NAMED SUBSTITUTES
ClIr John Stone was the named substitute for Clir Robert Highfield.

The Chair noted that -- to maintain political proportionality within the committee -- Clir
Elizabeth Foxton (Independents for Herefordshire), would be joining the committee as a
permanent member and Cllr Helen Heathfield (Green Party) would be stepping down
from the committee. The Chair welcomed ClIr Foxton and thanked ClIr Heathfield for her
contributions to the committee’s work.

143. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
144, MINUTES
The minutes of the previous meeting were received.

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 May 2025 be confirmed as a
correct record and be signed by the Chairperson.

145. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
One questions had been received from a member of the public, which had been

published, along with a response, as a supplement to the meeting agenda on the
Herefordshire Council website.




146.

147.

A record of a supplementary question asked and a verbal response provided during the
meeting, are attached at Appendix 1 to these minutes.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

There had been no questions received from members of the council.

CARBON NEUTRAL HOUSING

The Chair took the report on Carbon Neutral Housing as read and opened the item up
for debate. The key points of discussion included:

1.

10.

11.

Members were advised that the Future Homes Standard was expected to
become legally enforceable from December 2027, requiring new homes to be net
zero ready, predominantly electric and removed from the gas grid.

Officers confirmed that while carbon neutral homes had higher upfront installation
costs, particularly for heat pumps and insulation, running costs could broadly
balance out where homes are well insulated.

It was reported that industry awareness of the Future Homes Standard was
increasing, although readiness to deliver at scale remained mixed, with larger
developers better placed than smaller builders.

Officers confirmed significant and ongoing skills shortages across key
construction trades, with limited training capacity and a risk that locally trained
workers may leave the area.

Members were advised that housing delivery was developer-led, with most
construction labour subcontracted, limiting incentives for developers to invest
directly in workforce training.

Officers advised that the Future Homes Standard would add cost and complexity
to housing delivery and could place additional pressure on housing numbers
alongside existing viability challenges.

It was confirmed that all new housing, including affordable and social housing,
would be required to meet the same standards, as well as the required
percentages for such housing laid down in the Local Plan.

Officers advised that while low-density development was less efficient, it
remained necessary to meet housing needs, and that higher-density
development may improve efficiency where appropriate.

Members were advised that accommodation for construction workers was
already constrained and was being considered as part of Local Plan
development.

Officers confirmed that heat networks were uncommon in domestic settings due
to cost and management challenges and that new homes were expected to be
fully electrified.

It was confirmed that electricity grid capacity was a significant challenge and that

the council was working with the Distribution Network Operator to inform future
investment planning.

10



12. Officers advised that retrofitting of existing homes was unlikely to be mandated,
with current support focused on voluntary grant schemes such as Warm Homes.

13. Members were advised that while planning policy could be prepared in advance,
development management and building control services would face increased
pressures once the standard became statutory.

14. Officers confirmed that no specific mortgage or finance products recognising
lower running costs were identified, although this was noted as an area for
potential future exploration.

At the conclusion of the debate the committee discussed and agreed the following
recommendations to the Executive.

That:

1. The Executive should commission a piece of work in collaboration with
housebuilders (including housing associations) to quantify the impact of
implementation of the Future Homes Standard on the achievability of the
new housing target for the County of 27,260. This should include the future
availability of new affordable and social housing.

2. The Executive should continue discussions with relevant industry partners
to evaluate the skills required to deliver the Future Homes Standard in the
County and how this will feed into a joined-up approach by the Council
including colleges, the youth employment hub and those involved in career
advice.

3. The Executive should implement a review of the Council’s policy and
operational readiness and preparedness of planning and building control to
ensure they are fit for purpose for when the Future Homes Standard finally
comes into force, including training requirements.

4. The Executive undertake a review/audit of the government support being
putin place to assist the market to deliver the quantum of carbon neutral
homes

5. In the development of the Local Plan ‘building control standards’ are
reviewed to ensure they are aligned with the Future Homes Standard and
provide viable and affordable compliance with the development of ‘carbon
neutral’ homes

6. The Local Plan —through building control policies ensures that every new
home built is fitted with solar paneling and/or renewable heat sources to
reduce the pressure on the national grid

7. The Executive encourages government and other stakeholders to
investigate and consider options that allow a more balanced approach to
the financial products available for home buyers to allow for downstream
energy cost savings to provide more attractive purchase options for carbon
neutral homes for those who have income but lower equity.

148. BUS AND PASSENGER SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP

The committee considered a progress update from the Chair of the Bus Services Task
and Finish Group:

1. The committee formally approved the Terms of Reference for the Task and

Finish Group, noting that these had been available to Members for some time
and no amendments had been proposed.

11



10.

11.

12.

Members were advised that the Task and Finish Group had held two review
meetings to date, supported by lines of enquiry style sessions and officer
engagement. While officer support had been positive, access to consistent data
had been limited, highlighting a key issue in itself. Further detailed information,
particularly in relation to subsidised routes and subsidy criteria, was expected at
the next review meeting.

The committee noted that the council’s current role in bus provision was limited to
convening the Enhanced Partnership, managing infrastructure, and identifying
and funding socially necessary routes. Accountability within the Enhanced
Partnership was described as weak, particularly in relation to commercial
operators. However, new bus services legislation would potentially expand local
authority powers, including the potential for franchising.

Members were advised that delivery of bus service improvements was
constrained by operator capacity, with all operators facing driver shortages and
limited technical capability. Approximately two-thirds of local routes were
subsidised, and there continued to be significant overspend on home-to-school
transport, driven by increased demand for specialist provision and reliance on
taxis.

The committee welcomed the confirmation of three-year Bus Service
Improvement Plan revenue funding, providing greater financial stability and
scope for longer-term planning, while noting a reduction in capital funding.

A lack of reliable and consistent data was identified as a critical weakness,
limiting effective service planning, performance management, and the ability to
demonstrate value for money in funding bids. New data tools were being
introduced to help identify travel demand and network gaps, but members agreed
that improving data collection should be a priority.

The committee noted that integrated ticketing and improved passenger
information remained key public priorities. Officers were progressing a “Making
Buses Easier” initiative, focusing on reliability, accessibility, digital integration,
and real-time information, alongside investment in upgraded bus shelters across
the county.

Members discussed opportunities arising from devolution, the proposed Hereford
Transport Hub, improved bus—rail integration, and cross-border working through
the Marches Forward Partnership.

The committee was advised of a forthcoming Bus Summit involving operators,
users, community transport providers, and officers, at which emerging issues and
potential solutions would be discussed.

Members raised concerns about the long-term viability of the current bus delivery
model, recent operator failures, and the impact on rural communities and school
transport.

The committee encouraged the task and finish group to consider alternative
delivery models, including potential pilot schemes, alongside community and
demand-responsive transport options. Members also noted the importance of
developing a more strategic, long-term vision for bus provision.

The committee indicated flexibility regarding the reporting timetable and
confirmed its support for the task and finish group to widen the scope of its

12



review where necessary to address the fundamental sustainability and
deliverability of bus services.

149. WORK PROGRAMME

1. Members raised concerns about the robustness of the Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) supporting the Local Transport Plan (LTP), following debate
at Full Council. Officers had advised that the LTP decision could not be revisited,
but members agreed scrutiny should focus on delivery and implementation, with
clear milestones and a defined timetable.

2. The committee emphasised the need for a more ambitious approach to rail
strategy, including improved connectivity and potential line reinstatements.
Despite the strategy not yet being in draft form, members felt early scrutiny could
help shape development.

3. Members supported allowing more time for the bus service task and finish study
group to fully examine different transport delivery models, including rural
services, school transport, and cross-boundary working.

4. Flooding was recognised as a significant, ongoing issue. Members agreed
scrutiny was needed across prevention, response, and recovery, but timing
should avoid short-term reactive focus.

5. Capacity constraints were noted, (particularly with elections approaching).
Members agreed on shared responsibility for work programme development and
the use of informal meetings to support planning.

Agreed Action Points:

e Add SEA delivery scrutiny (LTP) to the June meeting.
Move the transport task and finish study group final report to September.
Include rail strategy scrutiny as a substantive item in September.
Discuss establish a flooding task and finish study group, commencing June.
Officers to provide LTP delivery milestones to support effective scrutiny.
Arrange an informal work programme planning meeting in the New Year to plan
items beyond September.
e Members to submit suggested scrutiny topics to officers for future consideration.

150. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
Monday 2 March 2026, 10am
151. APPENDIX 1 - SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION FROM MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC

Supplementary question from member of the public — Environment and
Sustainability Scrutiny Committee, 16 December 2025

Question | Questioner | Question delivered verbally by Mrs Morawiecka during Question to

Number the meeting:
SPQ Mrs E Please forgive my confusion around scrutiny responsibilities. | Environment
Morawiecka On the basis of the answer received, this committee will not and
need to scrutinise the forthcoming Local Cycling, Walking Sustainability
Herefordshire | and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan (LCWWIP) as the Scrutiny

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee undertook this | Committee
is September 2025. The papers and recommendations are
here

13



https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=70755
However, despite a public consultation on the Strategic
Environment Assessment (SEA) at the same time as the
Local Transport Plan (LTP) consultation, at the full Council
meeting in December 2025 the LTP was accompanied by a
SEA — Non Technical Summary dated April 2025. Given the
absence of an up to date SEA to support the LTP, is the
committee confident that the plan is compliant with the
applicable statutory regulations for Local Transport Plans,
and despite the errors, requires no further scrutiny?

Response as delivered verbally by the ESSC Chair during the meeting:

Thank you for your supplementary question Mrs Morawiecka. As regards the Local Cycling, Walking and
Wheeling Infrastructure Plan (LCWWIP) the committee has, for some time, had it in the work program to
look at the plan against an earlier scrutiny that it did on active travel.

There were four recommendations to the executive from the active travel scrutiny that was done in
November 2024. The executive response to the four of those recommendations was that our
recommendations from that earlier scrutiny would be covered by the LCWWIP. So, while we will not be
looking at the plan itself, we will be looking at how the plan addresses those earlier active travel
recommendations and that hopefully will happen in March 2026.

As for the Strategic Environment Assessment (SEA), I've already got it in mind today to bring that forward
under a work program item later on, to see if the committee wants to prioritize it as an item for scrutiny. |
do accept that there was a lot of concern at Full Council on the 5 December around the SEA as regards
the overarching Local Transport Plan, and the committee can consider whether it wants to prioritize that
as a scrutiny item for the work program going forward.

The meeting ended at 12;50 Chairperson

14


https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=70755

OFFICIAL
AGENDA ITEM 8

& Herefordshire
O Council

Title of report: Local Cycling, Walking
and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan
Scrutiny Report

Meeting: Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee

Meeting date: Tuesday 2 March 2026
Report by: Transport Planning Services Manager

Classification
Open

Decision type

This is not an executive decision

Wards affected
(All Wards);

Purpose

To seek the views of the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee Environment and
Sustainability Scrutiny Committee on the draft Local Cycling, Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure
Plan (LCWIP), prior to its consideration by Cabinet. The committee is invited to scrutinise the plan,

provide feedback, and endorse its strategic direction. The report also outlines and details key funding

streams for the council to deliver the priorities of the plan.

Recommendation(s)
That the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee:

a) Review the draft LCWIP and provides feedback on its content and priorities;

b) The committee offers any recommendations around the LCWIP for Cabinet
consideration; and

c) Review the progress to Level 2 authority status with Active Travel England.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Ffion Horton, , emalil: ffion.horton@herefordshire.gov.ukl

15



OFFICIAL

Alternative options

1.

There are no alternative options. Scrutiny of the LCWIP is a key part of the governance
process to ensure transparency, accountability, and alignment with community needs prior to
Cabinet decision.

Key considerations

2.

The Local Cycling and Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) is a core strategic
tool that enables Herefordshire Council to take a structured and prioritised approach to
improving walking, cycling and wheeling routes across the county. It is required by the
Department for Transport and Active Travel England (ATE) and is increasingly used as a
benchmark for assessing a council’s capability and ambition in active travel delivery.

Having an adopted LCWIP is now central to securing future investment, as funding is allocated
according to a council’s performance rating and the strength of its evidence base. By adopting
the plan and committing to its delivery, Herefordshire will be better positioned to work towards
achieving Active Travel England Level 2 status in the next assessment cycle, which would
enable access to more substantial funding streams and stronger national support.

Without a strategic document of this nature, the council would struggle to demonstrate its
commitment to sustainable transport or respond adequately to the needs raised by local
communities.

The LCWIP directly supports national policy priorities including the Cycling and Walking
Investment Strategy, the Gear Change vision, and wider commitments around health
improvement set out in the NHS Long Term Plan.

ATE places significant emphasis on high-quality design, evidence-led planning and meaningful
engagement with communities. The LCWIP provides the framework to meet these
expectations by setting out clear priorities, identifying deliverable routes, and showing that the
council can bring forward schemes that reflect both national standards and local requirements.

Adopting the LCWIP brings a broad range of benefits. It embeds active travel within the
council’s wider transport and place-shaping agenda and enables decisions to be based on
robust data and clear priorities. The plan supports wider public health and environmental goals
by encouraging everyday physical activity, reducing emissions, and improving air quality. It
also enhances access to education, employment and essential services—especially for
residents who do not have access to a car—contributing to a more inclusive and connected
transport network.

The LCWIP is designed to evolve. It will be updated regularly to reflect feedback from
residents, changing travel patterns and new funding opportunities. This approach ensures that
the document remains relevant and adaptable rather than a static plan. The council will
continue to review local priorities, gather input from communities and partners, and refine the
programme over time. This iterative process also aligns with national expectations, particularly
for rural authorities where travel patterns differ from urban areas and require flexible, long-term
planning.

It is important to note that the LCWIP is not intended to restrict car use or disadvantage rural
communities. The council recognises that private vehicles remain essential for many residents.
Instead, the plan aims to support more choice in how people travel by making it easier and
safer to walk, wheel or cycle for short trips, and by improving conditions for all road users. The
LCWIP complements, rather than competes with, the existing road network and seeks to
ensure that the transport system as a whole is safer, more efficient and more accessible for
everyone.

16



OFFICIAL

Community impact

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The 2025/2026 Delivery plan has a stated objective to: Adopt the Local Cycling, Walking and
Wheeling Infrastructure Plan and provide residents with different travel choices through integrated
networks. We will seek Cabinet approval to adopt and publish the plan and commence implementation

LCWIP makes a strong contribution to the council’s wider corporate priorities, particularly
around health, wellbeing and strengthening communities. It supports the Herefordshire Council
Plan by promoting a healthier, more accessible and better-connected county. The plan also
aligns with key national strategies such as the NHS Long Term Plan and the Cycling and
Walking Investment Strategy (CWIS2), both of which highlight active travel as central to
improving population health and addressing inequalities.

By embedding active travel within local decision-making, the LCWIP reinforces the council’s
commitment to creating places that support healthier lifestyles and inclusive access for all
residents.

There is clear and well-established evidence that walking, cycling and wheeling bring extensive
physical and mental health benefits. Regular active travel reduces the risk of major health
conditions including cardiovascular disease, type 2 diabetes and obesity, while also improving
mobility and respiratory health. From a mental wellbeing perspective, increased physical
activity is linked with lower levels of stress, anxiety and depression, alongside improved mood
and confidence. Even short, everyday journeys—such as a 30-minute walk or cycle—have
been shown to deliver immediate and lasting mental health benefits. The LCWIP supports
these outcomes by making it easier and safer for residents to build physical activity into their
daily routines.

The plan also plays an important role in improving transport affordability and accessibility.
Enhanced walking, wheeling and cycling routes offer low-cost, zero-emission travel options,
which can significantly reduce financial pressure on households. This is especially important in
rural areas and for residents who do not have access to a car. Initiatives such as the Beryl bike
share scheme in Hereford further widen choice by providing flexible, pay-as-you-go transport
options. By investing in active travel infrastructure, the LCWIP supports more equitable access
to jobs, education and services and helps reduce transport-related exclusion.

The LCWIP also contributes to the council’s corporate parenting responsibilities. Safe, reliable
and inclusive transport networks improve access to education, training, leisure and support
services for children in care, care leavers and care-experienced young people. Better walking
and cycling routes can help support independence, enable social participation and improve
access to green spaces, all of which contribute to improved life chances and wellbeing. The
plan recognises the needs of vulnerable users, ,and people with disabilities, and commits to
designing infrastructure that is accessible, inclusive and safe for all through adoption of the
LTN1/20 design standards where possible.

Taken together, the health, affordability and inclusion benefits delivered by the LCWIP
represent a meaningful investment in the wellbeing of Herefordshire’s residents and reinforce
the council’s role as a responsible corporate parent. The plan supports fair access to
opportunities and reflects the council’s commitment to creating healthy and resilient
communities.

Environmental impact

17.

The LCWIP makes a significant contribution to the council’s environmental policy commitments
and supports the Herefordshire Council Plan’s goals around carbon reduction, cleaner air, and
improved access to green space. By encouraging walking, wheeling and cycling for short trips,

17



OFFICIAL

the plan helps reduce transport-related emissions—one of the largest contributors to carbon
output in the county. The shift toward more sustainable travel will also support improved air
guality, complementing wider efforts to enhance environmental resilience and create healthier
local communities.

18. Sustainable travel plays an important role in reducing environmental impact, particularly in a
rural county where car dependency is high. Walking and cycling are zero-emission modes that
cut congestion, reduce noise, and support better public health. Herefordshire already benefits
from an extensive network of public footpaths and a growing number of high-quality cycling
routes, alongside initiatives like the Beryl bike share scheme in Hereford. These assets provide
a strong foundation on which the LCWIP can build, enabling greater use of low-carbon modes
of travel.

19. The success of the Beryl scheme demonstrates the environmental and behavioural benefits
that accessible active travel options can deliver. Since 2019, users have made over half a
million trips, covering around 1.2 million kilometres and generating significant physical activity.
Estimates suggest that these trips have saved approximately 46 tonnes of carbon emissions,
with nearly seven in ten users reporting that they replaced motorised journeys with cycling. The
scheme has encouraged more frequent cycling, reduced car use for many participants, and
highlighted the environmental value of well-designed, easy-to-use sustainable transport
services.

20. There is strong national evidence that investment in walking and cycling infrastructure
increases active travel levels, particularly in areas where use has historically been low.
Programmes such as Connect2 demonstrated that improving route quality—through traffic-free
paths, better crossings, and accessible design—Iled to notable increases in walking and
cycling, especially among deprived communities and groups underrepresented in active travel.
These findings reinforce the importance of the LCWIP’s focus on safe, coherent and attractive
routes as a key driver of environmental and health benefits.

21. The LCWIP also reflects national policy direction. Active Travel England’s most recent
business plan emphasises the importance of delivering safe, inclusive and high-quality
infrastructure to reduce emissions and support healthier lifestyles. The UK Government’s
investment in active travel aims to significantly increase the number of walking and cycling
journeys made each year and to reduce pressure on public services through improved
population health. The LCWIP positions Herefordshire to benefit from this national agenda and
align local investment with national environmental priorities.

22. Throughout development of the plan, the council has considered how to minimise
environmental impacts and maximise sustainability benefits. This includes encouraging
low-carbon materials where appropriate, integrating opportunities for green infrastructure, and
promoting active travel as a viable alternative to private car use. The LCWIP will help ensure
that future schemes support healthier, greener and more resilient communities, and contribute
to making Herefordshire’s towns and villages better connected and more environmentally
sustainable places to live.

Equality duty

23. Due to the overall impact of this project being assessed as low, a full Equality Impact
Assessment is not required at this stage. However, equality considerations have been
incorporated into the development of the LCWIP.

24. The plan promotes accessibility for all users, including people with mobility impairments,
sensory impairments, and those who rely on lower-cost modes of transport. By focusing on

18



OFFICIAL

safer, more inclusive walking, wheeling and cycling routes, the LCWIP aims to reduce transport
inequalities and improve access to services, education and employment for groups who may
be disproportionately affected by limited transport options.
Resource implications
25. The LCWIP is supported by existing budgets and external funding sources. Detailed financial
implications will be set out in the Cabinet report and accompanying business case.
Legal implications

26. The relevant legal provisions for this decision can be found in the council’s constitution,
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution.

Risk management

27.

Risk / opportunity Mitigation

Risk - Public dissatisfaction if engagement Clearly show how feedback has influenced

feedback is not reflected in the final LCWIP  the plan; update route priorities where
appropriate; publish consultation summary;
communicate constraints transparently

Risk - Funding constraints may slow Prioritise deliverable schemes; develop a

delivery of schemes strong funding pipeline; work toward
achieving Active Travel England Level 2
status to unlock higher national investment;
seek external and partnership funding

Risk - Delivery challenges due to rural Tailor schemes to rural context; prioritise
geography and limited active travel safety and accessibility; focus on key
alternatives settlements, schools and employment

areas; gather user data to refine priorities

Opportunity - Adoption enables access to Adopt LCWIP; demonstrate deliverability;
greater funding and improves ATE build a strong scheme pipeline; meet ATE
performance ratings requirements consistently

Clear strategic plan strengthens partnership  Use LCWIP as shared framework; engage

working and public support partners early; align priorities with local
needs. More effective collaboration with
NHS, schools, community groups and
town/parish councils

Consultees

28. A comprehensive multi-channel consultation was undertaken to inform the development of the
LCWIP. Engagement activities were designed to ensure input from a broad cross-section of
residents, stakeholders, and representative groups.

19


http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/constitution

29.

30.

31.

32.

OFFICIAL

The Commonplace platform attracted 1,648 visitors, with 199 contributors providing 760
comments and agreements on proposed routes, infrastructure priorities, missing links and local
barriers. Respondents were able to comment directly on draft proposals and highlight locations
where improvements were required.

Participants made location-specific suggestions via interactive maps, highlighting opportunities
for new off-highway routes, Quiet Lanes, junction upgrades, and improved connections to key
destinations such as Hereford County Hospital and Ledbury. This enabled highly detailed,
place-based feedback.

Drop-in sessions were held in Hereford and Ledbury and were well attended by residents.
These sessions allowed people to speak directly with officers, review draft route options and
provide detailed local insights. The events supported participation from individuals less likely to
engage through digital channels and helped ensure a more representative demographic.

Engagement sessions were held with parish councils, community groups and accessibility
advocates, ensuring the needs of older residents, children and young people, disabled people,
and other under-represented groups were captured. Targeted communication undertaken with
colleagues in the Children’s Directorate encouraged direct involvement from children and
young people, who shared their specific travel needs and safety concerns.

Ward member engagement

33.

Ward members were invited to comment on priorities within their areas and share issues raised
by constituents. Feedback from councillors informed route refinement and the identification of
local constraints.

Consultation Findings

34.

35.

Key themes

Analysis of the consultation identified consistent themes, including strong support for safer
infrastructure, improved connectivity, and the removal of barriers to walking, wheeling and
cycling. These themes have shaped the recommendations and revisions to the LCWIP.

Priority infrastructure identified by the public (in order of support)
a) Designate and enhance Quiet Lanes
b) Create and improve off-highway routes
c) Upgrade junctions for safety and accessibility
d) Introduce traffic calming
e) Manage and improve footways
f) Implement modal filters
g) Integrate green infrastructure
h) Improve routes to school
i) Provide additional cycle parking
i) Enhance signhage and wayfinding

k) Install gateway features

20



OFFICIAL

[) Improve street lighting
m) Route support and new suggestions

36. Overall, 42% of respondents supported the proposed routes. A significant number of
alternative route suggestions were submitted—several hundred in total—and these are being
reviewed for inclusion in the revised LCWIP. Key scheme areas strengthened through
consultation include:

a) improved links to Hereford County Hospital

b) enhanced connections between Lugwardine and Hereford

c) improved access between Stretton Sugwas and Hereford

d) upgrades to walking and cycling routes in Ledbury

e) “quick wins” such as removing barriers, chicanes and pinch points
f) additional pedestrian and cycle crossings at high-demand locations

How feedback has influenced the recommendations

37. The consultation has directly shaped:
a) route alignment changes
b) priority ranking of infrastructure type
c) strengthened focus on accessibility and safet
d) addition of new routes and communities not included in the original draf
e) targeted improvements in high-demand areas highlighted by the public

38. Where suggestions could not be taken forward—for example, proposals outside the LCWIP
scope or inconsistent with national design guidance—clear explanations will be provided in the
published consultation summary.

Ongoing engagement

39. Further consultation will take place as individual schemes move into design and delivery.
Feedback will be provided to consultees via the council website, updates to stakeholders, and
communication through ward members and partner networks.

Appendices

Background papers
None identified

21






Local Cycling, Walking & Wheeling

Infrastructure Plan

PIA”

November 2025



PapIs-8|qnop JIbipod Y

Buyung

HY Aq penssj
HY Aq panouddy
MY Ll 'HY siojnqLijuod uibyy
¥2/90 aduai949y Vld
G'0 UOISISA uoisIap
*SJUBJUOD S}l J0/PUD JUSWNDOP SIY} YHM UOI1D3UUOD Ul IO JO tno Bulslip Jo
Jo yoadsau ul Apiod sayjo Aub o} Ajijiqisuodsal Ou SUINSSD S\ "UD|d 4N}oNUisoIU|
Buieaym B Buyom ‘BuljpAD 0207 4184} OF UOLD|BU Ul [IDUNOY) SIYSPIOsSISH IO}
Ajojos papusjul 8io puo paiodaid ussg SADY S{USJUOD S PUD JUSWNDOP SIY | 9jou asp3|d
GZ0Z J1oquianoN panssi aypg
|12Uno) aliysp.aoaisH uald
up|d aingonuyspapul Buljeaym B Bunjjom ‘BuipA) jooo poafoud

|o4juod juswnosoq

"up|d aJ4njonuysoau] Bui@aym puo Bunjjom

‘BulpAD |P207 §,[12UNOD BJIYSPIOBISH SI JudBWIND0pP SIY|



orL

g€l

SeaJe J3y}o pue suUMoj }axJew Ul spaafoud Jo 3si) pasijiold

pJojaiaHy jo Aj2 ayy ui spaafoud jo 3si) pasiyliold

LEL

0€L

6ZL

$.0}28} UoIeS|jlIold

uonesIoLd

syoafoad Buisiyiorid

{4

sjoafoad aanyny Jo isi

ol

601

sja3load aunyny Buluyag

syoafoad Buikyipuap)

uonpsijiond g spoafoad

ST0Z 4oquianoN

88

8

8L

VL

0L

99

9

€9

LS

[4°)

|y

144

oy

9€

ve

€€

o€

6C

€2

Kyd paojaisH

piojai9H

ui Bui2A> pup Buieaym ‘Bupjjpom 4o} Buiuup|d yiomjaN

pJojalaH o} akp-uo-ssoy

uojsnT o} JajsulwoaT]

plojauaH 03 uolBUIyIM

pJojaiaH o) auoishury

NIyuapai o} pojalaH

(S079) 831435 J0 13A3] 6ulafh)
ylompau a)24s ay} Buyipny

Buij245 1o} yiomau b Buidojarag

akM-uo-ssoy

J9)sulwoaT]

Aingpan

uojbury

pJieAwoug

(LV¥M) 1001 3pny 3inoy Bunjiem

Jjdomiau ayy Buiipny

sauoz Buiyjem aio)

Buijeaym g Bunjjom a0y yuomjau b Buidojanaqg

Ajunod ay} sso.udp
BuijoA> pup Bui@aym ‘Gunjjpom 4o bujuup|d jiomiaN

Juswubio Ao1j04

6l

adodg o1ydn.uboag

9l

4}

ABojopoyis N

ueld aanjonJiseuju| buneaym pue Bupjiem ‘bundi) jeso

uolONpPOoIU|

sjuajuod jo 9|qpL

up|d a4npanuisoupu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [1DUno) aaiyspioselaH

j1oUNOY
alyspiojesoH

25

Q@



ST0Z 4oquianoN

Ll SJ0}0B} UOljESI}lIOLd || 319BL

9zl (6) @11yspJojaaa ui sydafoad ainny jo 3s17 oL 319eL
vl (8) aJ1yspJoyaJaH ul syoafoad auniny Joisi| 4 9\qel
zzL (L) ®41yspJiojalaH ul syoefoad aunyny jo isim g 8\qel
ozL (9) ®41yspJoyalaH ul syosfoad aaniny jo isi L 31981
il (G) adiyspJojalay ul syaafoad auninyjo isi 9 jqel
9lL (¥7) @J1yspJojaJaH ul syoafoad auniny Joisim g 3)qel
il (€) aa1yspaoyausy ul syafoad auniny joisim ¢ 9)qeL
T (2) 8a1yspaoyausy ul syoafoad auniny joisim ¢ 9qeL
ou (1) 8a1yspaogadsy ul syoafoad auniny joisi7 g 9)qeL
€0l pJojausH ul synsad Jyr Ll depw
s6 pJojauay ssodoe Bunipne Joy suonounf paiyiuap| 91 depy
16 A312 pJojaisH Ss042E YioM)du 31240 Auewlid Gl depy
68 K)12 pJojalaH ssolde ylomiau 91942 Auepuodas pue Alewlid 7] depy

“uejdiaisep A1) plojalaH jo 1ied se padojanap yaomiau 31242 Aiepuodag pue Aiewlid ¢l depy

€8 synsaJ buiaho sayuay ANg plojaisH 0} aAp-uo-ssoy Z1L dep
6L sy nsau 6u1ako uoisn 03 Jd1SUILIODT 1L dep

7 s)nsaJ BunaAd aajua) Ay paojataH o} uoybuiypum ol depn ©

V3 synsaJ Hulaha snua) Ay paojsusy o} suoisbury 6 depy N
19 synsau Huipho aayua) Aj) plojausH 0} 1)iyuspau) g depy
29 02/L N1 woly 1oe43x3 S0779  Z¢€ a4nbiy
L5 9J1YSP.0jaIdH SSOIIE YIOM}BU YUl L dep
€5 s)NsaJ 1 yYM 9AM-uo-ssoy 9 depy
6 s)InsaJ | YYM J91SuUIwoaT] G dep
14 s}nsaJ 1yyYM Aingpa 7 dep
4 s}nsaJ JyyM uojbury ¢ dep
L€ synsaJ JyyM pledwoug z dep
€€ 1001 WpNy ainoy Bunjiem  z anbiy
8z olydeag suoz Bupjiep 8403 | aunbi4
6l adoag aiydeuhoag | depy
St dIMMOT ue jo sabejs L @19eL
sainby pup so|qp} ‘sdbwi jo jsi

uPJd anjoNsEIUL BuBayM Bupyopm BuIPAD 10307 [1PUNGD B1IYSPIORISH IPUN0) D

anyspiojeieH 3



uoljdnpouj

IoUNO
allyspiojesoH

27



‘ubisap 84njonJ}seLyul J0j UOI}IBIIP }8S -
"|9ARI} 3AI)R
40} @4njanJisedyul mau Joy buipuny ybnouyy
s109[04d BulidAlap J0j YJOMBWELY B BpINOId -
siA a1doad jeyy saoeyd dn Buyjun
S9)N0. 19AR} BAI}IE JO ylomiau dn-paulol e
Joy ueyd JuswdojaAap aAlEIIPUI UB INO }3S -
"|9ABI} BAI}OR
Jodsue.) 1e20) 10 3INJINIISEIUl papaau-yanw
10} 818YMaS)d pue juswuianrob jesjusd wody
Buipuny uoj Ayunjioddo s1dDuUN0d ay) asesasdu| -

3pn)dul dIMMIT S,11Unod ayj Joy sjeof ay)

*a1doad aJow Joj uondo

3)(BIA 3J0W B J9ARI)} 3AI}IE Bupjew ‘sylomiau
B6unaAo pue Buryiem asueyus o} saijiunjioddo mau
91e8.42 ued sabueyd asay) ‘Ayd ayy ul Ayjenb aie
aAoJdwl pue sawnjoA J1jedy adnpad o} Huidiay
3Iym ‘ymvmouh Buisnoy pue pue) juswAhojdwsa
y20)un 11m ssedAg ayj ‘1nj ul padaanap j| 'ssedhg
pJojaJaH ay} se yans ‘syafoid ainjanselyul peod

Jofew sjuswajdwod ABajeuis siyy ‘Ajpueisodw

91242 pue

31BM 0} USIM OUM 350U} 10} SUol}Ipuod aAoidwi
pue 1aAeJ} A3y} Moy Ul 8210Yd 30w Ssjuapisal aAlb
1IM am ‘os Bulop Ag “sjuswanosdwl ainjoniyseljul
asij14014d 0} auaym uo Bupjew-uoisidap dibajells
yoddns o} s| ABajedys siyy Jo wie Buiysaelsno syl

‘Juduodwod 8102 e se Bujj@aym apnjaul

0} pue AJuno3 ayj Jo ainjeu jeund ayj I3
0} }l bundepe ‘saibajedys buryjiem pue buiaho
Buidojanap 1oy aduepinb JuswulIaA0g Y U0 UMeIp

Sey ]19uno) aJiyspiojalsH ‘ssadoud siy) djay o)

"Ajun0d ay} ssoaae A}1A18uUU0d dA0ldwi 0} ylomidu
ay) ul sdeb Buissalppe pue sajno. bBujsixa dn
Buyuiol sapnioul siy] "1oedwi jsajealh ayy asey jim

juawisaAul auaym buikynuapi si days jsuaiy Aoy v

‘0S Op 0} BALIP 0} paau
oym 9soyj} 10y Jaisea }i Buiyjew Ylomiau peod ay}
uo ainssaud aanpaJ djay ues am ‘aunjanJiselyul

Bunako pue ‘bunsaym ‘Bunfiem ui bunsaaul Ag

‘wajsAs Jlodsuedy pasuejeq
aJow e 0} S8INQIIJU0I 0S|e Ing ‘sdjhisayl) Jaiylesy
Buibeanoous Aq sjenpiaipul syyauaq Ajuo jou jaAed}

9A1}oe Joj 3deds Bunjesu) ‘buneadde pue jeanoeud

9J0W SIPOW 3S3Y) SIYBW JBY) YJOM)3U Pa}Iauu0d
pue ‘paulejuiew-1am ‘ajes e buipiroad Aq a124d

10 193ym “)em o} asooyd oym ajdoad Huljioddns

SapN)aUl SIY] "BeW aM 3210Yd AI9A3 Ul YJoM}aU

Jlodsuedy s.41ysp.aojaiaH aAroadwi 0} Juem ap

suondo

19ABJ)} 3)qeUIRISNS 10w 0 puewsap Buimolb ay)
as1ubfod3.l 0S]e aM ‘I9ASMOH ‘Suoljeul}Sap 1y}
yoeal o} BulALIp uo )8 SJI0}ISIA pue sjuapisal
Auew jey) ueaw yJomjau peod pue Aydeihoabh

S,941yspJoyaJaH ‘Alunod jeund Ajjueujwopadd e sy

ST0Z 4oquianoN

"Ajunod ayj ssoude pue A2 ay} ulyum
sAau.nol J9140ys 1o} Ajaejnaijied ‘Ylomiau 18Aed}
9AI}0€ 9](ISS8J0E pue PajIauu0d alow e poddns
pue juawdojaaap yoojun djay ))im syoafoad yons

Jo A1aansep ay) ‘uonysabuod fuises o) uonippe u|
112unod 3y} Joj Ayaolud e aue ‘ssedhg plojalaH ayy
se yans ‘sjaafo.dd aunjonijseuyul Jofep ylomiau
1odsueuy ayy uo aunssaud ajqeureisnsun aseyd )jIm
YyimouB aaniny ‘uorjuaAsaiul @Ade04d JNOYIM pue

‘Ayoeded Buyoead aue speod s,Ajunod ayy Jo awos

‘Buisnoy ajqepJoyse ui yimoub 1oy saniuniioddo
yda0jun sdiay pue ‘syaadis ybiy uo buipuads pue
118J100J S1S00( }I ‘S8IAIDS |BIJUBSSD 0} SSBIJE

Buinoadwi Ag “1a1ses shauunol (@20 fupjew piemo}

dajs e syJew ueld siy] ‘Ayiqe Jo abe jo ssajplehau
‘0s 0p 0} @€ 3 PINOYS 133YM pue 31242 Yjem
oym a1doad ‘Aunod ayy ssoldy "a)qejusnaad

a1e Ayanoeul (eaisAyd pue uoinyjod Jie

‘Jaodsue.y Jo sapow e wody syjesp pue salnlu)

Ayunod ay} ul 81242 pue 193ym ‘yjem

0} @500Yd OYyMm 3soy} Joj sandde siy} pue ‘Ajunod
3y} puno.e arow o} yloddns ay} sassauisng pue
S10}ISIA ‘spudpisad SaAlB yaiym ainjonaisejul

Buipying s1112un03 8y} AJuno3 ay) sso.oy

*Bunoho
pue Bunsaym ‘bunjiem Aq aAljoe alow awodaq 0}

sjuapisal ajqeud djay o} dajs jueptodwi ue si siy|

‘Buipuny jo sadunos

1310 pue JuaWuIaA0h 1eJjuUSd WOo.) JUSW)ISaAUL

a1njn} 10} ‘aunjonuysedjul unako pue Bupjem
anoidwi o} syoafoud jo isi pasipond y -

*sajnod Hunoko
pue Bupjiem Aysorid ybiy jo ueyd yuompsu y -
ade dJMMIT e Jo sindino ujew ayy

‘sydompau
Bui|2A> pup Buijeaym ‘Bupj|PM Ul JuswsaAUl

w.ia}-Buoj up|d djay o} sallioyynp |pd0| Aq
pasn |00} b s1 (dIMMOT) upjd aiangoniysoajul

Buieaym pup Bupyjjom ‘Buijd4s |pd0| ¥

upjd 24njonaispaju] buieaym
pup Bupnjjpm ‘Bulph) P30T

up|d a4npanuisoupu) Buipeaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioselaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

28

Q@

10



*aJnjonJjse.yul
19AB.} @A1}2€ Jo ubisap ay) ul adualayod

pue Aduajsisuod burinsua ‘Ayunod ayy
inoybnouyy sueyd aunjonuyseyur pue d16ajeays
Jualayip usamiaq juswubiie ysngeyss oj
'S9WBYDS J9AR)

3Al}oe o) Spiq jo Juswdo)arap ay) doddns o]
‘sawaYds

a.njny jeuajod wuoyul 0} sjuswaroldwi
84NJ2NJJSEIHUl BAIIRDIPUI BUIINO O]

19AR.} BAI}IE JO SueaW

Aq sdiay Jayjo pue ainsia) ‘Buipnwiwiod uieysns
pue aseaJoui o} jenjuajod Jjayy o} Huipaodoe
sajnod buisiyliolid oy yJomawe.y e apiaoid of
‘Aiunod ay} Jnoybno.y) suoljedo)

uolnjeulsap pue uibrio yueaajad jje dn bupjun

S3)N0. 13AB} SAI}OE JO YJOM}BU dAISUaYaIdwod
e Joj ueyd Juawdo]aAap SAI}RIIPUI UB JNO }8S O] -

saAld3fqQ Joafoag

neanoead

9J0W pue ‘9]qISsed3e aJow ‘Uajes suoldo asay)
Bunjew Aq ‘sysej Ajiep Jo ‘@ansia) ‘Bunnwiwod

10} J3y3aym ‘A1aA1}oe 9B} 0} USIM OYM S0y}
1oddns 03 wie am ‘AJIAI}28UU0D pue aanjonJisedjul
Buinoadwi Aq JanamoH Asuunol A1aAs 1oy 3)qeyins
9q jou Aew bunako pue ‘Bunasym ‘Bujiem ‘ainjeu

184n4 s,Ajunod ayj 03 anp ‘jey) asiubodal ap

*SI0}ISIA pUB SJUBPISa. 10§ 33103 |aAL.} puedxa 0}
S| 911YyspJoyalaH ul ylomiau Bunaka pue Bunaaym

‘bupjiem e Huido)aaap Jo snooy jedjuad By

‘s1eah Buiwod ayj JaAo pansund aq 0} saA1}3[qo
pue saan0d ‘Uol}d3IP BYJ N0 19S |1IM ‘UBld 18207
ay} yum buoje ‘yaiym ‘ueld yodsued) 18307 mau

119y} Buidojaaap os|e a.e |19uUn0) 3JIysplojalay

‘s1ap)oyaye)s |ed0)
pue yrd jo 1oddns ay) yim 119uno) aJ1yspaojaisH

£q pa) sem dIMMOT Y1 4o Juswdo)ansp ay

29

12

up|d a4nganugsoapu) Buileaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0207 [1DUno) aalyspioselaH

JIouno)
allyspiojaIoH D.




Sl

dIMMDT up jo sabbjg La|qoL

‘sup|d
Asanijap pup saiBajouys ‘sa1d1jod jiodsupuy pup Buiuup|d [o0| o4ul syndino ajpiBaju|

‘JUBWSOAUI 81Nn4ny 10} swiwpiBoad pasbyd b dojaasp o} sjuswaroidull asilIoLd

‘paJdinbau sjuswanoidwi jo adA} sy} suiwisiep puo
uoisinoad Buisixs 1IpND ‘sainoJ pup sauoz Buijjom 8103 ‘siolplausb duy Asy Apltusp)

‘paJinbau sjuswenoidwi Jo odA} 8y} sulLLISIEP PUD S8}N01 8SBY} JIPND ‘S8IN0J JO
3I0MJSU D OJUI SMO|J }J8AUOD) 'SMO|} 8]2A2 pup sjulod uolpulisep pup uiblio Ajljusp|

‘soawwp.iBoud pup seidijod asn pup| pup piodsun.y
pajolal malray "Bupjjom pup BulpAd o) sialung Ajljuspl pupb suolipuod Bulsixa
Malnay ‘shauanol mau [plpuajod pup Bul|pAs pub Bupjjom jo suiayod Bulsixa Ajljuap|

‘up|d sy} Bulipdaid puo
Buluianob oy syuswaBup.io pup dIMMDT Y4 4o fuajxa |poiydoiBoab ay} ysijqoys3

ST0Z 4oquianoN

uonpdiiddy
B uoypaBaju) 9

sjuawanoaduwi
Buisyiond s

Bupyjjom
Joy Buiuup|d
JIoMjaN ¥

Buidh>
a0y Buiuup|d
JdompaN €

uolbwWL.IOU]
Bulaypo ¢

adoog
aulwialeg L

Jay3o ay} Bursiwoldwod wouy spow
3U0 JuaAald pue saldua|dIYye ajeald ued Buuueld
J19y) Burjeabajul ing Jaglp ued syuawa)a Buryjem

pue Bunsaym ‘buidAd uoy adoas aydeaboab ayy

'sdi1y Bunako pue Bupjiem Buisixa isnl jou
‘PUBWIBP 13AB) ]]BIDAO JBPISUOI PINOYS dIMMI]

e ‘910J2J8Y] "|9AR.} JO SW.I0) J3Y}0 ISA0 SDpOW
asay) asooyd jJybiw 91doad slow atsym seale pue
sajno. bunabie) Aq abesn Buiyiem pue bunaym

‘Bu1aka aseauaul 0} si JMMDT € 4o 1eob ayl

up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioselaH

*(z pue | sabeis d|MMQ @9s) 91eas sjelidoadde
ue JaAo0 yJomyau Bunako pue Bunaaym ‘Buiyiem
9191dwo2 e Jo A1aA113p 8Y) 8NSUS 0} JUBWISAAUI
jo aunadid e Ay3uapi pinoys Aay] “aAlsuayaidwod

pue pa)-32uspIA3 3q PINOYS SdIMMIT

‘gl abed uo | 91qe] abed uo paunino sabeys xis
uo paseq s| ssado.d siy] "aunjonaiselyul bupjem
pue Bunaaym ‘bunako buriaanap pue buiuue)d
0} yoeoudde |ealpoylaw e saulino 4jMM3IT ue
Buidojanap saljoyne Joy asuepinb 1eajuyasy 1ia
9y "841ysp.oyaiay ul uonedndde sy pue ssadoud

dIMMO1 @Y} J0 malalan0 ue sapiaoad Jaydeyd siyp

ABojopoyion

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

30

Q@

14



9doog s1ydnuboas

ST0T JaquianoN

‘sjusws|4}es

pup sumoy Asy Buiybiybiy qimmI1 ay4 104 edoog siydoiboss

up|d a4npanuyspupu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioselaH

16



6l

18

adoog o1lydoiboss L dowy

0'6A 190 34} J3pUN PasUaDY] UHEWLIOJUI 101935 JNGnd SUIEIUO)

u» og Gl 0
2L 7 Wi -
7 23
o > N
- = //
> [ J
5 yinowuop // [ J
A \ = = = = ~fuusaebiaqy
7 ~
7 A
/
/ Y
[ \
1 \
I \
\ () \
\_ 9AM-uo-ssoy //
- \
&z \
4 \
’
#; /
/ \
/ \
| (
) \
l
| KingpaT ° /
I o 1
| —uo- I
1 pJojatay 3Am-uo-AeH \ . %
\ & \ SUMO] }3)JBW 3Al} S,211YSPI0JaI9H pue piojaJaH Jo
n “ a13uad A}12 3y} sI dJIMMIT @Y} Jo sndoy Asewrad ayy
\ UJaABN B3l E
\ ]
/ - \ Bunaka Jo Bunsaym ‘bunjiem Aq suoneunssp '841YSp.0ja.aH 1ednd Ul S3)N0. 0S)e pue
\
I \ K@y 0} 128UU02 0} seaue jeund uj a1doad oy K312 pJojaJaaH ulyym sajnod sayiuapl djMMI1 YL
pleAwoug
__ uojbury \ aJ1sap pue paau ay} buisiubodad ‘A3unod ay)
\ 19)sUIWoa7 /
\ ’ SS0JJB SJUdWaNas pue sabie)iA ‘sumo) Jajjews ‘padinbaa
\ /
\ / SJ9A0D 0S]e d|MMDT 2Y3 Jo adods ay) UIanamoH aq Aew suolpauuo0d Aiepunog-ssoud buisiubodau
\ /
A \\ ‘Ajunod auiyspuojalal buliapioq seale ayj o} usaalb
\
// \ 1enuajod Buipuny }sajealb pue yymoab pauueyd ud9(q 0S|e Sey uoljelapisuo) 'AJunod allyspaojalay
N
p 8 \ }s9jea.b ay) aAey seale asay) asneaaq si S|yl sas1udwod d|MMD1 @Y1 Jo adoas oiydeaboab ay)
% /
([ Pe
N -
T MmolpnT &
R 7
< o7 adoog o1ydniboag
Asepunog auaiyspdojadsH [
== N
ealy Apms dIMOT L
G20T 41equianoN up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH __oc-.—oo D
anyspiojasoH R



juswiubiip Asijod

ST0T JaquianoN

"‘Ajunod 8y} 10} up|d }Hodsupu] [P0 MaU By} YHM juswubijo uo
sN20y aojN21pind B YHMm Ydomiau BulpAd pup Buljgsym ‘Bupjjom

9pIM-AJUNOD 8y} 10} §X3}U0D 8y} seslpwwins uajdpyd siy|

up|d a4npanuyspuyu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [19Uno) aayspioseiaH

20



sajls

UoIS1]]02 paljljuapl Je sainseaw paads uajeg -
sjuawanosdwi buissold

SNUBAY 93] JNUJBA ]O0YIS 0} SDINOI IdjeS -
Ao

8yj} Ul dWaYds ally ayiq }9aJ}s-uo ay} puedxy -
aueT weybunng

pue aueT weybuljng JamoT saue) _Ing -

yaomiaN 812hg apim Ang -
Buissoid

aueT usaug/ yyy / 199415 Moquiey J3)SuUlwos] -
sjuawaosdwi

uelljsapad pue fuissold asnoH }ayJep Aingpa -
sapelhdn

Buissoud uonounl y@8.43s ybiy pieAwoig -

S3JN0. |9AER) dAI0R A jo abeufig -
sjuawaoldwi

uerssapad 84juad umo} ak\\-uo-ssoy -

sjuawaaoidwy 1ed] umo] Aingpa -

sjuawanoddw| }93ays ybiy uojbury -
$]00Y3S punoJe suojjdll}sal

JO JUBWaI04UD pue }99.4)S 100YDS Jo AuaAnegq -
3JoMIBN 81247 jeuoneN

puE S)ell} 94NsI3) BJNJ UO SJ3LIIR] JO |BAOWRY -

peoy janay ulajsap plojalaH -

peoy ul7 ulayinos pJojessHy -

:@pn)dul ueyd jiodsued)

18207 3y} ulyym pauijino syaafoad sy ayj jo sawosg

up|d a4nganugsoagu) Buijeaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0207 [1DUNo) aalyspioselaH

‘ueld }odsued] 1e207 3y} Jo SaAI}R3[qo 3y}
aA31Yde 0} JusW)}SsaAu] podsuedy apinb 1M J1ouno)
841ysployaiaq Moy Ino 3as jey; suejd uoiae

JO S3143S B SapN|IUl ue|d Jodsued) 1eao] ayl

Ayanoas pue Asjes jiodsuedy buirosdwy -

Ayaisn)oul pue Ayiqissalsoe buiroadw) -
JUBWUOIIAUD ))INg pue jednjeu ay} bupueyua

pue Bunoajold pue abueyd ajewnd bunyoey -
Bulagnam

Buiroadwi pue sanoiaeyaq Aypeasy bungeuy -

Awouo2a snosadsoud pue fuialiyy e buiioddng -

SMO]]0} SB 3B d]7 3y} o SaAlpdalqo ay|

unoiaeyaq buiddoys pue

sjgey Buiydom ‘ABojouyday ul syiys o) Hundepe Aq
paJaAlap uaaq aAey ueld yodsued) 18207 snoiaaad
3y} ulypm paunino sysfoad Auep 'L£0z-9102

ue|d JJodsuel] 18207 JuaLind ayj yhnoayy apew
ssaJboud ayj uo sping 3 170Z-GZ0Z 341Yysplojaiay
sso.oe jiodsuedy Buideys Joy yaomawedy dib6ajeais

e S| ue|d podsue.] B30T 241YspIojaaH yedp ayL

up|d {1odsup.] [po07]

|1ouno)
allyspiojasoH

34

Q

22



Ajunods ayj
$50.2D Bul|24d
pup bujjeaym
‘Bupj|oM 10}
Buiuup|d yi1omjaN

IoUNo
QAIYSpPIOJoIoH

35



Bulj@aym

3 bunjjom
10} YJ1oM}au
p Buidojanag

ST0T JaquianoN

"Ajunod sy} Joy pedojansp som Bujeaym

puUD Bupj|OM 10} JJOMIBU 8y} MOY SSIIDWWINS [|Im Jajdoyd siy|

up|d a4npanuyspuyu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 j1DUno) aalyspioselaH

26



GZ0Z 48quisnoN

o1ydoug suoz Bupjjom 810D

‘looL ypny

anoy Bunflepm 13 ays utyim paunino aduepinb
yyim aul ul pabueys peod ayy jo d1isiajoeleyd ay}
USYM UO paseq pauluiialap 919M UdIYm ‘suoldss
]1BJ3A3S JO Pa}SISuU0d 3}noJd Yaeg "uUmoj Yyaea uj
sJojelauab diiy Aoy o} Aywixoad a8y} oy anp
paJapisuod Ajjesauah alam sajnod asay] paiyiuapl

819M S3)n0. Bupjiem ‘SuMO} dAl4 3Y} UIYHM

1184100} JO S13A3] 3s3YBIy

3y} aJojaJay) pue siojeuauab duy bupjiem bunsixa
J0 sJa)sn)o )sajealb ay) aJ1ay} alsym seade

9y} Juasaudad sumoy aAly asayy 1eyy sybnybiy

suoljeulisap jo Ayisuap ayj jo siskjeue uy

pliedwoig -
9kMm-uo-ssoy -
uojbury -

Kingpe -
Jajsujwoa] -
‘PalJIUBPI BIIM SUMO}

urew aAly 40 1210} @ ‘dIMMIT B1YSpP0jaIaH By o4

‘Juawdojanap

yJom}au ay} Burinp palapisuod sl sz 3y} Jo
Ayigeawaad pue A}1AI302uuU0d Japim 3y} Jey}
S9INSUa SIY] "ZMD @Y} ojul saynol buiyiem Aay ay
UO SUOI}IPUOD MBIABI S}IPNE B}IS 8y} ‘419sH ZMD 8y}

UIyIM suoipuod Bupjiem Buimalaal se 11am sy

nepoo04

Jo s)aA9) Jaybiy ajeaud o} Ajay1) aJoyaay} pue
sJojetauab diay Buryiem Aay uiejuod o) pajdadxa
a.e jey) seade juasaldal yaiym (zmJ) sauoz
Buiyiem 8409, Jo uolieaiyiuapl ayj uodn paseq si
ydomiau bunpiem dimMI1 ayl jo juswdo)anap

3y} moy sajedisnyi gz abed uo | aunbi4

“Wdomiau Bupjiem Buisixs ayy jo
abeJanod pue Ayjenb ayj pusixs pue apesbdn o} si

sjuswaAoldwl 84N}INIISEIUL BY) JO SND0J UlRW BY |

sauoz Bupjjom a10)

up|d a4nganugsoapu) Buileaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUNo) aalyspioselaH

|1ouno)
allyspiojasoH

37

Q@

28



» FLYIVETT
ay4 buiyipny

ST0T JaquianoN

911YSpPJ040J9H SSOJDD SO}NO0U 404 USYD}IepUN

som jpy4 ssasoud Buljipno sy} asupwiwins |[Im aaydoyd siy|

up|d a4npanuyspuyu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [19Uno) aayspioselaH

30



€€

|00] Hipny ainoy Bunjjom

JONIYIHOD

"}084100U] JO JUBSqE)|
Bued ajpoe) pue sqiex paddoiq|

“spiepuens|
o o} 1ou yeae ‘papinoid
6uined ajioe) pue sasey paddoiq)

‘uorsinosd Buined|
a110e) pue qiey paddosp ajenbapy

Buined
e} pue squax paddop -
JONIHIHOD '0Z|

S|

03]

‘suoisyjoa| U nse o) Ajeun 1ng penoiduu qQISIA -|
1eUMaLIOS 3 pinoo A “siosn 2 Joj AUgIsin pooo) AL3dVS'6L
“spoads ouje)
woyy eoueysip oy daey o) ajgeun| 1xo1d asofo Uy sueuisapad|  ejesepow Woy souBlsIp GasY Ued) peads oyen -
suewsapad i ‘speads auex uBiH| pue aje;opow speads oygess | suewisaped 1o ‘mof speeds diyei | AL34VS'8L

“sawnjon ayjes)|

ewWN|oA oygel -

wioy souesIp 1Y deay 0} ajqeun| 1x01d 9S0[0 U1 sueisaped|  jRIBPOW WOy BouEISIP dasY ueo|
suewspad i ‘ownjon dyex YBiH| pue ojesapow ownjon e | suewseped o ‘moj awnjon oues | AL3AVS'LL|
$S3NLOFNIC]

“s1051 J0j S8NSS| @OUEIGASS Bueaso SuBLISaped 1o noke| Bursnjuod -

‘s10sn [e Joj ssa00e BupoLsal sdais -
‘paIEpOLILOD%e 10U S0IS S WO} SN0y - 030 -
‘opnjou senss sseuelp Jeulo, Jo seidwex3) SSANLIINIAIL,

“fae0jui00 501
o1 wi ueYnS SI65N BIGEISUINA
BAI6 Jou pInom By UBW USRID)|

s15n 1218p o} Aj@>ijun o
1843 1q 8L UEW UBBIB PaPUBIXE
WOy} oUaq PINoM SueLIsapad

“Aiqenojwoo sso10 o) yibua)
1UBIOYNS JO | W UEW UBRID

awy uew uealb -
SS3NLOINIA SL|

“puest ueisapad ut soi< e
o) Ajew “auwy Aewnof o} Apueoyubs|
ppe SBUISs0 pasaoes|

“puEE|
uewsapad ul sg< Jiem o Ajaiun|
“aug Aawnof o} ApueoyuBis ppe
10U 0p 1nq paisBBels aie sBuIssOI0

“sBUISS0.10 €192 10 UNd/UEd)
oseyd jbuls a:e sBuISs0I0

owy Aouinof uo sbujssoud
Pa]1043u09 Jo oedu -
SSANLOINIA'VE

(eBesone sgi<)
Kejop 1eoyuBis uim pajerosse 10
sse peol Jo Buissoi)

“(aBesone sg|.
01 dn) Aefap auwos Uy pajeroosse |
1nq ‘toap peos jo urssou|

(eBrsone
56 >) AE[op INOUIM PUE BIELOjCD
pue ‘1oauip ‘Ases peos Jo BulssoID)|

~ (buisson|
PRIIO}UOD JO BpISINO|
$5019 0} Aj9y1| J 40 Juasaid|
sBujss010 pajjosuod|

ou a1aym) ouyes3 uj sdeb -
SSANLOIFVITEL

“sal

159p

*sauyl ausap woy Aeme suewlsapad

'Saul] 21/S9p O} UOREIBI
uj sBuissoIo Jo uopeso] -

19129 0) opIn0id 10u 8se SKem00

9 pinoo uoisinaid Aemiood

woy ApueoyuBis SleiAap SBUISSOID| Buianp Allened sBuissoi) “s0uI| 81159p MOJj0; SBUISS0I0 SSINLOINIAZH
“Sau] o153p UEmsapad Tpeoi o]
“sau a11s3p uewjsapad Jo) 10} Jaje0 J9aq 0} panaidy| yuaoelpe B'a) sauy a1isep uewsapad) uoysiroad Kemjooy -

10} 13}e0 0} papiAoid a1e SKeMI00|

SSIANLOINIA'LL

3pNE

1¥04W0D
Buipuod sjat ol MO0} Poule.p Aood -|
“Upim eouRIRal BuRDIASl Siayjels Sng -
PuE 553008 BuoLSe1 SejeB/s:oued -
(Remo0; 0 pauiado sejeB Aemanup 6') SueLsapad Joj Ujpim oUBIEaID BUROLSa) SUORINASGO Aresoduual - 49430 -
:8pNjou! S8NSS! LOJWOD I8, JO sejdwex| L¥04WO0I'0k
(e “(z1 U 1) 1u80 1ad g pasoxa ualpesB -
Juso Jod g pasoxe sjuelpesS| 10U op SJUBIPEIB Inq IsiXe SadOlS “Kemjoo) Uo sadols ou aJe asay | 1H04N09 6
“sauj auisap saul 2115ap Wy uoneiNep)
woy uoeinep JueayuBis sesned owos sosned unyied kemoos
Buped Aemioo ‘Aejep/Buipmoso| “Bupped Aemoo; 0} anp|
Ui s)INse) Jojpue Speoi| speos uo Bunyiem pue siesn usemeq “suonoISa0 JuauEwled
Uo jem ‘AQuenbay el pue an, ,exe) pue aAIS, Jo} paau [eU0iSE000|  UBBMA] WIZ JO SSB0XB Ul Ajfelauaf
o1 siesn saunbas Bupiied Aemg004 “wg pue wg'| Ajsewoidde|  supIm BoUBIEBID PajoU SKeM0O) Buppied Aemjoo; -
‘WG|, uey) sse| Syp soeseslo) usemieq suipim eoueseel| uo Bupped sepiyen jo seoueisul o) 1¥O4N0D '8
“Rejop/Buipmoso ui synses 1ojpue} “siesn JeU-RRUM
SpEo1 Lo Yem “Apusnbayy axe)! “speo uo Bupiiem| 0 W Jo ss89%8 Uj Aljeseust 4 \ mm.._ s
PUE A6, 0} S19SN S@ANDAI YPIM|  PUE SIBSN UBBNEG e} PUE BN, SUIPIM "SPEOI UO Bupem o Siesn)
PeiwI “(YIpIM JIeYOle8YM PIEPUEIS| 1O} PBRU [BUCISEDD0) “WZ PUE WG'| Ppai1eBbess uo ypim -
21) W'y Uew 559110 Sp| _ Aisiewixosdde usoM1oq Jo SpIAN L¥O4NO0D 2
“Kefop/Buipmoso|
U synses Jojpue speos speos wiz 0
uo yjem “Ajusnbayy exe pue s, o)) uo Bupjjem pue siesn usamaq| sseoxs uj Aljesousb suipm Aemooy|
105N sa.NbeJ P Aemioo) /€1 puE oA, 10} BB [EUOISERVO) Specs uo Buniem Jo siesn
“(UIPIM JIBUDIZBYM PIBPUEIS ‘5 ‘Wz pue wg'|, Ajajewixoidde| Usamiaq ¥e) pue BB, Jnouym| ypim Aemyooy -
wg') uey) 5591 10 SUIpIM AeNi0o UBMG J0 SUIPIM AEMI00 s1osn |12 alEpowwORIE 0} Bjayv| 1¥04INOD 9|
“s0epns uaneun|
U BupInsas s1anssozo Aemioo)
Bwog "0j@ sweid ‘sieyoleauMm|
Buoues) 10 Ainoyyyp 10 s upnse
10 Bujyored Usasun JueoUBIS| 0) Ajey|un S}oejaq “(siened [ee] ng|
10 ‘JuewaNEd peny} 10 PapISans| 'pexoeso Se Lons) Jouy 1o (Buyoled
“aoayins Uneun  Bunysal 10BULRUSR S8 ons) paleiosi|| "spaeze) i ol Ly Lopypuoo) uopIpuoo -
510405010 AEM]00) J0 J0quINU BBsE Alea1dy “patou sioejep ewos P00B ul pue [ona] sKemjoo| L¥O4N09D 'S
SSANIALLOVALLY
SPIE0q 0 1E3pIENG JO BSN BNISSENT -
“(s¥oes ssnya) “68) S8IN0I Jo SSUBANIEIE BU} Buosye seines) Aielodwa) -|
“usKoyep s1J0 ‘uesaid Jou s| Bunybl 1ey) souspIAg -| Ja430 -|

anss| 43u1o, o sajduiex3|

SSANIAILOVYHLLY |

10u oy
210105 JojpuE uonnijod Jujes) 8J9NSS |

panoidu aq pinod uol
Jojpue o510 OWjEI) 1O SfoADT

ssauanoeIe aU} 10aye|
10u 0p uonnijod pue asiou oyjel 1|

uonnjjod pue asiou e} -
SSINIAILOVHLLY €

“(ajenbapeul ase saul| 1S 2s0um
Buipnjour) aoug(aAIns [einiey o)
12lqns jou ‘pare(os! st a1y “Aiioe|
[E00SHUE/[2UILILO J0 80UBPIAT|
“wsyepueA uafeAsid 10 Jofe|

“(ons}
0JUO 3oBq JO YoBq 185 SAsnoy 6-a)
‘SoUe||BAINS [einjeu pue aBejuoy

SAIOE JO OB “WSI[ZPUEA JOUIN|

‘eoue(ienins [esnjeu sjepdosdde|
LM WSI[EPUEA O 89UBPIAG ON|

awId Jo Jeay -
SSANIAILLOVHLLY Z|

stedossip Jofews oyul Bules exnyuny,
18811 "SBYOUEIQ MO| BuIpnioUl
‘uopejoBon umoiBieno Ajsnouas|
uejenaud ssaw Bop Jojpue Buar

(uied buyoed

“pojou senss! eSS
ou M ‘pauiEIUleL jam semioos

(uoaip) z

ST0Z 4oquianoN

soueuajueW -
SSANIAILOVHLLY 'L

Z a4nbiy ‘ledano
%0/ UeY} SS3] 9103s Aay} JI syuswanoidwi Joy
papuawwodal aq pjnoys sajnod bupyiem Ajesauab

1By} SpUBWIWOd3d | YYM dY} 40§ dduepinb ay|

‘e¢ abed uo z aunbi4 ul jie}ap alow ul paunino

aJe elJa)14d Buloas ayy0ads pue satiohiajed ay|

suelsysapad Joj buiaed 8y130e) pue quay

paddoup jo uoisinoid 8y} uo sasn04 :9IUBIBY0Y G

sueldysapad
Y}IM UOl}IBIS)UI pUe Spaads pue sawnjoA

3121yaA Jo joedwi ay} uo sassnio4 Kjajes v

ajnoJ paliajald J1ay} Mojjo4 0} suellysapad oy
aJe salyoey buissoud ayy buijepowwodae pue
aul) a4Isap JeJnjeu sy} yum paubne ale salioey

uelysapad A]9s0]2 Moy sassassy ssaupraliq €

sbuisso.o paJabbejs pue
18112 193.43s ‘Bupyied Aemiooy se yans Buryjiem
uodn suonanJaisqo jo jaedwi ayy pue buiyiem Joy

2)qejieAe a3eds JO JUNOWe dY} SMIIASY :}0jwo) Z

3jn0J B 40 ssauaAlded}ie ay) uodn awid

jo Jeay pue uonnjjod ‘asiou d1yje) ‘9aUBUB}UIEW

s} NsaJ yyum ‘uosaad ul payl

:anbiuyos) buliods (9yy) usalg
Jaquy pay e sash pue sisAjeue 1oj saliohajed jedanss

ojul PapIAIP S! (LYHM) 100L HpNY ainoy Buijiem ayL

1vdM 343

Joy Ayjeaiyoads padojanap dde ajis e ojul 8yis uo payndul
ne sem sajnoJ Bujiem

3y} 40 yae3 "yrd Aq 3)is U0 uaye}Iapun a1am spny

aouepinb ssadoud

dIMMOT 13a ay3 ut ino jas ABojopoyiaw (LyyM) 1001

Jo 1oedwi 8y) SI9PISU0Y [SSBUIAIRINY L 1PNy 31noy Buiyjep sy buisn a1is uo pajipne usy) sem

au0z yoea ‘sauoz bupjepm 8409 sy} pawdiyuod buiney

ABojopoyjapy

(LV3M) |00] {ipny anoy Bunjjom

up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

39

Q@

32



\\1-
[ 1Nnowsia )
(_S1SMOA

—

jJuswiuoliAuS Bupjjom jubsps|dun i g SO ﬂmﬂ, e
up 8}08.d s8JDYINS jo ipdausiq 4 Sanbig ss9| pup Jebuo| sheuinofl Buiyjjom &\W_UE uod mwmn,cm‘_wvza pup skom

i

g9 paddoup jo oo G @unfiy

pup Bunjjom axow s1anb puo sAomoo)

4nouyyip Buijeaym
OJIDN

EEIRITEIN

Jojow yym sjuiod 3a13u03 jeniuajod buisod
Jayjo yoea ssed Ajajes o} bunsaym pue Hupjiem
9)doad o) sainouyip uasald yarym (Yipim ul

wg'| ueyy ssay) modieu Aiaa ase skemiooy Auepy

y6iu je Ajaenonaed ‘yueseajdun Bupjjem

Bunjew ‘Gunybi) jewiuiw Y3Im ‘93UBISAINS (BINjRU
payoe) sassedaapun yons USASMOH ‘peod Asng

3y} ssoJoe A}IAlpdauuod buipiroad sassedaapun
/shkemgns yum “qewiuiw ate ssedAq pieAwoug

717y 9y} sso.oe sjuiod Buissoad apedb 3y

up|d ainpanuysoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aayspiojaiaH

Jjedausip
ul Jo Buissiw Jayyia buiaed a)130€) JO 3DUIPIAS YHIM

‘Aynenb Jood aie pansasqo suonipuod AemjooH

ERIEIIELE

pinom Bunaaym Jo Bupjiem Ag umoy ay} punode
ful)jaAea) SI0}SIA PUB SJUBPISAI Jey) SRIINDIYIP
pue wjea. a11gnd ay} yum sanssi pajybnybiy

pJeAwoug ul uaxe}lapun SUol}eAI3Sqo 3)IS

‘(ezoz
‘13q) Aep Jad se)21yaA Jojow gog'9 Ajarewixoldde
s91dn220 pue 21jje4} 3]121Y3A J0) 3)1n0J jueliodwi ue

sapiaoid yaym vy 3y Aq pardasiq st umoy ay L

'sBuipiing ueLIopIA

pue ueibuoag jo abueu e yum yooq Aepsawoq

3y} Ul pauonuaW umoy ay} Yyum ‘Auoisiy Yol e sey
pue sassaulsnq |1e}a.J yuapuadapul jo A}aLiea e 0}
2WOY 0S| S| 3JjU33 UMO} 3] "S|BAI}S3) el pue
JIsnWw ‘pooy jo abues e Yym ‘JUBIGIA S| 31JUID UMO}

3y} ‘S1eAIIS3 JO UMO], 8y} S 0} Palajal uayQ

"341YSpJ0jaIaH

Jo Ayunod 3y} Jo }sea-yjlou 3y} ul saystied jo
Jagquinu e 1o} 843Uad 3y} S| PUe pJojalaH Jo
}sea-y}lou ayj 0} sajlw uaayly Avjewixoidde
pa1e30] S1 3| *(1Z0Z ‘snsua)) 008'c A1erewixoldde

jo uonjendod e yym ‘umoy }8yJew e si paekwoig

pipAwo.g

rounoy
aayspiojaioH

40

Q@

34



L€

sjnsaJ JYYM pioAwoig

zdow

0'EA 190 3U} Japun Pasuaal) UoHeWIoJUI 103235 JNgnd SUleIuo)
SIWON
WOy paulelqo [|0Z 10§ BIEP YJOM O] [3AB] JO POYIaW SUIBIUOD

()
=
e
a
=
%

/éé‘

%001l-%96 ——
%G6-%L6 —
%06-%98 ——
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%L9
%09-%98
%GS-%LSG

%0G Uey) ssa7
abejuadiad NjedaAQ

LLYE9:0

pieAwoug

s

‘sueljsapad

10} sysid Ayajes juednyjubis fuisod ‘@3no. ayy jo
Ayaofew ayy Joy Jredausip ui Jo juasqe Jayyle ale
fuiaed 8130} pue squay paddouap se suellysapad

10} 3AIS3Y0D JOU S| d}N0J dY] :UOISAY0Y 'S

‘8jeJapow Se pajou al1am spaads
J14je4} pUB PeOJ BY) Ul SPUSQ SWOS 0} anp
suelnsapad 1oj NNONYIP 1EYMBWIOS SIANIGISIA

'S19SN Jsow Joj 3jes A)diey si ajnod ay] :Kisjes v

ST0Z 4oquianoN

ssedAq pJedAwo.g #yy 9y} jo uonndasxa

8y} Yym ‘Ajisea ssoud o} suelysapad Joy jussald
8.e shuISS012 Pa)1043u0d OU BUBYM DIjjeu} BY) Ul
sdeb a1gejins aJe alay] "9)qejieA. auaym saul
241S9p M0]10} sBUISS0ID pue peod ay} o} Juadelpe
papiaoad Buiag ybnoay) saul adisap uersysapad

10 J331ed 0} papirodd ale sAemjoo :ssaupdaliq ‘€

%7l

uoisayo)

ssaujoalig

‘sanss| Huipuod
9)qeadnou ul buiynsal ‘skemjooy paurelp Ayiood
padualiadxa pajipne s8nol awos pue sjuaipelh

BAISS9IX® DABY 843U UMO} B} UIY}IM S8IN0
3WOS ‘JI9A3MOH "9 €} pue aAIb Jnoy)m siasn
}SOW 3)EPOWWOIIE 0} 3)(E 3JE PUB UOI}PUOI
poof ul pue 1aAa] ale sAemjoo4 ‘suelijsapad

10} 9](E}J0JWO0I 1k S3JN0. JSOp ‘Jojwo)

'31n0J 3y} Jo ssauaAndedyie ayy hunoedw
jou Ajjeaauab ‘@2ua44n320 Joulw e aJe uonnyjod
pue asiou d1yjeu] "193.3s 3y} Bujoollano sasnoy

ybno.y) noybno.y) pauiejuiew sdue)jIdAINS
9jeridoadde s| auay) pue wsijepuea jo

8JU3PIA OU MOYS S3)N0. Jsow ‘A)jeuonippy
'82U844N220 UoW WO e s| uolejahan umolbisno
19A9MOH paulejuiew 1)1am Ajelauab aue

pJeAwoag ul SAeM}004 :SSaUBAIIBINY

i

‘L€ abed

uo z depy ul umoys aJe | \yyM 3y} 1o} S}nsad ay|

€6 %9L %EL

1ojwo) SSaUBAIPRINY

pipAwoig sS0IdD SUOIJIPUOD judlin)d

up|d a4npanuisoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

41

Q@

36



S[21yaA Spoos)
AnDSH 0} [xou SADMIOQ) MOLIDN  ZL 24nbiy

Bupjjom
SIA MO| YiIm suolaunf spim

SADMJOO) OU YJIM J0814s [00YdS  0f 24nBiyg

LL 2By

‘poou 8y}
ul 3j|om o) padinbau supliysepad ul {nsal SADM|O0) MOLIDN

B 2dnbi4

180 s1pd asiiold saoupysip Buissoud apim

supbLiysepad

@ 24nb14

‘peo. ay} ojul aehiAeu o} padoy
Buiaq Bunaaym pue Hupjjem ajdoad ul )nsau ued

YaI1ym ‘suerlysapad oy Yipim 3]qejieAe ay} adnpad

os|e uonejaban umoubiano pue Bupjied Aemjoo

‘suellysapad
Joj 9oualtadxa juesealdun ue Huijeaud ‘ysed aAlp
Ajusnbauy sa121yaA afiie) susym speou o} }xau

sAem}00j MoJIBU BPN)IUI PAAISS]O SaNSS| JaYiQ

EEIMIENN
J0jow pue uaJip)iyd 10oyYas usamiaq a1juod buisod
‘peod siyy buoje yjo doap jooyass awos pajybnybiy
U9Ye}IaPUN SUOIIBAISSO 3}IS 'J00YIS SUMEH
ApeT 03 a1nou Bupjiem padda)s e se buijoe peo. ay)
a)idsap ‘Aemjooy ou BuiAey se pajou Jdenaijied ul

peoy 1sabuaH Yim ‘skem}ooy ¥oe) s}aa.is awos

‘Buyiem abeanodsip yaiym ‘sainiioey buissold
ou pue Ayiqisia Jood asod suoiounl Aue ainjeu
1B4NnJ S} UBAIB ‘UMO) By} SSOUJB JUBPIAS BJE SlIpel

uonpun( apip ‘Bunasym pue Bupyiem ajdoad Joy
Sa3N21Y1p sasod J13sy 943uad umoy ayy ‘Bupjjem

aansia) 40y jods uejndod e s| umoy 3y} 1S1IYM

up|d a4npanugsoapu) Buleaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspiojeiaH

‘uonjejndod 120] 8Y} 10§ SBIIAIDS |BIJUBSSD
Buipiroad ui 9104 1e12NID B sAe)d uojbury jo aujuad
UMD} 3y} ‘UOI}BI0] |BINI S} UBAIQ "BaJE 3y} Ul
a)qejieae sanod Bupjjem ainsia) jo abued apim ayy
Buiseamoys Ag S10}ISIA s}oed}je puR AJuNWwod
ayj sajowo.ud yaiym aeak e asimj 1eansaL bunjem
uojbury 9y} s}soy UM} dY| "UMO} ,3WO0I)3M dJe
S19)1em, B se pajeubisap uaaq sey pue saljiAljoe

Bupyjem Joj gny e se paumouad s| uojbury

'$9.10)s juspuadapul snoLiea Buisnoy ‘eaJe j1ejad
ulew ayj se Buialas 193115 YBIH 3y} Yyum ‘saue)
oeq pue s}9aJ3s Jo ultaned pLib 110)s1y s} Joj

a]qejou st umo} ayL *(1Z0Z ‘shsuag) 00Y'z puno.e
jo uonjeindod e sey pue aJlyspaojalaH Ul SUMO}

1931ew aAly ayj Buowe jsajjews ayy s| uoybury

yjou ay} o} ssedAq e se sjoe mou

Inq 313ua2 UMO} 3y} ybnouy) ssed o} pasn yaiym
‘peO. #i7y 3y} AQ Papuno.INs S| UMO} ay] “plojalaH
WOy Wyg pue Jap.oq ysiap ayy woly Aeeme wiyz s
K@1ewixoadde ‘Ayunod ayj Jo }sem pajenys si

puUB 8J1YSpJ0jaIaH Ul UMO) }3¥.ew e s| uojbury

uojbuny

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

42

Q

38



i

“0'EA 790 34} JapUN PasUa2N) UONEWLIOJUI J0}23S JNgnd SUIRIUOD
SIWoN
WoJy paulelqo |0z 10§ B1ep }JOM 0] |3AB.] JO POYIaU SUIeIuo)

%001l-%96 ——
%G6-%L6 —
%06-%98 ——
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%L9
%09-%98
%GS-%LSG

%0G uey} ssa
afejuadiad J1elaAQ

sHNsad [ M uopBury

€ dop

[
w g0

uoybury

ST0Z 4oquianoN

S

100425

0

sume Aper

‘sjuawaiedw uoisiA Yyym suosaad Ajaenaiaed

suelaysapad Joj sysid A}ajes yueaiyiubis buisod
‘2}noJ 9y} jo Ayuolew ay) Joj yuasqe aie buiaed
91108} pue sqJay paddoup se suelrjsapad

J0J ®AIS8@yo02 jou si 8jnod ay] ‘uoisayoy ‘s

‘peod ay}
ul spuaq awos 0} anp suelljsapad 4oy NNIIIP
jeymawos si Ayiqisia ‘Ajjeuonippy Anwixoad
950]2 Ul 8Je suell}sapad sueaw Yalym ajnod ayy

jo Ajiolew 8y} Joy ajelspow aJe spaads pue

S9WN)0A D1jjeld] "sJasnh }sow 10} 9jes aJe Eoumc_v_

$S0.13€ pajipne sajnoJ }sow qjelanq Aisjes v

‘A)isea sso0.4d 0} suellysapad Joj juasaad

9Je sfHuISS01d Pa))04juod ou 3I3YM JIjje.} 3y}
ur sdeb ajqeyins aJe auay] "9)qejieAR BI9Yym
saul) 841Sap M0]10} shuISs0.d pue peou ayj 0}
juaselpe papiaoad Buiaq ybnoayy saun adisap
uelsysapad Joj 18)ed 0} papirodd aae skem}oo

*}oaJ1p si uojbury punoJe ajnod ay| :ssaupdallq €

%01

uoisayo)

‘peO. 3y} Ul ]98YM
10 ¥1em 0} paJinbau sueljsapad jo saduejsul
awos o} buipea) ‘Aemjooy ayy jo Buimouieu

ul s}Nsal yaiym ‘yusplias os\e si buryaed
Kemjoo 'sanssi buipuod ajgeadijou ui buiynsau
‘skem}ooy pauledp Ajiood pasualladxa pajpne
S9)N0.J 3WOS pue sjualpelh aAIssaIxs aAey

9JjU32 UMO} 3y} UIY}IM SN0 SWOS JI0JW0Y T

'3)n0J 3y} Jo ssauaAldedye ayy Hunoedw
jou A)jedauah ‘@aualindd0 Joujw e aJe uoinyjod
pue asiou diyjeu] "19a43s ay) bujooliano sasnoy

y6nouy) noyhinouy) pauiejuiew adue)jIdAINS
9)eridoadde s| auay) pue wsijepueA jo

92U3PIA3 OU MOYS SN0 Jsow ‘A)jeuonippy
'82U844N220 UoW WO e s| uoljejahan umolbisro
J9ABMOH "paulejuiew 11am Ajjedaush

aJe uojbury ul SAem}o0 :SSaUBAIIRINY L

%98

ssaujoalig

‘|7 abed
uo ¢ depy ur umoys ale | \YYM Y} 1o} s)nsal ay]

%lL

SSBUBAIIRINY

uojbury sso4dD sUOlIPUOd jualind

up|d a4nganuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aaiyspioseiaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

43

Q@

40



Buijpes 02sa) |0 0}
saijiunpioddo jiwl| sSALMIO0) MOLIDN L 2nbig

Bujjoaym pup Bupj|oM S|DLIOJUIOD O} JS1IIDCY D 840 SADM}OO} MOLIDN & 2.n6)4,

Buijeaym

ABUN L 2anbil4

supbliysepad
J9A0 sJ0d asijliolid seoupysip Buissoud apim

€1 24nb

‘peod ay} Buissoud

ajes Hunasy jou a)doad awos uj )nsau Aew yaiym
‘ybiy aq 03 A1331] 84e SIWINJOA D1jje.) BIBYM
Suo0l3e20] ul papirodd sBuiSS0UD Pa)joljuodUN YjM

‘100d S| 81}Udd UMO} 3y} SSoJde uojsirold Buissol)

‘suellysapad
pajybis Anjented 1o pung Joj sahuayeys tenoijied
asod ued yaiym ‘Aemjooy ayy buoje Huijeas Joopino

Aq pajeqiasexa Jayyiny si buimotieu Aemioo4

‘sanssi Ayiqow yym adoad

Joy sabua)jeyd sasod yaiym ‘499435 ybiH pue
peoy J31s32.0/ Jo uonaunl ay) usamjaq papiroad
si qJay paddoup Jo Buiaed aj3oe} ‘uoisiroad
Buissoud o “Jood s| aaualiadxa uerysapad

9y} ‘Yul) yinos-yyiou Aay e buiaq aydsaqg

‘Kep Jad sadiyaa

Jojow 0pg‘9 Jano0 Buikiied (198.41s ybiH sy} o)
uoljeys Aem]led 8y} Wodj UOI}I3UUOI YINos-yjlou
€ S53pIA0Ld YdIym) pUSWIOH BYL, YIM ‘pasdljel)
AJ1ABaY S| 8juad umoy ay] ‘sjujod Buissold pajiwi)
pue skem}oo} molleu Ag pasiiajoeleyd s| a1juad

umo} 8y} punoJe sdualiadxa uerysapad ayj

up|d anpanuysoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) salyspiosaiaH

‘pajenyis aJe s]3j0y pue sjuedne}sad jo abued

B 313YM peoy J9)sa2.0M\ pue 19311S YbiH ‘91zvg
usamjaq uolaun( ayj punoJe paljuad si A}iAlae
2]Wou033 3y} Jo Yanp ‘Aep uopeaT gevy ayy Aq

}SB3 Y}NOS pue }Sam ayj 0} papunoq s| umoj ay|

7961 Ul paso1d Yalym

‘aun Aemjied 19)saan0)19-Aingpa 8y} jo yibua) e
Aisnolraad sem yalym ‘umoy 31103s1y 3y} punode
91N0J $S8J2€ 3)IW Z B S| ]IBJ} UMO] 8Y] 3Jjuad

umo} 8y} ybnouy} sassedAq jiel] umol AingpaT ayl

‘uopuo pue weybuiwig ‘19}S32I0M ‘UIBAIEN
‘pa04a.3H 0} suol}P3UL0I Je)nhas sapiroid

Ya1ym ‘uoieis Aemiied e Aq paalas si Umoj ay)

‘pajsl) ale Yyaiym jo Auew
‘sbuip)ing 2140)s1y jueyiodwi Auew ypm ‘eany

UOI}BAISUO) B AQ PBIaA0I S| 813UdI UMOJ BY |

"341YS13)S9210M\ PUB 3J1ysIa)saanog burinoqybiau
pue aJ1ysplojalay jseq ‘eaJe jeand fuipunolins
3y} 0} 943U32 3JIAI3S A3) B SE S)OB pue plojalay
J0 }sea 3y} 0} sa)lw uaayinoy A)ajewixoidde
pa1e30] S1 3| *(1Z0Z ‘snsua)) 00g‘g A1erewixoldde

jo uonjendod e yym ‘umoy }ayJew e si Aingpa

Aingpai

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

44

Q

42



Sy

44

synses [yim Aingpe] ¢ dop

0'6A 190 341 J3pUN PasUadl] UoHEWLIo}UI 10138S Ngnd SuleIUo)

SIwoN | T
Wo.y PauIeIqo |(0Z 40) B1EP }IOM 0} AR} JO POYIBL SUIRIUOY wy 9°g c0 0

"}28.4Ip pue Asea
Buiag (papiroad asaym) sbuissoud yim ‘peod ayy

0} juade(pe aJe Aay} se saul) adisap uellysapad

/ 13jed o} papinoad aie sAem)oo] :ssaupdauig €
o ‘paAtasqo alam Buipuod
S ~
< ows ul fuiynsau skemjooy pauieap Aj1ood pue
2 & )
(V) \ml . pajou a1am uole}ahian umoihisno jo sasuejsul
> / ~
_mr S s 'sjuawaiedw uoisiA Yyym suosaad Ajlejnonaed 3WOS ‘JAA3MOH "9)B} pue aAIf Jnoy}m siasn
ST ¥
M .\u.@oo/ suerlysapad 1o} sysid A}ajes yuediyiubis buisod }SOW 3)}EPOWWOIIE 0} 3)gE 3JE PUB UOI}IPUOD
¢
- °° ‘ainou 8y} jo Ajiofew ayj oy yussqge aue buiaed poob ul pue 1aA8) 84e sAemioo4 ‘suelljsapad
A 8]132e) pue squay paddoup se suelsapad 10} 91ge1I0JWOD B.IB S9IN0. JSON JOJW0) 7
\ Jnqgpe
\ qapa1 10} 9AISBY0D JOU S| 3)N0J BY] :UOISAY0Y S
) \ 'sjuiod uieliad %
*}99.)S YBiH pue peoy Ja}sadlop 18 yipim Aemiooy ayy yourd yarym ‘yuasaud si
\ ) Jeau AjenonJed ‘suellysapad Joy salynoiip o} uolje}abaA UM0IBI3A0 JO BIUBPIAS ‘JIIAIMOH
o
“m ,w.%vo pes) ued peod 3y} jo jnoke) ayj usaib ‘pancsdwi *3JUBJJIDAINS |BUNJRU JO S]9A3] pooh aney pue
2 m/ﬁ 1eymawos aq pinod ANjiqisiA “Kemiooy modleu aoeyins diub ybiy yjoows e yym paulejuiew jjam
o S
= K3 9y} 0} anp duy4ed} siyy o} Aywixoad 8s0)d ul Aj1sow aae Aingpa ul SAem}00 :SSaUBAIDRINY L
\ suelsapad y)m ‘91elapow a8 UMo) 3y}
ss0.J2e spaads pue sawnjoA diyje.] Kigjes v ‘g7 obed
%00L-%96

%G6-%L6
%06-%98
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L 66€

uo % dejy ul UMOYS aJe JYYM 3Y} 10} S}Nsal ay]

%6 %S L %79
%SGL-%LL — uoisayo) ssaujallqg 1ojwo) SSBaUBAIIIRINY
%0L=%99 —
\\%W\\m — Aanqpa $S049D SUOIHIPUOD jud.Lind

%GG-%lG —
%0G Uey} ss87 ——
afejuadiad J1elaAQ

GZ0Z J9qwianoN up|d a4npanuisoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH __nv:—.—oo D
()

auyspiojaeH



Buiieaym pup Bupyjom
10} JUBWIUOIIAUS SADRIHOUN
up $8J03UD BUNYIUINY J8BMS 7z aanbig

BuI[eaYM 8]qPII0JWIOD O} JaLIIDg b 810 SUyHod mw>cn:3
E A,

Buijeaym 1o} JuswUoIIAUS
9|LJIOJUIOdUN UD 340810 SADM}O00) UsABUN

Bul|2A> pup Buijsaym ‘Bunjjom 10} SJUSWIUOIIAUS
Buiyppiwiul 84ps.5 Bulybi| Jo 39| pup uonpieBan uMmoiBIBAQ

1z-2anbig

0Z:34n61

“Bunybin jo yoe) e pue
pabewep Hulaq skemjooy Buoje Bunied pienb yum

‘JiedaJsip ul SBM SaJUB)SUI 3WOS Ul Weal d1qnd

'sueld}sapad Jo spaau ay} o} Jajed jou
op sa@djuejsul awos ul skemjooy ey buiseamoys
‘seaJe pPadeyINsun SSodde saul) aJ1sap uellysapad

JO INOARY Ul P3SI)I}NIBPUN 219M SARM]00) BWOS

*3]qIssadaeu] skemjooy
apew ‘sajuejsul WOS Ul pue ypim Aemjooy
paanpaJ A1geaspISuod YdIym ‘Umo} sy} ssodoe

JUDPIAS 91aMm SAEM}00) UMO.IBIBAO0 pue MoJJeN

199415 1S9M
1eau }33.)s ay} ss0.4d A1ajes o} )na1yyip 3 Buipuyy
9)doad Auew yym ‘pajou sem uojsiroid Buissoud

100( "JUBPIA® SEM BInjanJisedju; uersysapad

100d JO 3IUBPIAS ‘B13UBI UMO} 3} SSOIDY

up|d ainpanuysoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUNo) aayspiosaiaH

*a4njjuiny 199l1s
pue Huiuaaib 19a4)s jewiuiw yum ‘buryoe) osje si
9J4)Ud2 UMD} 3Y} SSOIJE W)ed. Nqnd “edaisip

ul pue udAaun Buiaq syuswaaed Auew yym ‘Jood
s aunjonJjsedjul bupjiem ‘siyy apdsaq ‘seseds
uaalh snotauab ypm jeyy Ajaane)ad buiaq j ypm
‘Buryjem Joy snoabejueApe s| a1juad ay] "|aAed} jo

S3)IW Z UIY}IM Seade J1e yim ‘}oedwod s umo} ay

'saydJely 3y} Ul suoljeso]

1BJ3U3d pue sa)ep 0) SS3JE Pooh YIm ‘yiy pue
4Y7V 10 SPR0ISS0.D 3y} e pajedo) Ajjeaibajelis
s1}| "19xJew A)yaam Jejnbal e sysoy pue

S9SSaUISN( ]1e33. J0 A}31IBA B 0} BWOY S| UMO] BY |

aJ4lysdoays burunoqybiau ui sabeyyia 1e20)

1BJ3A3s AUIAISS SB []9Mm se ‘Ajunod ayj Jo yjlou ay}
ul saysiied Auew Joj 81}usd ay} S| pue pJaoyalaH jo
yiiou ay} 0} sajlw aA1aM} A)ajewixoldde pajedo)
s111(1z0Z snsua)) 000°zL 4o uoneindod e yym

‘umo} y@yJew ysibu3 1eaidAy e si Jajsuiwoa]

19}SUIWod

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

46

Q@

46



6%

0'EA 190 34} JapuUn pasuadl] UoHeWLIouI 103235 N\gnd SUiejuo)
SIWON
WOy paulelqo [0Z 10§ B1ep JOM 0] 13AE} JO POYIaW SUIeIUo)

S
I\«QG;._MMAEG—ZN

%001-%96
%G6-%L6
%06-%98
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%L9
%09-%98
%GS-%LSG

%0G uey} ssa
afejuadiad J1elaAQ

Street.

—South

Street
2=

RS

s|NsaJ 1YY M Jajsulwoa G doyy

wy 680 Z70 0

‘sjuawaiedwi uoisia yum ajdoad Ajaenanaed
sueraysapad Joj sysid Ayayes yueayiubis buisod
‘a}noJ 3y} jo Aydofew ayj Joj yuasqe ale Huiaed

a)110€} pue sqJay paddoup se suelsapad

w5

10} 3AISaY0D JOU S| 3}N0J 3Y] :uoisayoes

‘Apwixoad 8s0)d ui 8ue suersapad

sueaw yaiym ajnod ayy jo Ayiolew ayj oy

9jeJapow ale spaads pue SaWn|oA diyje.d|

'S19SN Jsow 10} 3jes A)diey si ajnod ay] Kiajes v

J9)suiwioaT] ‘Klisea ss04d 0} sueldysapad Joj jussald

0 9.Je sBuISS0. Pa1]0Jju0d OU BUBYM DIjjel} By} Ul
sdeb a)1gejins aJe a1dy] d1gejIeAR 3J3yMm Saul)
a41sap Mmo)104 sBuISS0.1d pue peod 3y} oy Juadelpe
papiroad Buiag ybnoayy saun adisap uerysapad

J0j 13}ed 0} papirotd ale skemjoo :ssaupallq €

%lL

JSETETS

ssaupalig

‘SeaJe |eljuapisad ul pajou aJe Hupjied Aemjooy
JO S3JUB)SUl BWOS "dY B} pue 3AIB Jnoyym
ssed 0} 3)qe sJasn 1B yum ‘poobh AjjeaidAy

aJe sYipiM AeM}004 "S3JBJINS UBABUN ASNED
ya1ym sjuawaned payoeud A)jeaidA} ‘pajou ale

S}29)9p BWOS INg ‘|9A3] a1e SAeM}004 Jdojwio) 7

‘panroadwy
3q pinod Huyhi) Aeemjoo4 "adue)IBAINS BIN}EU
o s19A9) 9jeridoadde Ajabie) yum ‘wsnepuea jo

32UapIA3 JewWUI “Jiedalsip Joujw ojul Buljjey
8.njiuany 19aJ)s pue uonejahbsa umoubiano jo
S9JUB}SUI BWOS Y)IM ‘paulejuiew 11am Ajjsow

9JB J3)SUIW0dT Ul SAEM}00+ [SSIUBAIPIEINY |

67 abed
uo g depy ur umoys ale | \yYM Y} 1o} s)nsal ay]

506

%0L

SSBUBAIIRINY

%LL

1d0jwo)

J9}SUIWIO0dT SSOJOD SUOH}IPUOD juadind

ST0Z 4oquianoN

up|d a4npanuisoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aaiyspiojelaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

47

Q@

48



¥ spaozoy dijs
20 UPd SADM}O0} UO SBAPS| Ud||D4

spapzpy dijs 89 upd SADMJO0} UO SBADS| US||D4

LR

Lg @4nBi4 0€ &4n

yb6iu je Ajaenonaed ‘eousiiadxe

uelljsapad Jood e pue uole|os

| paynsad
‘35UEB|JIBAINS [BJNjeU JeWwIUIW YHM pajdnod

pue Buissiw sem Buiybi) }89.3s Jo 3d2UIPIAT

‘suelysapad Joj sanss| awos Huisned buipuod
J0 92uUdpIAe Y)m ualedde aiam sadeyins Aiaddns
910ea21)0N "UipIm Aem}oo) padnpad os|e padnpal

yaiym ‘yuasedde sem uonejahan umolbiang

‘padinbal

Buiaq axe} pue aAlb ul nsad pNOM YaIym

i Epe g
BuilaA> pup Buijeaym ‘BuB{jom 10} jusWULOIAUS. .~ > ‘sAeM}00} MOJIBU JO S8IURISUI BWOS pajealpul aAMm

8|qPJIOJWIOdUN UD $8}D8Id Uolipjeban C>>o‘_m._¢>0 2 /T PR D1

BuijoAd> pup Buijeaym ‘Bunj|om 10} SJUSWLOIIAUS
Buiopiwiul aypaud Bunybi| Jo uoypiaben umoibiang gz @anbiy

-U0-SS0Y SSOIJE UIYE}I3PUN SUOIIRAIISHO B)IS

up|d anpanuysopu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) salyspiosaiaH

*apisA1junod Buipunodins ayj ojul

}N0 SUOI}I3UUOD J00d SE ]]aM SE ‘91}uad UMo} ay}
ulyym Jood si sousitadxa 1s11942 pue uelysapad
ay) “enonied uj Jiodsued) Jo sapow |1e 1oy uMo}
3y} puNo.Je JuawaAow YjIm pajerdosse sabuajjeyd

yum ‘Ayoeded Aemyhily paywi) sey umoy ayj

‘sdoys pue
sjuelnejsad jo abued e 0} swoy 39935 YbIH yum

‘908]d 19)4e W punoJe patjuad si A}iAI}oe J1Wou0dy

Y611 umo sy ul uoljeul}sap

}s1ano} e pue ‘Ajunod ay} ojul Aeemajeh juepiodwi ue
}1 @Yew 0s)e }Jom}au Aemiojow 3y} 0} SUOI}I3UUOD
pue eaue jedn. uipunolins ayj 1oy aljusd

32IA13S B Se S)Ie )| (0GIN / 0%V) 4om)au peod

3y} uo pasejd 11am A)jeaibiajedls s1 ahp-uo-ssoy

9k J9AIY 3y} 0} 1xau S| pue Aneag
1ednjeN BuipueisinQ jo ealy ay} UIYHIM pajedo)
S1 1 °000'LL 40 uonendod e yyim ‘a1yspaojalsy ul

umo} }ayJew }sabue) puodas ayj si aky Uo ssoy

9AM-uUo-ssoYy

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

48

Q@

50



€9

52

sjinsal | Yy M 9AM-uo-ssoy 9 doyy

“0'EA 190 3U1 J3pUN PaSUSN) UOREWLIOJUI J0123S 21qnd SUIeIUo)
SIWoN | T ]
WOy PaUIeIGO [|(Z 40} BIEP SIOM O} |9AR.} JO POYISL SUIRIUOY wy | ) 0

‘A)isea sso.d 0} sueriysapad Joy yuasaid

9Je shuISS01d Pa)1043u0d ou BIBYM J1j4eU} BY) Ul
sdeb ajqejins aJe alay] "91qejIBAR 3I3YM Saull
aJ1sap mo))oj sbuissoud pue peo. ayj o} Juadelpe
papiaoad Buiaq ybnouy) saun adisep ueriysapad

10} 193e2 0} papirodd ale sAemjooq :ssaupaaqg €

‘aye} pue aAlf 0} suasn adinbat sasuejsul
3wos ul yjpim Aemjoo4 ‘sjuawaed payoeld se

Yons pajou S}23j3ap aWos YjMm 9k -uo-ssoy

PEOY*proy ey

SS0428 |aA3] }SOW ale SAem)004 :jojwo) Z

sjuswiedw uoisiA yym suosaad Ajaenonaed

bis buisod uasaad

suelsysapad 10} sysid A}ajes jue
‘a)no. ay} jo Ayuofew ay) Joj yuasqe ale Huiaed jou sem Bunybi 1ey) syasuys awos buoje
3]130e) pue sqJay paddoup se suerysapad 32U3PIAS SBM aJ3y] "pajejos| Buiaq saynod Auew @

yum ‘Juasedde sem adue))I9AINS jBINJRU pUB

It

10} 3AISaY0D JOU S| 3}N0J 3Y] :uoisayos
abejuo.y aAloe jo yae) v iedalsip ojul Buley

"peO. By} Ul SPUSQ 3WOS 0} anp suersapad SB paliuapI SeM a1n}juiny }9a.3s pue uone}ahian

10) )N21Ip 1eymawos si ANiqisia ‘Ajjeuonippy umo.biano Janamoy ‘paulejuiew Ajelsush

‘Aywixoad 8s01d ul aue sueliysapad sueaw yaym 919M 9AM-UO-SS0Y Ul SABM]}00 :SSBUBANPRINY L

‘9)eJapow ale spaads pue SaWn|oA dijeld|

9AM-uo-ssoy
'S13sn }sow Joj ajes A)Jiey s| ajnod ay] Ayojes v ‘eg abed
%00l-%96 —— } 9 14184 ylL jes ) eg
%G6-%Lb L uo 9 depy Ul umoys aJe |\yYM 3y} 404 S}Nsal ayL
P
%06-%98 —— &
5
%58-%18 <
%98 %0L VYA

%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99 ——
%G9-%l9 ——
%09-%9G6 ——
%GG-%lG ——
%0G UBY} SS97] ——
abejuadiad NjedaAQ

ssaupalig 1ojwo) SSaUdAIRINY

9AM-UO-SSOY SSOIDD SUOI}IPUOD judlind

up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH __OF_-.—OO D
anyspiojassH @

ST0Z 4oquianoN



Bui2A>
10} YJ1oM}au
p Buidojanag

S20Z JaquianoN

‘Ajunod sy} Joy padojensp

SOM Bul|2AD J0j oMU 8y} Moy asupwwns |[Im Jadoyd siy |

up|d a4npanuysoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [19Uno) aalyspioseiaH

54



LS

41YSpPJ0J8I@H SSOIDD YIOMIBU YUl L dopw
S9SN 'VSYN/ILLAW
'Ov4 ‘aJenbs.inog ‘uiweg ‘JY3H 1S3 YN 1S3 ‘S9SN "YVI9I 1IST _ ! _
0'EA 90 34} JapUN Pasuadl) UoleWIojul 10333s ajgnd suleue)
pnouis o, Ier_ 0¢ Sl 0 puewsg :m_I -
>
= IYINSHLNOWNOW =
5 = O\ K9] N LN3IMOD
NYN3IVv1g
gEAgdd puewsg mo] ——
puewaq yui]
uoneunseq / uiblug Aey o
ealy Apms dIMMIT {23
Asepunog aayspaojaieH [
i —
\ Lo
" "J8)sulWoa] pue ak\-uo-ssoy
! JO suMo} 19y.Jew ayj ui paiedo) Hunako Joj puewsp
/
/ ybiy jo syexd0d yym ‘K)o plojalsy ulypm paljuad
S| puewsap jey) smoys LG abed uo £ dep
'siskjeue
puBWap PauIquod 3y} WO.l PAALIIP Saul) aJISap
bieays yum Alunoa sy ssouoe syuawaines bupjun
‘suol}d3uu0d 3sayj sajedisn))l LG abed uo £ dep
‘saul] a4Isap ojul s1y) ajejsuedy pue jaadiajul o]
daisutuiaspply|
saul| aaisaq Aay
§
N
GZ0Z 49qWanoN up|d ainpanusougul Buieaym Bunjjom BulaA) (0507 [1uno) aulyspioseieH __0_.._—.—8 D
anyspiojassH ‘R

56



0
N
o
I
o
o
Q
£
]
>
o
P-4

Herefordshire Council Local Cycling Walking Wheeling Infrastructure Plan

Herefordshire

Council

O

Route alignments

The routes identified are listed below:

Following the identification of key desire lines,

route alignments following the highway network

Hereford City Centre to Withington

1

across Herefordshire was undertaken.

2. Hereford City Centre to Credenhill

Following analysis, six cycle routes, which aligned

with key desire lines and the highway network

3. Kingstone to Hereford City Centre

were identified.

4. Leominster to Kingsland

These six routes took into account a range of

small villages along their alignment, emphasising

5. Leominster to Luston

the importance of viewing the LCWWIP as a

coherent network across the county.

a1
N

6. Ross-on-Wye to Hereford City Centre

s !‘ m'
ﬂs;w,. - w,n.d...

N S
¥ y e 1!“:“
i M, QP{‘/‘ W ,' \’ ’m',' “d‘ur“

f ¥ L ”
"‘w .L!M"?'M ']i i' ‘z::” .’ ““l:"

\
.’",’{ :,‘:;’&

M‘ll M\‘

‘ -
i

vJ >M

‘\h‘ ) t\t‘ \\\ m‘t""\‘\
. ‘ \“d‘ ! 6“
\ nm\mw

58



p FLYIVETT
91242 ay} buijipny

ST0Z JaquianoN

911YspJ0ojo49H $S042D sajnoJ BuldAd Joy usypliepun

som jpy4 ssasoud Buljipno sy} asupwiwins |[Im aaidoyd siy|

up|d a4nganuysouyu) Buieaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [19Uno) aalyspioselaH

60



€9

‘splepuels

1eUOlIBU Y}IM BUl) Ul JuswsaAul pajahiie) apinb
pUE SUOI}IPUOD JUBLIND B}BNIEAS O} PAWIE YIIYM
‘JUBWISSASSE SIY) JO SBAII3[qo ay} 0} pajIns

Japaq sem 5079 ‘Bujuuerd synod jeniul oy (njasn
SI (1SY) 1001 UOIIB1AS BIN0Y B} 3)IYM "1oedwi
}s9)ealb 9y} aABY UBD SJUBIBIUBYUD 3IBYM SeaJe
BuiAyuapl pue aunjonuysedjul bulisixa huissasse
Joy a)qeniea Ajiejnaijed j1 seyew adualiadxa Jasn
-pua ayj uo snooj s}| ‘'sjuswanoidwi asijiorid
djay pue Buiyjew-uo|sioap paseq-aduapir’

oddns jey) sa10ds a)qelpuenb sajelsusb 5079

'sajnod 6und4o jo ssusiiadxa

pue Ayjenb ayy jo maia e Buliayo asuerndwod

pue ‘ssaujdalip ‘}Jojwod ‘A}ajes se Yons s1ojoey
K3y sajenjeas 5079 aunynuisedyul bunako jo
JUBWISSASSE Pasnd0j-1asn ‘pajiejap e apiroad o}
Aynige sy 03 anp ssadoud Buiyipne ayy 1oy pajislas
SeM 100} (S071Q) 32IAISS Jo 1aA8] Bundhg sy

|00} 321A498 Jo [aA7 Bulah)

‘Buryled 91240 jo
Ayjigejieae ayj pue ‘6unakd uo sann)d 19843s Aue
10 edwi ‘suerdysapad yjm uoijoedayul ‘saynod

40 A}2JES 181205 By} SISSISSY :SSAUIAIIRINY 'S

‘Buipuiyfem jo Ayjigejieae pue saipioey bunoko
J0 yipim ‘Ayenb 8depIns Jo sws) ul Sal)ioey

Bunaha jo Ayenb sy} sispisuo) Jdojwo)

‘Ainenb aaeyins pue ‘ubisap Aemabeliied
‘spaads s3121YaA ‘d1jjed} JBINDIYSA JO S3WN|OA
Japisuod Ajjeayidads eliaylid Ajajes ay] anol
e Buisn jo A}ajes ay) uodn joedwi siyy moy pue
J1je4) JBINDIYSA 0) pasodxa ale s3s1)24d yaiym

0} Jud)xa 3y} s A}94es Jo snaoy ay :A1ajes

©

*suolpun( ayj ssoud oy buikay Aq pasned shejap
3y} 0} anp .amo) a103s 0} papua} osje suoljoun|
Jofew yym pajaasuajul jeyy sjuawubly "uoidas

pabuojo.d e Joj %z paadxa sjuaipelh aiaym
Ajaenanaed papnjaul osje ale ajnod e buoje
sjuaipedh jo pedwi ay] ‘suonounl je pue syun
uo s)s11942 0} pasned sAejap sJapisuod pue
‘s3)JN0J 3]21Y3A JudjeAInba 0} aAI}R)ad SN0

9242 Jo ssauydallp ay} satedwo) ssaupaliqg

ajnod e jnoybnouy)

aJnjonujsedyul 31942 jo uoisiaoid Jualsisuod
3y} PUB UOIS3Y 0D 3)N0I-BIJUl JBPISUOD OS|e
$.10)2B) UoISaYo) ay] ‘sainod jo Ayiqiba)
anoudwi djay o) buipuiyAem pue ainjondisedyul
BuiaAo pajedipap jo uoisiroid 8y} Jo swud) Ul
yioq sylomiau Bul)akd Japim ulyim ale sanod

pajelBajul ]9M MOY SI3PISUO) ‘UOISAY0)

ST0Z 4oquianoN

0Z/L NLT Wouj 19014x3 507D z¢ e4nbiy

i<
aATRUSYE peal
1581I0Us o aul|
Jubtexs JsuRDe
Jo108] UCNEMEQ

‘Sjqissod 52

BOUBISP Sl-MDI0-BU)-58,
8Ly O} JBSU SE B pUE
ege|ene uopdo 1seuoys
8U) MO0} PinOYS SeInoy

souBIsIg

000L<

P ysaw
Aysuep yomisu
© 0] SaInqUIUCa

|

“UOGZ 10 jpi yssus
© L iomaU B 20 pnoys
wie ayewnin ey “waned pub

)9 O UMD} B} SSCIOE S8IN0)
Jo (pub o) ysatn e apiraid
PIOUS Somsy spkY

oMU
0 hususg

Rewinol eyl
snuyuoo o oy
10 UOTEDIL FES(D
OU LA 3INCH

ey Buope siod
1

e s1siphny

ajnos ayy
40 wpbus ey
st Inoybnaiy)
SISPAS Jo)
UOSINOLY F

“SilBwanow Buisso

‘8jes aunsuBa 0} peunbal 89 AeLl
uosaid aieyp suegaunl 2
Ayreponed ! pauopueqe, oq
30U PIOUS SISIPAD ‘SeNUAoD
S1N01 Y] MOY UMOUS 5
PInOyS SISIRAD — pfRIsU &g
10U PINOUS SUBS @INoi o pu3,
"UOISIAGI Ul ST OU LM
818100 5q PIROYS SSINOY

Supuyte
pue
Aynugue

Bununowsip
INCLM seInol
B0 0} 198UU0D

‘Bunybi) ‘adue))IsAIns 0} pajejad ella)d AjenanJed ‘sajnod ueqJn-Jajul ay} JO a1njeu Jualayul ayj oy anp
©149)140 BWOS UO J3MO] Pa.03s A)jedauab saynoa ueqn-iajul ay} ‘Ajjenb3 -uo 91242 03 bujwodjam 1994 Aay)
Y2I1ym 0} Judlxa 3y} pue sajnod 31343 jo Bull}as |elsush sy} JapISuU0D Jou SI0P IIIAISS JO 19A3] 3y} djdwexs
1o ‘Jusawssasse ay} yhnoayy A)32a.1p paJapisuod jou aue jey) syuiod A3y 03 UsAIB 0S|e Sem UOI)RISPISUOD
‘sypne ay} Jo Jed sy ‘M0)aq pajsl] SaWaY} Al 9y} SS0Je pealds Sjuswssasse ay) Ul SJ10)oey BulI0ds X GZ

aJe 313y "sajnoJ a103s 0} WajsAs Buliods (9yy) udaalg Jaquiy pay a)dwis e Sasn 100} 3JIAIAS JO 13A3T 3y

9Al} 3y} JO yoea Jo uondiIdSap e pue 9)NoJ UBQIN-Ia)ul YIes SSIIBWWNS 0} PASn Sem (z/| 310N Jlodsue.|
18307 5,140 @Y} WOJj JUBISSISSE 3IIAIIS 40 |9A3T 3y "salyjioe) Buiroddwi Buipiroad Joj adods ayj pue

Buia4a Joj suonipuod Bunsixa Malrald 0} paja1dwod auam sjUSWUBIE |1B UO SJUSWSSISSE 3JIAI3S-J0-]9A37]

SO71D) 221A43s }Jo [9A9] Bulph)

1OULED SISIPAT)

sun
16U pue 3|
Jepsuco Aisee

Pue uio ABJES ple Aises
01,5198 54 PINoUS SSIPAY

Wwow:
ejdipuud ubisaq

*M013q P3QI1IISap S| S10}0€) Ulew

up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH

suolzauNon

"ainjon.jselyul 31942 pajealpap jo uoisirodd ayy pue

auyspiojaeH

54

Q@

62



ueylysapad jeyy A1y si 3| "'yied asn paleys pue
Kemabeliaed ay) usamiaq abian sseub e jo waoy
3y} ui papiaodd Jayng e yum ‘Aemabersaed ayj o}

juadelpe yjed asn paseys e sapirold golyy YL

's1S11242
Joy uoisino.d Jood Buipiroad Jnogepunod ggyy pue
€07V @Yl yum ‘sembng uoypalis aeau Ajienanaed

‘53511942 J0j d1jewa|qoad a1e 83no.d 3y} JO SUOI}IBS

")00.1g J0ZEBA JO SUOI}I3S

BuldA> oy £ i ] { . peou-jj0 Buimo))o) Juswubie ayj yim ‘eynod
JuswiuodiAus Bulppiwiul UD 84p81d ol
SADM}OO} MOLIDU PUD DYJDI} 4SD4 /€ 24nBig a1nsia) Jeindod e Ayenjued Apeadje s ajnod ayL

‘kemabeliied uo bunaAo 1oy asuariadxa yueseajdun

ue Bupeaud ‘sysioka 1oy sainayylp Juasald aljusd ‘3INWW0d
K312 3y} UIY}IM pasSSaUIM S3WINJ0A dijjea) YybiH Ajiep a1ayy ojul y1odsueuy jo sapow aAloe
ajeJodiooul 0} sjenpiaipul Joj Ayunyioddo ue oy

'8NSS| UB S| 32UB||ISAINS 1BIN)RU Kem ayj Buiaed ‘aajusd A)1d ayj o) eaue sy} woly %
pue Bunybr ing ‘a13uad A}12 ay} Jeau suo1yIas peod SU0[}03UU0D 3JinbaJd oYM S|BNPIAIPUI JO JusWYd}eDd
-1J0 uo papinoud si uoisiroad 31242 Ayjenb poog yb1y e Buiaey Ajjenusiod anod ay) ul s}nsaJ Sy
*s3511242 40} uleassy Buibuaneys ‘pJojalaH 4vy ‘Algejou jsow
Buipiroad jeluajew 8so00) padsegnsun Jo saduejsul ‘sqny jusawAhojdwa pue saljiuawe Aay o0y Aouaselpe
yum ‘s)qissaddeul buiaqg anod ay) Jo suoldas 95012 S)I S| @JN0J SIY} JO dNISLId)oRIRYD A9y V¥

UIB}I3D PUNO) U3YB}IAPUN SUOI}BAISSO 3}IS

Bu1j2A2 10§ SJUSLLIUOIIAUS 8|qDEIOJWI0D 8}03ID siNod BulpAd ppou-JO g 2.nbiy

"allysplojalay ui ysiied JIA pue

$8|242 [PUOIJUSAUOD UOU JO 8SN 40) MO|[D syjod SpIpM ¢ 2unfig BuijoAd qeanjeu aBe))IA B IYUSPaIY) SPJEMO] PIUSI SEM pUBLUSP
9|0JIOJUIOD O} $I814I0] 84D S|} PadLMNSUN  £f 2anbiy ; :

184N Ss)1 udAIB ‘Mo) aJe 83noJ siy} buoje sswnjoa 1By} pPaysI|qe)se uayeapun siskjeue 1ayiin4

ll'lyuspai) o} pioyaiaH

up|d a4nganuysoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH __nv:—.—oo D

auyspiojassH R

64



L9

sinsaJ BulaAs aupue) AjD paojalsH of [lyuspald

g dopwy

‘(€A 190 341 Japun pastisan UonewLI0juI 10235 J1gnd suiejuoy

SIWON
WOy paulelqo |10z 10§ B1Ep %JOM 0] |3AB] JO POYIaW Sulejuo)

pJojaiaH

%001l-%96 ——
%G6-%l6 —
%06-%98 ——
%G8-%18
%08-%9L
%GL-%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%l9 —
%09-%9G ——
%GG-%lG ——
%06-%9Yy ——

%S -%lYy ——
%07-%9€ —

%GE UBY} SSOT] =
0&0?.&0.-&& Ned4aaQ
21035 5079

%m,v_\

oLy b.@e@.

Uewoy

nyuspaig

66

'suol}Ias

peoU-§40 "BIA ‘43udd A1 9y} Jeau juajerald
aJe subisap Jsjes ‘siy} 83dsaq 'SaWN|0A Jijjeu}
Jojow Aaeay Jeau Ajaejnaiaed ‘s e asod
Kemabelaaed Bulieys usym pue suoidun| teau
spaads yhiH ‘s9121yaA Jojow yym Aemaberiied
ay) aJeys s)s1)242 auaym pasiwoldwod

S| ajno. ay} jo A}ajes jjedano ay] :Ayejes ¢

'S$)S11942 10§ JIojwodsIp

pue ‘Jioy9 ‘awiy ay) buiseasour Ayenjuajod
‘sjyuaipedh o} anp sabuayjeyd juasald suoijdas
BWOS J9ABMOH "S3]21Y3A Jojow se suoljoun( e
sAejap Jejiwis adey s3s1194) 'sdojs 1o Akem anibh
se Yons suoldn.lajul |ewiuiw YjIm ‘a)qejieAe

"aNss| UB 0s]e S| suo1I3s ay) buoje

Buyaed 81245 Jo aduasqe ay) "paxyoollaro buiaq yied piemuopybiedis ysow ay) Huimoyjoy

jou 3jno. ayy pue bunybi Jood o} anp Ajajes 10041p Ajjueuiwopa.d s 93nod ay] ssaupdaldlq z

1B120S JN0QE SUJIIIUOI YHM ‘SSIUBAIRINE ©
Lo

11BJ3A0 S)IB] 3)}N0J dY] SSIUBAIIBINY S ‘ubisap uoijoun( sood Aq 1o aheubis Aq papus,

aJe sajnod s)s1)2A2 a1aym saouejsul Auew ale

ST0Z 4oquianoN

‘sdew aJay) pue ajnoJ ay) Huoje ajebiaeu pue ulof
uo Buikjaa 1noyym uojiebiaeu pre o3 parosdwy Kj94es pue Ases 0} 91ge jou aue s)s1)24A3 ‘8ol

9Q PIN02 Yd1Iym ‘@3noJ ayy Jo yanw Joy juasald ayy Jo Ajuolew ay) 404 "s3s1124d U0y ddualiadxa

jou si Buipuiykepy 'suoljpuod Aemaberaied pajoauuod e apiroad 0} S)ie) 9IN0J 3Y] (UOISAY0Y L

Jood pue sajoyjod Aq paytew ‘Ayenb aseyins

Jood sey Ajjesauab ajnou ayj Jdojwo) v ‘19 abed uo g depy ur umoys

aJe anoJ BunaAkd Bunsixa sy} Joj synsad ayl

%S% %08 %E€8 %EY

SSaUaAIRINY Jojwo) ssaupa.IQ uoisayo)

ajnou ay} buojp Buid4> a0y suoljipuod Buiysixy

up|d a4npanuysoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioselaH __nv::oo D
anyspiojassH @



sspdAq
91242 fnoypim sAomenib Ajiold  zi 2anbig

D1} UOU 10} sanssi A

1s$9200 8sod suslupg Ly 24nbig

$9JN0J B[94 U0 SPDOI g PUD \f ASNQ Of SOAIJOULISHD S|qD}INS 8 UDD SPOOJ AHUNOD JBINGD 11 iy

Bui|oA> 10y syuswiuoliAuS Buliopiuwiul
840812 SPDO. AIJUNOD UO S8UD| 8|2Ad PaPIIPap JO Y207  #E 24nbiyg

SR R

e

9% NON 40 8Boubls i 2infis

i 3

2aualladxa Bunaka ayy jo uondnisip
ayj ul pajnsaJ (sajeb Buissiy 6°8) sialiieq ing

‘a1nou ay} Buoje juasaud Ayenaed sem Buipuiyhepm

*51511942 10§ JUBWUOIIAUD

Buibuayieys e pajuasaud Yalym d144ea3 Yyjm paxiw
Aemabeliaed uo 6unako pasinbal pue payaiyedy
Klineay sem inq ‘9% 81noy NJN se pajeubissp si
G9¥7Y 3yl 'S3s1)2A2 J10j uoisinodd BuISS04d oU Yym
‘sal)|n21yIp pajuasaLd 0s)e Juow)ag Jeau Goyy
pue ¢ygyg dy) usamiaq uopdunl syl ydwgg

Jo ssadxa ul spaads yum ‘paydiyjel) A)ajesspow

Sem y7£7g U} 1oy} PajedIpul SUOHRAIRSHO YIS

a1nod Akemybiy
JJ0 pajeaipap e buipirodd ‘Aepy ulajsapy 1ealg

3y} "BIA 243Ua3 A}I2 3y} 03Ul SANUIIUOI 3)N0d BY|

"Jaed A1juno) poomAeH juowyag
pue aueT Jjeyyony eia juowag o3 Huipsuuod
940j3q Jabuoya1) jo aben)ia News ayy ybnoayy

Buissed ‘)sam-yiiou ayj o} 4£t7g ayy buimonoy Aq

aJjua) A9 ayjy o} auoyshury spPaUU0D 33n0d Ay

'saeak Juadal Jano spuswdojansp
fuisnoy mau jo jnsad e se uoneindod enjuapisad
Buimoub e se 1am se (jooydas ybiy auojshury pue

100yYds Alewiid uoixniy] 5 auojshury) sjooyss
om} 0} awoy si abeyjia ay) A)d pJaojalaH jo
}S®M-U}NO0S PIJENYS S| PUB 3IYSPIojaaH jednd

ul abe))ia abae) pue ysiied A1 e S| suolsbury

p10j9.49H o} auojsbuny

up|d a4nganuysoupu] Buipeaym Bunjiom BulpA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

57

Q

68



1L

sjnsa4 Bul|pAd aupus) AjID piojaisH o} suoysbury 6 dowy

%001l-%94 = o521 Sl _
%G6-%Ll6 —— P
%06-%98 ——

%G8-%l8 ——
%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99 ——
%G9-%l9 —
%09-%9G ——
%GG-%lG ——
%0G-%97 ——
%SG7-%lY7 ——
%07-%9€ ——
%GE UBY} SS9 ——
abejuadiad NedanQ
94025 S07) &

auojshury

8,
o%.@o‘
o
o

5100500

L 19buoya))

~

SUey-jesEny

Aem wszisap 1eaug

piojalaH

Kemabelaaed ayy bulieys ayy bulieys sisijaka uj
Buynsau ‘sys1242 oy speod Auewrid om) asay)
Buoje papinoad si uonebhaibas oN ydwgy si
67€79 pue G9yy ay) buoje ywi paads ayy usnb
ydwgg spasdxa Aemaberried paleys jo suoidas
uo paads d1yjed) 10Jo "SISI1AI J0j SUIBIUOD

Ayajes sjuasaud ajnod ayj ‘NjedsnQ Aysjes ¢

‘papinodd Bupjaed 91942 84n2as Jo yae) *s1s112A2

e S| 918} pUB |RWIUIW S| 13}IN]d }98.1)S ‘Seale 104 110JW03SIp pue ‘}110ys ‘awiy 8y} Buisealdul

958U} Ul SaUB) |ednd SMO]10§ d)N0 3y} By} UdAIh Anenusjod ‘syusipe.sh oy anp sabuajjeyd jussad

67€7d ay3 pue aueT Jjeyyony Buoje Ajenonaed SUOI}29S dWOS ‘19ABMOH "S3]1Y3A Jojow se

‘Hiun Aj}sow s| 3}n0J BY] SSBUIAIDRINY 'S suonoun| je sAejap Jejiwis adey sisiah) ‘sdoys

Jo Aem aalb se yans suondnaiajul jewuiw

ST0Z 4oquianoN

'sdew yum ‘ajgejieae yied piemiopybielys jsow

0} J3ja.4 0} paJinbau Buiaq s3s1)243 |eI0)-UOU UY 3y} BuImo])0) ‘}28.1p S| 310U BY] SSauUPAIQ T

s)NsaJl yaiym juasaud s| Buipuykem paywi) ng

‘ajnoJ ay} noybnouyy sis1a4d Joy paujejuiew *3n04 3y} Jo Aynunuod ayy sabewep

Ajjeaauab ale syipip JuapiAs sajoyyod "3 yaIym gi7e7g ayi buoje jewriuiw st buipuiykem

S}09Jap Joujw awos yym ‘adeyins duib ybiy ‘Aneuoyippy ‘sajeb jo asuasaud ayj o} anp

yjoows e sey Ajjedauab ajnou ay] :jdojwoy v yded Adjuno) poomAeH juowiag Buriajua usym

Ajaenapaed ‘qunowsip o} paJinbad aue sjujod

o148} Jojow wody pajebaubas s| anod ule}ad je sisi19A) aduariadxa bunako anisayod

3y} jey} usAIb sasealdul 3nod ay} o A}ases ay) e apiAo.d 0] S)iej 33N0J 3} 1BIBAQ (UOISBYOY L

(M4ed Ayuno) poomAeH juownag ‘Aep udsissm
1eaug "9°1) 343uad A}12 3y} SPIBMO} }SBS SAINJUSA ‘L. abed uo ¢ dep ul umoys

3)N0.J 3y} SY "S321Y3A Jojow paads ybiy yyum aJe ajnoJ Bunako Bunsixa sy} Joj synsad ayl

%69 %S

%S%

SSaUBAIIRINY

Jojwo) uolsayo)y

ajnou ay} buojp Buid4s a0y suoljipuod Buiysixy

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

up|d a4npanuisoapu) Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspioseiaH

70

(e}
Lo

Q@



Bui2Ad 1oy sjuswiuoliAuS
S|gLIOJUIOD 813D $8JN0J BUIDAD pROI-HO ¢ 2.nbiy

SMOHS 1Hon
N33O WNN
SH3H UVM

}931JG UOS|aN U0 iy NDN40) aboubis o —unfiy

pooy ubig uo [oluod dIYDI| G Sunbig

*S19SN 19AR.I} BAIIR 10} 3210YD Pajiwl] Ul SHNSal
aulpaembnT pue uojBulyip wouy a13uad A3 ayy

SS9228 0} S3)N0. 3AI}RUIR}E JO A}ISUBP MO] By

‘a1doad j}sow Joj a)geynsun

Ajuaauna sy (uonebaibas ou yym Aemabelriied uo)
Buna4a 10y uoisiaoad jusaand ayy Bulueaw ‘}sixa
gcyVy 9y} Huoje spaads pue sawnjoa aiyeuy ybiy
1By} PaWLIIJU0d pJojalaH 0} uoibulylipm wouy bundko

1oj suo

IPUO JUaJINI 3y} JO SUOIIRAIIS]O B}IS

'9]qISed) Jou S| AUBW 10} |9ARI} BAI}IE ‘B3R S|y}

0} 19ALJ) J0j a41sap Buodys ay) aydsap ‘aaojaiay)

‘saijoey} bunaho pajehaibas jo yoe) e pue spaads
‘sawnjoA Jiyjedy yhy uaalb ‘sydoad jsow oy
91qeynsun aJe HunaAd Jo Bupjiem Aq suoipsuuod
‘peoy pJojalaH jo ainjeu d1bajel)s ayj uaalb
JaA9MOH "uolBulyiM pue aayua)d Ayg piojalay
UIYIM suo13ed0] AgIeau wody 19AL.} S)00Y3s yjoq

PUBHE OYM UBJPTIYD 008 PRIRWIISS BY) Jo Aue

"(100y2s ybiy

J1j0yje) Uuewoy sAuep IS pue j0oyas Atewlid
auipsembn-]) sjooyss om o} swoy ‘abe)jiA jews
e os|e s| pue uojbulylipm JO Yinos ayj 0} pajenyis
sI auipiembn-] "a43uad A)d ayj oy auipiembnT

S}o9uu0d 0sje anod Buiako pajaa)es ayl

"€0LYV "BIA pJojaJaH 0} paj2auuod si pue
uonjeindod Buimoub e sey )| “pJojalaH Jo 1sea you
sa9)lw g Aj@Anewixoldde pajenyis ‘aaiysplojalay

ul ysided 11A10 pue abejia jews e s uoybuiyipm

p40ja4aH of uobuiyym

59

72

up|d a4npanugsoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspiojeiaH __OF_-.—OO D
alyspiojaisH




74

sjinsau BulpAd aupua) AllD paojaisH o} uolBuIyHmM

oL dow

‘as anqnd suiejuo)
SIWoN
0 poyiaW suiejuoy

%001-%96
%G6-%L6
%06-%98
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL~%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%L9
%09-%9G
%G9G-%LS
%0G-%9Y
%SY7-%LY
%0%7-%9€

%GE UBY} ssaT
abejuadiad NedanQ

81035 S07)

auipsembnT

SuesraloH 1818

uoibuIyim

6ua£d a)qerlojwod 1834 jou pjnom ajdoad
}sow ‘uoijehaufias ou s| aJ4sy) jey) usAIb dlyedy
Jojow Yyym paxiw 31243 o} padinbad aie sisnako
SY "000'LL 4O SS89X3 Ul 3B SSWN)OA djje.} Jojow

pue jwi) paads jeuoljeu ayj 0} }23[gns S| ya1ym

geyy ayy buoje Ajuejnaned ‘pasiwoldwod

s| ajno. ay} jo A1ajes jjelano ay] :Kisjes

o

pJ1ojauaH

‘(s1eubis

se ssedAq '6'a) saunjes} Ajuolad 91245 Jo yoe)

8y} uaAIfb s3121yaA Jojow Joj Aejap ay) 0} Jejiwis

s| @jnoJ ayj Huoje suonoun( je s3snaAa oy

sAejaq "a43uad A}13 8y} yym uojbulylipm 128uu0d

*anoJ ay) buoje a)qejeae s bupyaed 812k 0} suoldo aAljEUIB}|E JO ¥}IB] BY} 0} paINqLI}e

ON "214Je4) yum paxiw Aemabeliied uo bunako ‘19941p A1@1euiwopald s| 83nod ay) issaupddag T

0} paJinbau aJe 53511949 se ajnou 3y} Jo Jnsad

e se pajoedwl Jou S| 13A3) }J0JW 0D URLIISIPad ‘ubisap uoljoun( sood Aq 1o abeubis Aq papus,
*3Jnjeu jednd Jiay} uaAlb payoo)Jano jou aJe ing aJe sajnod s)sipAd a1aym sasuejsul Auew ale
‘W) ANjedauab s| ajnod ayj 4O }SOp [SSAUBAIDEINY 'S aJay) pue ajno. ayy Huoje ajebiaeu pue ujof

Kj94es pue Ases 0} 91ge jou aue s)s1)24A3 ‘8nol
*sjuiod uoisioap Aay e paroidwi aq ayy Jo Ajuolew ay) 404 "s3s1124d U0y ddualiadxa

pIN0d inq ‘a1no. ay} Buoje a)qerdadse Ajjenaed pajoauuod e apiroid 0} S)iej 9IN0J BY] (UOISAY0Y L

s| abeufis "piey sulyoew si yoiym adeyns diab

ybi1y yjoows e sey Ajjedauah aynod ayj :jojwo) v ‘gL abed uo g| dejy ur umoys

aJe anoJ Bunako Bunsixa sy} Joj synsad ayl

%GY Y7
SSaUBAIRINY Kiajes

ajnou ay} buojp BuidAs a0y suoljipuod Buiysixy

%77

uolsayo)y

ST0Z 4oquianoN

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

up|d a4npanuisoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aaiyspioseiaH

60

Q@

74



LL

§ < 3

SPOOJ AJJUNOD UO SISUJOD puUllq 8}03Id Upd sabpsy oG 2.nbiyg

| suoldun( ybnouyj spaads ad1yaa ybiy aboinodus suoyoun( Buideams ‘0bio] 61 2.nbiy

SR NP SOt ST L

uojsy uojonT
puejsbuiy

SIS1|9AD PUD SIB[POYM ‘SIS¥|OM
Usam|aq SPIIPJUOD 8snbd Abw 8o syjod MoLIDN /1 2anbig

J9§SUlWoaT peauig MoquIny i Sanfig

s S = .

*(Aep Jad s3)21yaA Jojow goQ‘L ueY) SS31) Moy Auan
9B SBWNJOA J1jj.} BI9YM ‘BUBT 34049 puUe |9ghg
8y} SM0110§ pajipne ajnoJ ayj Uajsulwoa] pue

UO0}SNT WO PUB 0} SUOI}IBUUOI PI}IWI) Y} UBAIG

'sunoy om} K1aAs
auo Ajajewixoadde ‘Ajaeinbadl bujuuna sasng ypm

‘pajiwil] 8. U0ISNT Ul S3JIAJS JJodsued) angnd

"J1jed) J0jJoW YyuMm paxiw Aemabeliied

uo 31242 0} pauinbau aue aydoad Hujueaw ‘sanioey
bunafo pajebaibas ou Buiaey 19k g ayl Yum
‘pajiwi] 3.4e suolldo 19ARI} BAIJIR 1B)SUILI0DT WOy

Aeme sajiw ¢ Ajorewixoadde Buiaq uojsn sydsag

"19)SUlW0a ojul
pue abeyia ayy ybnouayy Aj1ejnonaed diyjedy 1eao)
ur a10. A3y e sAeyd 111is Inq ‘19gvg 8y Buisnnn
J1jjeJ} J0JOW Ul UOI}INPaU B Ul paynsal sey 47y
8y] 4%V 8y 0} Jolid peoJ MOJpNT 0] U3)SUIWO0DT
snolrald ay) Sem UYdIym ‘|9eig ayj BIA S

19}sUlWoa7 Wo.Jj uoisn ssaddke 0} ajnod ulew ayj

‘(jooyas Asewrad uoisnT) sydnd Gg
Aq papuaye j00yds Atewnud e o) swoy s Inq (1Z0Z

snsuay) Gzg Jo uoneindod jjews e sey abeyia sy

'PeOJ |9Ehg 9y} UO 18}SUIWO0ST JO Ylou Sajlw
¢ Aj@jewixoidde pajedo) s| pue allyspaojalay

yiou uj pajenyis abejia jjews e sj uoysnT

uojsnT O} J9}SUIWOIT

up|d a4npanuysoapu] Buieaym Buniom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aaiyspioseiaH

j1oUNo)
auyspiojaIaH

61

Q@

76



6L

%001-%96
%56-%L6
%06-%98
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL~%LL
%0L-%99
%G9-%L9
%09-%9G
%G9G-%LS
%0G-%9Y
%SY7-%LY
%0%7-%9€

%GE UBY} ssaT
abejuadiad NedanQ

81035 S07)

sjinsaJ Bul2Ad uoysn o} Jajsuioa

1L dow

85 2ngnd suieuoy
“SIWON
0 poyjaw suleyuoy

19)sujwoa]

uojsnT

UG |

GLO

‘papinroad buryled

81042 ou yiIm ‘anssj ue osje s| aynod ayj buoje
Bunyaed 81245 Jo aduasqe ay) "paxyoollano buiaq
jou 3jnoJ ay) pue Bunybi Jood o} anp Ajajes

1B120S JN0gE SUJIIUOD YHM ‘SSIUBAIIRINE

11BJ3A0 SY2B] 3}N0.J Y] :SSAUBAIIRIPY

*saljlj1oey} pajehalbas

Kue jnoypum ydwgy pue ydwgg usamiaq Aiea
Aj3uauand yeauys abplug Huoje sywi) paadsg
*BuISS0.D PB])0JUOIUN UE "BIA 717} DY} SSOIDE
ajebiaeu 0} padJoy aJe s)siakd jeyy buluesw
‘Buisso.ud pajehaibias e apiroad o) syiey iy By}
SS0JJB J3)SUIWO0dT Ul UOI}d3UUO0D 3Y] "S}SI2Kd

1oy ajesun s| ajno. ay} ‘Ajpuaing Ayejes

o

*s3s112A2

10} 110JW0ISIP pue ‘lioyd ‘aw} ay) buiseasoul
Anjenuajod ‘syuaipesh oy anp sabuajjeys jussaid
SUO0I}J9S BWOS JISABMOH 'S3]21Y3A J0joW SB
suonounl je sAejap Jejiwis adej s)siah) 'sdois
Jo Aem aalb se yons suoljdniiajul jewiulw

yum ‘sgejieae yjed piemiopybiedis ysow

2y} Buimo])0) ‘}2841p S| 31N0J BY] SSauUPAIIQ T

‘Aienb aaeyuns Jood sj ‘d144eu) Jojow woly keme
1S1UM YdIyMm ‘8de]d duJoqsQ pue 3s01) sp1aupI0
uaamjaq uolpas Aemybiy Jjo ayy o uondaoxa

Y} YiMm ‘pie) aulydew pue aseyins diuib ybiy

yjoows s| ajnoJ ayj jo Ajuofew ay] poywoy

‘ubisap uoijounl sood Aq 1o abeubis Aq papus,
aJe sajnod s)s1)2A2 alaym saouejsul Auew ale

343y} pue ajnod ayy Huoje ajebiaeu pue ujof
Aj94es pue Ases 0} 9)ge jou aue s)s1)24A3 ‘8ol

ayy jo Ajuolew ay) 404 "s3s1124d Joj ddualiadxa

pajoauu0d e apiroad 0} Sjiey 3)N0. Y] (uoISaYoy I

ST0Z 4oquianoN

%08

SSaUBAIIRINY

up|d a4npanuysoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipA) (0307 [1DUno) aalyspiojeiaH

*6L 96ed uo || depy u umoys

aJe anoJ BuaAkd Bunsixa ay} oy synsad ayl

%08

uolsayo)y

synsay §07D Buysix3z

j1oUNo)
auyspJiojaIoH

62

Q@

78



suoysunf ybnoiy spaads
ad1yeA ybiy aBpinosus suoyoun( Buideams ‘@b

9AM-UO-550Y ‘OpY Y4 Buissosd G a.nbiy

pooy uoydwplg ¢ aunbiy

‘doysig uoydweH pue adoyumo-
"BIA 843U82 A}2 8y} 0} AJIAI}DBUU0D plemuo sapiaold

Ya1ym ‘yzzyg ay} Buoje sanuijuod ajnod ay|

*33no. ay) buoje bunybi) pue asueyjivAlns jeanjeu
40 %3B] 3y} payjuap! 0sie pue aunjeu paxydiye.dy
A1y61) s,)1 pawLIIUOD USYeLIBPUN SUOIIBAIDS(O 3)IS
*(Rep Jad sa121yaA Jojow ppQ‘L UBY) SS3]) paxdLe.)
Aybn A1an si aynod ay) "akp JaAry ayj oy yuade(pe
sun.J yad1ym peod pajjissejadun ayy buimoyjoy

‘yjou peoy uojdwelg SMo])0} 83n0J pajipne ay|

‘|9ARU} 0} S3)2IYdA

Jojow uo Buihja. usamiaq ui sabeyia up pue
pJojaia ‘@hp-uo-ssoy ul BulAl sjuspisad Auew
ul BuiynsaJ ‘sawn)oA d1yjed) pue spaads ybiy usalb
9)1doad }sow .oy a)geaioeadwi si peod siy) buoje
BunaAo ‘UsraMoH "ghV BY3 SI pJojaiaH pue sk

-U0-SS0Y U33M}3(Q UOI}I3UUOI 3]IIY3A Ulew 3y

‘Aoe awoH

pue adoyumo- ‘jepm-ayi-ul-ajoH Buipn)oul sqny
yjoq usamiaq pajedo] saysiied pue sabej)iA jjews
J0 abueds e yjm ‘AJunod ayj sso.de sqny J1Wou0Id

ab.e) yjoq a.Je paoyaaH pue akp-uo-ssoy

‘pJojalaH
JO }SB-U}N0S Y} 0} Pajed0) ‘D41Yysp.oyalaH ul

ysiied JIAID pue umoj }ax1ew e s akp-uo-ssoy

p10j919H 0} 9AM-UO-SSOY

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojaleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

63

Q@

80



€8

sjinsau BuloAd aupuad AlD piojalsH o) 9AM-Uo-ssoy

0'EA 190 241 J5puN_pasusdl) UOHeLLI0JUl 101985 J1gnd SUIejuo)
oN
Wo.y paulelgo (|0 10§ B1ep oM 0} 13AB.) JO POUIBU SUIRIUOD

9AM-uo-ssoy

noqqy uoydwe.g

a1deg Moy

%001-%96
%56-%L6
%06-%98
%G8-%L8
%08-%9L
%SGL-%LL
%0L-%99
%59-%L9
%09-%95
%SG-%LG
%0G-%97
%SY7-%L7
%07-%9¢

%GE Uey} ssa
abejuadiad JjedanQ

81035 §07)

\efﬁ\’a«b

&

adoyumoy

paojipIop

SLT

bm/o
7 ﬁm@.coﬁme/

piojaiaHq

ajnoJ ay) buoje yussaid

si Buyed 91242 oN “ybiu je Aenoinied ‘Aiajes
1e120s Jood jo shunaay jenpuajod syussald yaiym
8JNjeu 1eInd S)i 0} SNP dIUEB)|ISAINS |BIN}RU

pue bunybi syae) sk 191y 3y} oy yuadelpe
SUNJ YdIYyM peoy Ssoy I8ABMOH "} 118M

Anetauab si 83n0. 3y} ‘|BIBAQ [SSIUBAIRINY

ayj jo Ayuofew ay) Joj speo. apIS d1jjed)} Jojow
ypm paxiw Aemaberlied uo bunako sjgejlojwod

199} Jou pinom ajdoad }sow ‘sisi)a4d Joy s

19e4
pajefiaibas ou si 849y} Sy "ydw/g Jo SS9IXd
ul 3q 0} )@y aJe spaads oiyyedy buluesw
‘ydwpg st peou sy} Jo ywi) paads ayj ausym
%7274 @Y} SM0]10} 83noJ ay} ‘djdwexs Jo4

*9jesun ale 3}no. ay} Jo SuoII3S awos :Ajejes

's3s1194A2

40} 1104W0ISIP pue ‘11043 ‘wiy ay) Buiseatoul
Aenuajod ‘syuaipelb o} anp sabuajeys juasaad
SUO0I}J9S DWOS ‘UIDABMOH "S3)I1YDA I0JOW SE
suoljdunl 1e sAejap Jejwis adey sysiPh) 'sdoys
Jo Aem aAlb se yans suondniiajul jewiuiw

yum ‘e)qejieae yjed piemiopybied)s jsow

ayj Buimoyjoy }o8.1p S| 31N0J BY] Sssaupaliq

'sdew o0y 4ajau 0} Huipasu ajnod ayy

9jebiaeu o} pauinbau aq pjnom ajdoad Hujuesw
yuasaud s| abeubis Buipuiyhem jo yae) e pue
9jno. 3y} Buoje ajgejieae sj uoisiaoad 91242 oN
‘papinoad adepans diab ybiy yyum yjoows pie)

aulyoew Aj3sow s 3jn0J dY} ‘1]BISAQ 10wl

*9JN0J 3y} JO suUoII8S

184n. ul paaoadwi aq pinod Buipuiykep 93nou
3y} jo abejs Aue je Junowsip o} paJinba. jou aue
pue snonunuod Bulaq ajno. ay) usalb peoy ssoy
Buoje Ayiejnanled ‘Aaulnol J1ayy o} uondnasip

Jewiuiw aAey s3s119A2 ‘)1eJ3AQ (uoiSayo)

)

ST0Z 4oqWanoN

‘SjuswiaAoW Jljjedy Jojow

pue 31242 Bul}a1)jU0d Y}IM pajealjun ale ajnod

%04
SSaUAAIRINY

‘eg abed uo z| dey ur umoys

aJe aynod Huika buj

Kyases

3 3y} 1o} sjnsad ay)

ajnou ay} Buo|b Bui|d4 a0y suoijipuod Buiysixy

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 DUN0D aaiyspaojaieH

jIouno)
aJyspJiojaIoH

64

Q@

82



p10J249H

ui BuiaAs

pup Bui@aym
‘Bunyjjom 10y}
Buiuup|d Jiom}aN

IouNo
aunyspiojasoH

65



L8

up|diaysopy Al piojeisH jo pod so padojensp yiomiau o242 Aippuodeg pup Aiowlig

©'S9SN 'YYON 'OV ‘UWeg ‘Wolwo] 1153 :s201nos.
0'EA 7190 3U} 13pun PasUBIN UoHERWIOJUI 1038S dM1gnd SUIRIUOD

swsabebu] B
J1gnd J0j sainoy ——
AJewiud pajepijosuo)
Kaepunog Ang pJojassH [ |

ealy ApniS dIMMOT « = J

5207 JequisnoN

€L doy

wy

'8 abed uo g| dep
ur punoy aq ued ueydiajsew A)1d paojalaH sy} jo

jied se pado)aAap YJoM]aU 19ARI} BAI}OR (BIUI Ay

‘AM1qIssadoe pue ‘A}AlPauu0d ‘A1ajes aroldwy
03 paubisap s| y3load siy] A} 3y} jo yinos ay)
ul aanjonayseayul Bunsixa Buipesbdn uo pasnaoy

9.e S3UNSEAN 19ARI] SAINDY peoy AdeT awjoH
ay] "BundAa pue ‘Gun@aym ‘Buiyiem oy saiioey

9JUBYUS 0} pJ0ojaIaH SS0Joe sjuawaoldwl

BuliaAnap A|aAl}ae S| 119uno?) a41yspojalaH

'pJ10jaJaH SS0Joe yJom)au Bulahd oibajelis

Jnsioy e jo yed waoy dijay 0y auiquiod Aay} ‘mo)y

91942 J0 S)aA3] Jamo) aABY Aew Sajnod asay) }s|Iym

pue sajnoJ Auewiad ay} usamiaq yJlomiau Jauly e

9)ea.42 0} djay sajnod 31242 Alepuodas ‘A]asiaruo)

up|d a4nyonuysoayu] Buipaym Bunyiop BulpA) 0207 [1UNo) BulyspiojaIeH

"J134€.4} JO SMO)} 81243 ybiy isijus o} jenuajod

118y} Aq pasiiofiaje aq 1)Im Sa8jnoJ asayy jey)
pajedionue si | 'sqingns Bulinoqybiasu woujy/o) pue
Ay12 8y} ssouoe sdiy oy paubisap aJe pue paojalsH
SS0.2B pasn }sow 3y} A)1eaidA} ale pue ‘speod
ulew MO0])0} 0} pud) S3}N0J AJBWILId SN0 SAI}OE

Alepuodas pue Alewlid Jo pajsisuod yJomlau syl

ydomjau 924> o169}p.44g

'ABajeu)s JuswaAoly ay} jo Jied se
pajejdwod sisAjeue ybnoiy) padojaaap ‘Juswsrow
1511942 1oy ydomiau e uo Buisnaoy ‘aajuad Ao ay)

ur Ayjiqow oy ueld e jno }as os\e Abajeuys ayL

‘pJojadaH jo Ao
8y} ui JJodsuedy 1e20] 40§ Ylomawedy d1fajel)s e
10 13s Yoiym Abajed)s jJuswarow aajsusyaldwod

e Aq pajuedwodoe sem uejdislse ayl

1Jodsued) angnd pue jaAed)

9A12e 40} uoisiroad Ja11aq Yum YJomiau Jiodsued)
pajeabajul ue eyeald 0} Jybnos yaiym ‘A1 ayy Joy
uolsiA e pajealtd uejdiajsew ay] “uejdisisep Aug
pJojauaH yedp e paysiignd 119uno) aJalysp.aojalaH

‘dIMMOT U3 jo Juawdojaaap ayy Buring

A}1> pioja.idH

jlouno)
allyspIojoIsH

66

Q@

86



68

© ‘S9SN 'YVON ‘0V4 ‘UllLIeg ‘Wojuio] ‘1iS3 :$92.n0S

/A 7190 U} J3pUN PasUEDI] UoNeLLIo}uU] 103285 21gNd SUIEIUCY

(S}uBWWOY 112UN0Y
Buimonjoy) syuswpuswy - — —
a1noy Auewid pasodoid
swsabebu]
211gnd 10§ s8N0y ——
AJewlid pajeprjosuo)
Kaepunog Aug pdojadaH [

r—-

eauy ApMiS dIMMIT « -

AJ12 plojeisH $s0U0D yiomau o242 Aippuodeg pub Aiowlig

¥l dow

wy v [4

5207 JequisnoN

»}oeqpas)
1321440 UO paseq }IoM}au 31942 Kiepuodas pue

Alewrid pasiaad sy syuasald 48 abed uo | depy

'SEaUe |BIJUBPISA] PUB SUOIIRUNSAP
Ao 0} suol}dauU0d pue ‘A}1ajes eldos paalsdlad
‘AiAnoe BunaAo Jusuand uo paseq saAljeulsye
@1noJ jewndo Buikjizuspi ‘ylomiau 81241 Aiepuodes

ay} Buruiyal uo Ajliewrid pasnaoy s1ad140

“domiau
91242 aalsuayaadwod e Huiysiqelss jo jeoh

9102 ay) Buiatasaud ajym syuawysnipe Huyew
PBAJ0AUI SIY] "SYJOM]IBU BY} dUljaL 0} asijladxs
pue afipaimouy 1e20) J1ay) pandde oym ‘saadiyjo
shkemybiy 11ouno) aJ1yspaojeaH 0} pajuasald os|e

9J9M syJom}au 81242 Auepuodas pue Auewrd ay)

‘pasn aq o} A)ay1] 1sow

asoy} yym paubie sanod pasodoud ayy Hurinsus
‘sydomiau 91242 Auepuodas pue Asewrad ayy
ajepiea o} sbuipuly uejdisisew sy} yym pajeabajul

SeM dIMD 3y} 40 paonpuoad siskjeue ay|

jJuswoabobuz 195440

abpajmouy |po0o| Bulppy

up|d a4nyonuysoayu] Buipaym Bunyiop BulpA) 0207 [1UNo) BulyspiojaIeH __OC—.._OO
alyspaojosoH

67

Q@

88



16

S9SN 'VYON ‘0v4 ‘UlLieg ‘Wojwo) ‘1153 532105
'§A 190 34} J3pUN PaSUR3N oI EW.IOJU 101295 J11gnd SUIEIUE)

ajnoy
919A9 Auewug pasodoud

Kaepunog A9 paojeteq []

r—---

ealy Apnis dIMMOT « - 4

A1 piojeisH ssouoD yiomiau o[2Ad Aupwilid

5207 JequisnoN

sl dow

wy

"]aAeJ)} aA1}2e Buipnioul ‘Jiodsuedy jo sapow

11e Joj syudwanoadwi asjjuorid o3 A

e ay} pue
1043U02 1€20] J3}ea4h MOJJE PINOM SIY] '12UN0Y

ay) 0} peou ay} Joy Ayiqisuodsad Buriisjsued)

‘6¥7Y 3y1 Jo Bupjun.y-ap ayj ajqeus pinod i ‘ping
sI ssedAg ay} uaypm “Ayunjioddo oibejelys e

sjuasaud ssedAg paojauaH pasodoud ay) UaramoH

'3jnod

s1yy buoje aunjonJjsedyul buiaho o ‘Bunasym

‘Bunjiem o} syuswanoidwi JaAnap Ajpuspuadapul
0} 9](E }J0U S ]I2UN0Y 3y} ‘}|NSal e Sy "|Iouno)
841YSpJ0jadaH JO 1043U0D 231 3Y} BPISINO S]1B}
aJo0jaJay) pue shemybiH jeuoljeN Aq pabeuew

Ajjua1una si g7y ay) Jeyy ajou o) juepsodwi sty

'91q1SE3) 3U3YM 47y 3y} SsoJde sjujod

Buissoud pase)d Ayjeaibiajedis ybnoayy syui }sem
-1sea aaueyua oy buiyass osje ajym Aep) ulaisapm
1e8.g 3y} Jo ainyonJisedyul bunsixa Ayenb-ybiy
8y} jo asn Bupjew Aq suoloauuod ynos-yiiou

fuo.ys ajeald 0} suojjelidse s}oa)jad YJoMmlau ayL

"2B(P3) PUB M3IAB
10} s1ap)oyayels Aoy 0} pajuasald auam yalym
‘A}12 8Y) ssoude sajnod 91241 Asewyud pasodoad

paulad sy} sajedysny)i |4 abed uo g| depy

‘a]qe|ieAe Apeadje sem
3)N0J BAl}RUIS}E 3](R}INS B 8J3YM SUOIUBAIBIUL
1no Bullayly pue ainjonJsedju) ajge)ieAe uo

paseq yJomjau ayj Buideys paajoaul ssasoud siyy

k)12 8y} ssouoe Buieaym
pue ‘Burjiem ‘6uiakd Joj yJomiau jualayod e
USI]1qe)Sa 0} U3YBLIapUN SEM YJOM Juswaulyal

Jayyany ‘suadiyo yum juswabebus Huimoro4

sajnspawl

Aipjuswajdwod yiim spusawubijp ajnou Bulyppijosuo)

up|d a4nyonuysoayu] Buipaym Bunyiop BulpA) 0207 [1UNo) BulyspiojaIeH

jlouno)
allyspIojoIsH

68

Q@

90



£6

s
Bul2Ad>
Jo aypydn 8y sejowoud Syjpay
10J0W W0} pajoindas saUB|e|oAD 15 “unfiy

Bui|2A> pub Buij@aym ‘Bunyjom Jo} sfusSWUOIIAUS Bulippiuiiul
9402 sasspdiapun so yans saungonuys ybnoayy Bulybipjospo ooy

enuassa si Huiaka pue bunasym

‘Guryiem Joy Juswuodiaua Ayjenb-ybiy e bulieald
‘wis1uno} modb o) jenjuajod sy pue Awouoda
s,Ajunod ayj} o) aduejsodwi d163jel)Ss Spiojalaq

UBAI9 "SJO0}ISIA pue sjuapisal yjoq Buijiyauaq

eadde s,A}12 8y} aduBYUS P|NOM SUOI}IPUOD

BuinaAo pue bunaaym ‘Buyiem Buircadwi aiym
‘@19 Agq apew aq o} sdiJ} Ja0ys Joj Ayunyioddo
ay) syioddns 81e2S S)| "|]9AeRd) BAl3O€ 104 |enjuajod
jueaijiubis siayjo 1nohe) }oedwiod spaojaaaH

i = 4752

32041 894> Buupaddosip,y /¢ 2unbiy "a1doad

}sow Joj uoiydo jeaijoeud e se Huiaho sabeanoasip
Aom aA1B o} siasn aiinbais SAOMIOO) MOLIDN  ©& =unbis a1n0. Aoy s1y3 Buoje anjanuiselyul BurdAd ajes jo

32U3Sqe 3y] "|3ARI} BAI}OE 0} SJ3LLIeq [enuRISqNS

91eaJd ‘4yvy 3y buoje Ajjerdadsa ‘spaads pue
SaWN)0A J1jed} YbIH 'sanss| asned A}A13dsuu0d
ul sdeb ‘A312 ay} punode Buakd ajqeus jeyy syjed

99.J-213j.) JO S3|IW 07 JSA0 S}Seoq PJojalaH 3IYM

'suelsysapad

Joj @auajuadxa jueseajdun ue o} aynqlIu0d Jayyiny
‘sawnjoA d1yjed) ybiy spisbuoje skemjooy molaeN
'spie Ayjiqow Buisn asoy) pue suellysapad Joj
salnaiIp Buneatd ‘K312 ay) SS04IE UOWIWOD

8Je 9}842U02 paydeu) ‘sabualeys syuasaid

pJojaJaH ul bunakd pue ‘bunaaym ‘bupjiem

'safie))IA pue sumo) Buipuno.ins wo.y

9S0y} pue sjuapisad yjoq Huiaias ‘sajiuniioddo
Buluiea) pue ‘aunsia) Yiejad yuswhoydwa
juersodwi Ajjeuoifaus sapiaoad Ayd ay) Ayunod
J3pIM 3y} JO SS3IDNS 3y} U] 3]0J |BJJUSD B pUB
K103S1Y Yo1d B YiIm A}12 BAI}ORINE pUB JUBIQIA B
s1 1| "9AM J3AIY Y} JO SHUB(Q BY} UO pajen}is S|

‘341yspJoya.aH 0 A)d jeapayied ayj ‘paojaleH

piojaiaH uil Bui24A> pup Buijpaym ‘Bunjjpm

69

92

up|d ainanusoupu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUNOD aaiyspaojeleH

|louno)
allyspiojaioH O




S6

pJojaleH ssolop B

0'€A 190 8Y) JapUN Pasuadl] UoleWLIojuUI 10)38s 21gnd suiejuog

————-

uonesoT 1yr e
Kaepunog Ang paojatsy [

r—-

ealy Apnis dIMMIT © - 1

5207 JequisnoN

no 1oy suoyounl payiusp|

9L dow

wy

"|8Ae1} 8A1}2e Buipnioul ‘Jiodsuedy jo sapow

11e Joj syuawanoidwi asiyiorid o3 A

e 3y} pue
1043U0D 1B20] J9}eaJh MO]|e PINOM SIY] "|IDUN0Y aY}
0} peod ayy Joj Ayjiqisuodsad Buliiajsuely ‘4hy ay}
Jo Bupjunu-ap ay) a1qeua pinod i1 ‘Ning si ssedAg
ay} uaym ‘Ayunjioddo oifisjells e sjuasaud ssedhg
pJojaJay pasodoud ay) UsasmoH "ajnod sjyj buoje
alnjanJiseqyul Buiaka so ‘Bunasym ‘Bupyiem oy
sjuawanoldwi JaAnep Ajjuspuadapul 0} ajqe jou
S1112Un0) 8y} ‘})NsSaJ B Sy °|I2uUnoY) aJIYspaojalay
J0 1043U02 }03.4Ip 8y} APISINO S]|B} B10j313Y} pue
sAkemybiH 1euoneN Aq pafieuew Ajjualan si gy
ay) “Alualing 4yy ayy buoje ate paiypuapl uopoun!
9y} jo Auew ‘usas aq ued sy "G4 abed uo 9| depy

uo paddew aJe passasse alam jey} suolounf

‘wiay} 9anpaJ o0} padinbal

9g Aew sainseaw jeym Ay1juspi pue sidijjuod

up|d a4nyonuysoayu] Buipaym Bunyiop BulpA) 0207 [1UNo) BulyspiojaIeH

1enualod Ajipuapi o} uondun( e je syuawasow
1enuajod jje Bulujwexs ‘pajonpuod sem
juswissasse |yr e ‘Budko pue Bunaaym ‘Bunjiem

10§ sapiaoad uojoun e )jam moy ssasse of

IOM)BU |aAR}
aAl3oe dn paujol e ajeaud o0y djay ues suoloun|
9jes Huness) "xa1dwod jsow S| SSauUIBIP
pue J1ojwod ‘A}ajes usamiaq diysuolje)ad ayy
8J3YM 0S|e 3JB SUOI}OUN( "SIISN 19ARI} BAI}OR

1oy ysid Kyajes ysaybily ayy asod suoijounl jsop

100d

s1 uoisinoad 1aABl) aA13OE B1aym A}d By} ssouoe
suolounl Auew aie aiayj jeyy pasiubosal sem y
‘K112 9y} ssoJoe sajnod Alepuodas pue Alewiad jo
juswdojanap ay} burunp Alessadsuun pawasp sem
JusWISSasse 507 pue | yyM e Buneidwod is)iym

sjuawssassy (Ly[) [oo] juawssassy uoyoun(

‘Aless@dauun pawaap Sem S0J pue 1yHM

ayj Buisn ybnouay} suonipuod Huisixa ayj bunipne
‘sajnod Bunaho pue Bunaaym ‘buryiem aygeyns
1sow ay} Ajjuapi oy ueydisysew Ao ayy jo yied

SB U3 e}Iapun yJom aAlsuayatdwod ayj 0} ang

pA0j2.43H $S0IID

s91nod Bui|24> pup Buijeaym ‘Bunjjom Buijipny

ABojopoyjayy ajnoy Bulipny

jlouno)
allyspIojoIsH

70

Q@

94



L6

‘spuejs 91242
p121}J2ys Jo wuoy ay} ul Ajysow ‘Ay1d ay} ssoloe
a1qejieae si bunjled 81949 ybiu je Ajuejnonaed

‘A1ajes e1oos Jood jo sbunasy jenusiod spuasaad
Y2Iym 32UB)|IBAINS JBNjeU Yoe) (Aep ula)ssm
jeaug "6a) sanod awos ) 119m Ayjesaush

aJe A}12 3y} UIY}IM S3IN0Y :SSIUBAIIRINY

‘sdew o0} Jaja4 03 buipasu

21noJ ay) ajebiaeu oy padinbaa aue s1doad
Bulueaw ‘yuasa.id si abeulhis Buipuiyhem jo xae)
V ‘papiroad adepuns diab ybiy yyum yjoows pie)

auiyoew Ajsow si Ayjenb adeying jaojwo)

'$151194A2

10} @oualiadxe jueseajdun ue sajea.d YdIym
(Aep aad sa121yaA 0pQ'S @A0CE) SBWIN|OA D1jjel}
ybiy yum paoey A)1eaidAy ate Aay) ‘Aemaberised
uo 31942 0} paJinbau aJe s3s1)242 uaym ‘UsAsmoH
's1S11942 10y adualiadxa yueseald e apirodd pue
14} Jojow wody pajetedas ale (Aep UIS)SIM

1eaug '6'9) A11d ay) ssouoe seynod swos Kjajes

'53511942 J0j JI0jwodsIp

pue 1oy ‘awiy buiseauoul Ajjerjuajod
‘syusipe.b dasys o} anp sabuayieys asod A2
8y} sso.de sajnoJ awos "ade)d ul (saue) 8124
‘saul] dojs pasueape) sainjes) Ajiorid 81242
3WOS Y}IM ‘s3)21YaA Jojow se suoljoun( e
skejap Jejiwis skejap adey A)1eaidAy pue joauip

aJe Ay)12 ay} sso.4oe sajnod 3)dA) issaupdallq T

‘sjuawJiedwi uoisiA yym suosuiad Ajueinorjied
suell}sapad o} sysid A}ajes yueanyiubis buisod
‘aynoJ ay} jo Ajlofew ayj Joy Juasqe ale

Buiaed ay130e) pue squay paddou( :uoisayo)

poob AyjeaidAy si suelysapad

Joy AyIqIsIA "a14eay Jojow 0} Aywixoad 85012

ul suernysapad yym ‘ybiy o} ayesspow aJde Ay

3y} ssoJdoe spaads pue sawn)oA aiye.] Kjajes

‘Aksuinof

113y} 8nu1ju0d 0} MOY JO UOIIedIpUl IBd)I B pue
pauopuege jou s1s11242 yym ‘poob si1 Ayd sy
sso.Joe Buipuiyhep “Junowsip 0} sisi)24d adinbal
suo(joun( asayy o awos ‘suolpdoun( jo Jaquinu
ybiy ayj uaalb suol}das a3alasip jo dn apew ale

pJ0jadH puno.Je SajnoJ 8y} ‘|eJaAQ uoisayoy L

'pJojaJtaH ssodoe Bundko o) paje)ad
sBuipuly Buimonoy ayy paiybnybiy ueydiaisew
A3Q paojauaH ayy pue diMd1 2y} jo Juawdolanap

ayj Bulinp pajonpuod suoljeAIasqo ajs

pJ0jo4aH sso4op adualiadxa BuijoAs sy} Buipunysiepun

ST0Z 4oqWanoN

‘A1geydojwod ssoud 0} Yibua) Juaidiyns

Jo s1 awl} uew uaalb ‘@ae)d ul ale shuissold
pasneubis aiaym pue aseyd a16uis Ajjsow
aJe sbuissou) Aejap Jnoyym a1qejiojwod pue
199.1p ‘Asea aJe pue saul) aJisap Buimoijo}
‘a)qe)ieAe ataym sbuissoud pue (peod ayy

0} jJuadelpe “a'1) saul) aJisap uelsysapad Joy

13182 0} papiro.d ale skemjoo :ssaupalig

‘suellysapad Joj sa1naIIp
S9SNEI Y}IM ‘SUOI}BI0] BWOS Ul JUBPIAD SI

Buryaed Aemjoo4 "Ajyuanbauy 9xe} pue anlb o}

sJ49sn saJinbal YaIym ‘wg’| uey) Ssa) SaWIBWOS

aJe syjpIm Aem}ooy “edpayie) pJojalay Jeau

Janamoy ‘sjqerdadae Ajjedsush aue syipim

Aemiooy pue 18A9) A)3sow ale sAem}oo4 ;jaojwo) Z

"A}12 8y} SS0IJE JUBPIAS OS]|E BJe Spie)joq

10 J1eapaenb jo asn aAISSax3 "parosdwi aq
pINo3 uolnyjod pue asiou J1jel) Jo S]9A3] pue
(13144846) Pajou SI WSIJEPUBA JO 32UBPIAS JOUIN
‘uoijejaban umoubiano pue Huliap Joujw jo
S3JUB}SU| BWOS Y}IM ‘paulejuiew 11am Ajjesausb

9Je pJojalsH ssoJde m>m§u00n_ ‘SsauaAppesyy

*pJ0ja19H SSsoJe Bunjiem oy pajejad
sbuipuly Buimoyjoy ay) payybnybiy ueydisysew
A3 paojauaH ayy pue dimd7 2yl jo juswdojanap

ayj Bulinp pajonpuod suoljeAIasqo ajs

pJojo49H

$S0.42b 9dualiadxa upliysapad ay} Buipupisiapun

up|d ainanusoupu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspiojaleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

71

Q@

96



66

“YioN

199445 YSIDWSPIM PUD QEPY UO MO|} d4JpIy AADSY PaWNSsD

ur Abmabp1LIRD Lo 3]2Ad o) padinbai a1p sisi2A2 ‘uondun( ayy
4O SWIDR [|0 UQ "uolPUN( BY} JO SWID JBY4O [P Uo papircid

a1p sbuissoud pasipoubig "yinog jeaulg ysiowapim Buojp
S|CP|IDAD S| $$8220 DYDY PBJOLIYSAL M BuIssOId pajjoiuodun
‘(%52) z€ @lqissod D Jo jno g a103s ubisep uoydun[’

Moy}
ouyjou) AApsy pawnsso Ul AbmaBbliipd uo 8|24 o) palinbal aio
s4s12A2 ‘uolduN( 8Y} JO SULID [|D UQ "IS8M PPROY [DI2I8WWIOD

10 Yj|oM UoIUN UO 8|gD|IDAD sI Uoisirold Buissold ou pup jso3
pooy [pI2JewWwWo) uo jusesaid st Buiand 8oy pup squey
paddouq “(%LL) 8L e|qissod o jo ino g a102s ubisep uoloun(

‘uonoun( 8y} Jo swup Jayjo

|10 uo papiroid s ssup| Buinanb sjdinw puo AomeboLiiod
uo ainponuysoayul Bul|oAd ON “Jsem PUD 4S0T PROY [OIDI8WIWI0D)
01 )|oM uoiun uo papincid 8o yopoiddo uo saup| 81242

PUD SOV "UoLOUN[ BY} JO SWUD O UO 3|PJIDAD S| Buissod
pasipubig ‘(%) 8L 8|qissod b Jo jno g a102s ubisep uondun(

‘G9¥Y U0 Moy djpl) AADaY pawinsso puo AbmaboLiind

uo 8J2A2 o} paiinbai aio uoldUN( 8y} JO SWLID || UO sisI|2AD
*SOWIN|OA DLYJD.} PAWINSSD 8y} USAIB a|qpyins jou sup Ajjo4

uo uoisinoid Buissoid pub Yinog g9y UO 3|qD|IDAD S| puly
Aup Jo uoisiroad Buissoud ON *aul| 24isOp Y} W0y AbMD pub
paJabBys auo Asy} ynq ‘YLION G94Y Uo papiroid aip sBuissoid
01g97 *(%9) 8L 8|qissod b Jo jno | 810ds ubisep uoyoun[

uolouN( 8y} JO SWUD || UO MO d4yD.14 AADBY PaWINsSD

pup AomaBDLLIDD Uo 8PAd 0} padinbau a1p uoloun( 8y} jo
SWLID ||D UO $4S119AD) "Y4n0S PUD YLION G9PY UO S|QD|IDAD S| puby
Aup jo uoisiroad Buissoid oN ‘sul| aaisep 8y} wolj Abmp puo
pa1ab6pys a0 Asy) Inq ‘BupT suusp uo pepiroid aip sbBuissosd
0iqaz "(%9) 8L 8|qissod o jo jno | 810ds uBisap uoyounf

‘MO|} dJ04L AADBY pawnsso yiim Aomaboliind uo 8242 o)
payadxa [|14s 210 s}sI|9AD §nq ‘ssaddY [IDJaY By wouy Buljjaab.y
4811942 Jo uoldadxe 8y} Yjim SWID [|o Uo juasaid o saup|
Buinanb a|diinw pub AbmabBplLID U ainjdNIsDIUL Bul9Ad
ON "uolaun( 8y} Jo swp ||o uo papliroid si Buissold pasipubls
pa1abBoyg *(%€l) Z€ o|qissod b Jo ino 7 a10ds ubisep uolduNn(

‘s|qojdedon

pawsaasp st AomabplLInd uo BulPAd ‘smoys DUJDIL MO| 8ADY OF
POWINSSD S| }9814G 40l UBAID "YLION 499415 10Bp3 uo moyy
Jy4p.4 Jojow AADSY SADY O} PaWINSso si Ydiym Aomaboliiod
Y} U0 81242 o} pauinbau 8o ssIPAD §s|Iym ‘A4jI004 8Sn paibys
ojuo Buluolyisuniy Ag apoW 840 Yinog joauis Jobp3 pup jsem
SOPY ‘YINOS 488148 YSIDWSPIM 4SPI GOYY BY} O} SjusWaAow
8|24 pup suwp ||o uo Buop papiroid aip sBuissoid
pasioubis ‘(%€S) Z€ alqissod D Jo yno /| 810s ubissp uoyoun(

suolbpusWWOoda. uBisep jo Alpwwing

L

€

Sjuswanon
pay ON

SZ0Z 4oquanoN

JEENITY
ysowapim
%ST /8EYY

JEENIS
Joowjuoiy

/proy

%LL |pIDJswwoD

A1oM
uolun/proy
%y [PI2IBWWOD

aup
%9 Alled 7 s9vv

aupT
%9 SUUSA/G9rY

$s900Y
019y /pPoy

|p12JBWWOD
%EL /99vVY

JEETIS
ysIowapim
%EG /99vY

21008 awDN
abpjusdiag uondun(

€l

(43

oL

YA

“oN
uodun(

“YLION 498lis
JoBp3 Buo|p sysi|2Ad 1oy BuiBuUS|IDYD SI SIY} ‘SMO|) DYJDI} MO| O}
anp 198.4S Jolid Uo 8|qoideddDp si siyl isiym AomaboLiId uo
91942 0} 54511942 sauinbau jeauyg Jolid PUDL YLIoN toauls Jobp3
M GOPY PUD Y4Nog 483.)s 10BpP3 uo yusseid si Aijiony
asn Paibys "Y4nog }oa.ig JoBp3 Uo o|qp[IvAD S| punj AUD jo
uoisinoid Buissoud oN ‘poob st uoisiroid upliysepad Buiuoaw
PBWINSSD 81D SMO|} D404 MO| PUD }83.4G JOLId U0 papiroid

s1 Buiapd a|4opy/squey paddoup yym Buissoud psjjoipuodun
GOV 8y} uo papiroid si Buissoud pasioubis peiabbois o

puD Yo 48844S I0Bp3 uo papiroid si Buissold pasipubis

V (%¥¥) Z€ @|qissod o Jo jno | 81025 ubisep uonoun(

‘asn paJoys ojuo Buluolyisun.y

AQ 8ppW 810 POOY J8W|OH PUD PDOY UMOJMEN O} SJUBUISAOW
8[2AD ‘pawinsso smoyy duyous yBiy yim ‘@cpid Alolid uo
uoisinoid esn peibys ou Buleq Jiey) o} enp AomeboLiipd 8y} uo
94 0} sJ51|9Ad SMOJ|D 82D|d AJolld Wol4/0] “82D|d AJolid Buojo
8|qp|IoAD s1 uoisiroad Buissoud upbLisepad ou pup sul| sJisep
wouy AbMD S| BuissO1d ing ‘POY UMOIMSN UO papiaoid a1
sBuIssoud psjjo4puo) uood si uoisiroid ubliyseped Buluosw
‘POOY JoW|OH U0 App Jad S8|2IYIA 00SG'Z SAOCD SID SSWN|OA
JUJD.1} PSWNSSD S| JI 1oAsMoy ‘paplacid st Buiapd ajiony/sqley
paddoup pup pupjsi 86na1 o yyim Buissod psjjoljuodun ‘pooy
J8W|oH uQ "(%82) 81 3|qissod b Jo yno G a10ds ubisep uoyoun[
‘swup uoldunf

|l UO MO} DLJDI} S1DISPOU PBUINSSD Ul ADMaBDIIIDD Ul 8|24
o} paJinbal 8.p sysIPAD "p oY J0zoA Buojo pepiroid eup squey
paddoup pub pupjst ebnjes o yim Buissoud pajjospuodun
‘pPROY pupjspupis Buojo ejqp|IAD sI pury Aup jo uoisiroid
Buissoud oN ‘(%¥¥) 8L 8|qissod b Jo ino g a102s ubisep uoloun(
‘POOY PUDJSPURIS UO SUD|

JUJDI} SUO UDYL 2J0W $50.1 O} palinbal aio JoAamoy aALq

xog Asupig o} Joal)g a1owyBiH wol) /o) sisI[oAD "swub uoloun(
|0 UO MO} DUJDI} D1DISPOU PBUINSSD Ul ADMOBDIIIDD Ul 8]2Ad
o} paiinbai .o sisi|2AD “Apmabpliipd Jo apls suo uo jussaid
AJuo st Buiapd ajiop} j1aq|p ‘@AlIQ Xog Asupig uo jussaid aio
sqJey paddoup pub joauis aiowyBiH uo paplaod si squey
paddoup pub pupjsi 86nya. b yyim Buissoud pajjoljuodun uy
‘pROY pupispupis Buojo s|go|ibAD I pury Aub jo uoisiroid
Buissoud o (%8€) Z€ o|qissod b Jo Jno z| 810ds ubissp uoldun[
“100d s1 uoisinoad uplisapad

Buiuoaw ‘Aop uad sad1YdA QG T JOA0 940 S48Y} PAWNSSD

1nq ‘PpOY Yausin) B 1931 MaN uo papiroid s abnyjal
upLIISEPa  "ul| 84ISSp UO Jou s| Buissoud Ing Joalig moquiny

/ @up usaio Buo|p jussaid si Buiapd a|iop} puD SISy
paddouq “(%87) z€ o|qissod p Jo ino g a103s ubisep uooun(

‘swID
uoyoun( o Uo Moy} sy AAbay pawnsso Ul AomebolLIpd
8242 o paiinbai 8. sysiPAD “aul| auisep 8y} Buop jou

s1inq ‘aupT [00Y2S P|O SS0420 papiroid sBuissod bigaz y
*8UD7 SUUSA PUD PPOY 868]|0D) $5010D B|PILAD 840 sBUISSOID
pasijoubis *(%82) z€ a|qissod b jo no g 403s ubisap uoysun[

suolppuswwodal ubisep Jo Aipwwing

|OOL judswssassy CO_._.UCJ—. = S}|ns9y mC_._.__O—...<

oL

oL
Sjuswanow
pay ON

JELEIIS
101d/S9PY
%y /40048 IpbBp3

200|d
Aiold/pooy

UMOMBN

%8C  /PPOY JdWoH

pooy
10ZDA /POy
%y pupispunio

aALIQ xog
Aeupis/jealis
aiowyBiy

/pLoy

%8€ punispuniy

J991js Moquiny
/POy yausind
%8Z /9up UsalI

sup
190425 PIO

/ppoy abajj0)

%8T /2UpT sUuap

21028 SWDN
abpjusdiad uonounf

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspiojeleH

L

“oN
uonpun(

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

72

Q@

98



LoL

‘J93.4s spjoydIN IS Buojo

yopouddo uo jussaid si 8ub| 8242 puL JSIY UY ‘PPOY
DLIOIDIA UO MO} D44 AADBY pawinssp yiim ‘uoyoun(
Sy} 4O SWID [|0 U0 AbMaBDLIID UO 3|2Ad o) pasinbai aio
sisI|oAD "App Jed se|d1yan 00G‘Z @A0QD 99 Of pawNssL
uIbBD 4nq ‘498.)g PLIOIDIA Uo paplrocld aip sBuissold
pajjoipuodun ood si uoisiroid upliysapad Buiupew

100

pooy uopipg

‘App Jad s8|21yaA 0057 SAOGD B1D SBUWIN|OA dLJDI} JZEENI
PaWINSsSD 1 J1 {NQ ‘POOY UOLIDYG PUD 488415 SP|OYDIN SP|OYDIN
1S uo papinoud s Buissoud ps|joisuodun paiebbolg IIYZCENITS
'(%6) € @|qissod p o ino ¢ a10ds ubisap uoyounf €l %6 DLIOYIA 6l
pooy “ISOM PROY SSOID9HYM
‘poOoY AdDT SWIOH UO MO|4 dYJpL AADSY pawNsso ul uojsuIm uo moy a0} Aabay pswinsso ul AomsboLIDD Uo
AomeBo11Id Uo 8]242 of paiinbal aip sisi|oAD “uoldunf /PPOoY UojUIH 81245 o} pauinbau a.p sis124d isjiym ‘eunT ybnojd
8y} 4O swp ||o uo paplroid si uolsiroad Buissod oN /ppoy Ao PUD §S03 POOY SSOIDBLIYM UO A41|iDD) 8SN PaIpys O}
*(%0) z€ @|qissod p Jo ino g 8103s ubisep uoloun( 9l %0 swijoH Y4 Buiuonisupiy Ag epoW 810 saA0W BJAD *JseM 0 Jso3
POOY SSOIDBJIYM UO S|qP|IDAD SI uolsiroad Buissod
‘uonun( sy} jo ON "aul| 84i1sap 8y} uo papiaoid jou si yng ‘juasaid si pooy
SWLID |0 UO MO|} dLJpI} AADSY pawnsso ul Abmabpliipd Buiaod a|1o0) pup squey paddoup ‘eun ybnold uQ SSOIDSHYM
U0 3|24> o} pauinbau a1 sysiPAD Joaug ubiz uo *(%82) 8l @|qissod b jo jno g a1ods ubisep uooun( ¥ %8¢ /aup]ybnold gL
papiroud si Buissoud pesijoubis paiabboys y ‘aul| alisep
upLysapad 8y} UO JOU SI INQ ‘YINOS 984G DLIOIDIA 198.ig ||omag ‘PROY JSWUILIS UO MO|} SLDIL Sjpispowd
Buojo papiroid si Abomgns b ys|iym ‘jealls ||omeg pup / ¥oa4g ubig pawnsso ul AomaboLLId Uo 81242 o} pauinbas e
YLION }o3.4S BLIOJDIA Uo paplrcid si uoisiroid Buissold BEYV / +934S S}S1]2A2 pup uoydUN( By} JO SWID 180 || 0} jea.s ubig
oN "(%9) z€ @|qissod b Jo {no g a40ds uBisap uoloun( L %9 DUOWIA 67V ¥Z wouy papiroid 8o yoooiddo uo supj 82A> pup 1§DV
'$S92Y |DLIYSNPU| O} POOY SSOUDBJYM PUD j2a.14G ubig
‘uoldUN( 8} JO SWID || UO SBWN|OA 0} POOY $S0DBHYM ‘POOY SSOIDSHYM O} POOY JSWWILID pooy
ouyo.y AADBY pawnssp Yyim AbmabplLInd uo 8|24d o} ‘SS922Y |DLIISNPU| O} POOY J8WWILIS) ‘ea.yg ubig o} SSOUD84IYM
padinba. a1 s)s1194) 10od s uoisinoid uplisepad poOoY Jawwlg ‘Ja3a.is ubig o} ss820Y |PlYSNPU| ‘PROY /ppoY
Buiuoaw Aop sad sa|pIysA 00GZ SAOQD 8 Of PAUINSSD SSOJD9HIUM O} SS9V |PLIISNPU| WOl AJi1DD) 8sh paipys Jawiwilg
910 SOWIN|OA DD} YSOM PUD JSDF POOY UMOJMEN Ao sie1udp4 o} Buluolisup.y Agq spow si Juswanow 3|94 “uoydunf /49945 ubig
‘}924)G JoBp3 Buo|o YanemoH "uoydunf sy yim JZEENTS 8y} 0 swup ||p uo papiroid aip sbuissoud pasijpubig /55820y
SWID [|o uo papircld 2. sqJey paddoup yium sbnjey 1obBp3/pooy *(%£9) z€ |qissod b o yno gz 8403s ubisap uoyoun( 0 %E9 |oLysnpu| L n
*(%9) z€ 3|qissod b Jo no g a103s ubissp uoyoun( Sl %9 uojmaN €z
*J9844S Joowuoup)
YINOg POy $S0y UO MOJJ DJ0} 90ISPOW PaWNSSD Ul AbMaBoLLIDD
pup pooy Ad07 SW|OH Wou}/0} AjijIoD) 8SN PaIDYs Ojuo uo 8242 o} padinbau sysiPAd ypm ‘Yinog puo yiioN
Buluoiyisupiy Ag spow sjuswsAow 3242 jo uoldedxe 193145 J0Bp3 Uo AJljIo0) 8SN Palbys o) Buluolisub.y
Y4 Yim Moy} oygpa AApay pawnsso ul AbmaboLiipnd Aq epouw sI juawaAoWw 3|24 syS1|9A2 104 "YLION 420448
uo 9242 0} paiinbal a.p sisi|2AD "YiNOS PPOY $SOY PUD 10Bp3 Uo 8|gp|ILAD SI puy AUD Jo uoisiroid Buissoud
pooy Adp7 swijoH uo papiroid si Buissoud pasijpubis anusAy oal| oN uood si uoisiroad upLisapad Bulubsw ‘Ynos joa.ig
paJabBols b Is|IYm aNUSAY 93.] JNUJDM PUD YLION INUoM /PROY 10Bp3 uo App sad ss|d1ysa 0OG'Z PE9IXS SBWN|OA
ppOoY ssoy uo papiroid aup sBuissod pasipubig Aop7 ewjoH SUJDI} PAWINSSD SI 1 §NQ 4981} JOOWUOUDY) PUD Y4Nog JEEIS
"(%52) z€ @|qissod b o no g 8102s ubisep uonyoun[ oL %ST /PPOoY ss0Yy F44 19045 JobBp3 uo pepiroid aip sBuISsOID pajjosuodun Joouwuoun)
‘(%¥¥) 8l @|qissod p jo yno g 402s ubisep uoldun[ [°] %y /499448 JoBp3 9l
'POOY UOLISPUNH UO JUSpPIAS
SI MO} DD} 8}0ISPOW pawNnssp Ul AomaBoLIDD Uo 199143 SIDLIPID|G Of YINOS J93.45 JoBP3I pUD J92.14S SIDLIDIG
Bui2Ad §s|iym ‘poOY juow|eg UO JUSPIAS S| MO} DI04 W04} MO|} DU} 90ISPOU PaWINSSD Ul AbMaBpIIIDD 8y} uo
Anpbay pauwinsso ul Aomaboliind uo Bul|pA) sog pooy 3243 o4 pauinba. 8.0 sisi|>AD *(4iNOS PUD YLON) 49945 106p3
Juow|ag uo papiroid si uoisiroid Buissold o iood o} jealis Ectt_u.c_m wioly yoooiddo uo papiroid si sup| 8|2A>
si uoisinoid uoliyseped Buiupsw ‘Aop Jed so|diyen PUD ISDY PUD ‘YINos o} YLIoN J9a1is JoBp3 o) asn painys
. o} Buiuoljisupiy Ag epbuw si juswiarow 894D *(Y4nos) 1ealls
005°Z ®A0qD 81D SSWIN|OA L3P} _uwrCJJwO 14 puo J0Bp3 Jo J88.iS siLpOR|g Uo jusseid si uoisiroid Buissold JEENITS
aul| 84isap UPLsEPad By} UO 40U S1 NG ‘YsaM PPOY ou 4nqg ‘YuoN Jea.is JoBp3 uo papirocid si Buissold pasijoubis sIoLPID|g
juowjag uo papinoid si Buinbd a|iopy/squey peddoip proy pe.1ebbpis \f *(%6€) gL o|qissod b Jo ino / 810ds uBisep uoyoun( z %6E /109145 J0Bp3 SL
Yim BuIssOId Pa]|0JpuodUN UD PUD POOY UOLISPUNH juow|eg
uo juasaud si Buinnd s|iopy ou jnq squey paddoug /pooy ‘POOY [DIDIBWIWIOD) PUD GEFY UO MO
*(%LL) 8L @|q1ssod b jo 4no z @400s ubisep uoyoun( / %Ll uopepunH 1z oo} AApaYy pawinsso ul AomeBoLLIDD Lo 8J2Ad o} pauinba
21D 54511942 ‘swub Jayjo || uQ "papiroid aip ssup| Buinenb
‘uoloun( 8Y4 4O SWID || UO a|diyjnw puo Aomebp1ipd Uo Jussaid st ainpanusoapul BuipAd
Mo} DIy AADBY pawnsso Ul Abmabp1LInD Uo 9|24 o} ouing ‘PpOY [PI2I8WIWIOD UO papincid 81D TISY ‘SisijoAd Jog
palinba. 810 sjs|PA “1S8M POOY JUOWI[SG UO S|GP]IDAD dul| aJ1s8p co_‘_t&%wa wnwt wouy Mo?o sI pup AomaBplLIpD 8y} JEEINTITET
s1 uoisinoad Buissoud op 1ood si uoisiroid uplysspad 4O SPIS SUO L0 BUINDC S]142D} BUISSILL 1 9945 [DIISWILOT SNIg/iesNS
) . 1s]iym Buiaod sji1opy pup squey paddoup Buinby jesulg uoiun |PIDIWWOD
Buiupsw Aop sed ww_u_.;w> 00§ ®A0qD 81b SBWN|OA Yim ‘papincid aup sBuIssoId Pa||osuodUN 48a14S UoIUN pUD /499145 uolun
OLj0J} PSUINSSD NG 'SNUSAY 93] {NU|DM PUD {sD3 SNUBAY 88| Jo0.)g |PIDIBWWIOD) BUO|Y *}o2.14G [00YdS @N|g pub jo2148 /192118
POy yuowjag uo papiroid 8o sBulssoud pajjosuodun 4NUPM/pPRoY yiog ‘ppoJ [pI21aWWo) uo papiroid b sBuissosd pasijoubis Yipg/proy
‘(%0) g1 @|qissod b jo yno g 8403s UBIsap uolduN[ 6 %0 Jjuowjeg 0z pa1aBBDys *(%0L) 05 2|qissod © jo yno g a403s ubisap uoyoun( ¥4 %0L |PIDIsWWo) yL
BIVEIVEYXCIN] 21035 swbN ‘oN Sjuswano 21038 SWPN ‘oN

suolppuUsWWIodal uBisap jo Auowwing TEREy  cEEvEeEy uoyoun  uoiun( suoyppuswwodal ubisep jo Atowwng poy oN  ebpjusdiad uonoun[  uoyoun(

GZ0Z 19qwianoN up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH D.



€0l

0'€A 190 8Y) JapUN Pasuadl] UoleWLIojuUI 10)38s 21gnd suiejuog

pJojassH ul synsas |yf

wy

%00L-%L6
%06-%L8
%08-%LL
%0L-%L9
%09-%LSG
%0G-%LY
%0Y7-%LE
%0€-%LC

%0Z-%Ll

%»0L01dn @

21035 1Vr

@0 00000 O0OO0

Kaepunog Ay paojadeH [

‘SMO|}

JUJ0J} MO| ADY O} PBWINSSD 840 YJIYM YI0d SIa|quiny
pup p|al4 sialed IS Jo uoldadxs ay} yum ‘uonoun

Y} JO SWD || UO MO|} DUJpI} AADBY PaWINSSD Ul
AomaBp11IDd U 8242 o paiinbai aip sysi|2AD “uoydunl
8y} Jo wup Aub uo o|gp|ILAL si uolsiroad Buissold oN
(%€1) z€ @|qissod b Jo no ¢ a1ods ubisep uonoun(

‘aup7 sauUnID

UO PBWINSSD S| MO|} DLYJ0I} MO| 4S|IYM ‘BUDT USBIS UO
MO} D4JDI} 81DI8POW Pawnssp ul AbMaBp1LIDD Uo 8242
0} paJinbau 8o sjs1|2AD “jsem 8upT UssIS) Uo pepiroid
si punj Aup jo uoisiroid Bulssoud ON ‘8upT SaUDID) UO
papircad si Buinpnd s|iop) OU JNg 4sT SUDT USBID

pup aup saup.) uo paplroid aup squey paddoiqg
"(%95) 8l @|qissod p jo jno gL 8409s ubisep uoyoun(

‘uoldUN( 8y} JO SWID JBY40 [|o

uo smoly oo} AApaY Ul Ing ‘ppoy sus uojdwbH uo
MO} DUYJDI} 91DISPOW Ul PUD UolDdUN( 8y} JO SWID |0 U
AomabBp11Ind Uo 8242 of paiinbai 8o sysi|2AD “uodunl
8y} JO swp || uo papiroid si uoisiroid Buissoud

ON "(%9) 8L @|qissod p Jo jno | a103s ubisep uoldun(

*uoidUN( BY} JO SWID [|O UO MO d4JD.} AADBY PawINssD
ul padinbau st AbmaBo1LIpD uo BuldAD ‘sisi|oAd 104 “Jsam
pup Jsp3 j98.)g s,UsMQ IS uo papiroid aip sbuissold
pasi|puBig ‘PPOY BA0IS 10 §881)G Jauin| uo papiroid

sI Buiapd s|1jop} ou Ing ‘pepircid s squey paddoiq
‘(%61) Z€ 9|q1ssod b Jo jno g a103s ubissp uonoun(

"}Joa.}g yjog uo pepiroid aio yopoiddo uo

BUD| 824D PUD TSIV UD }384JS |[IW UO MO[} DD} MO|
ul AomaboLiuod uo Asuinol iyl anuluod pup [publs
UMO BADY OS|0 §JS1[2A2 49345 [[IN OF PUD SINJONIISDIUIL
pajoajoid pup [pubis UMO SADY SISI|DAD ‘4som Of 1S3
1984 S,USMQ S WO "DUJ0I} JO WIOIS [[O IO Sl Ul
pajoiodes AjjoaisAyd aup sisi|Ad ‘Jeallg s,uemQ Js o)
J9344S |IIW wiou4 "Buisnjuod Ajjoiusiod pup yoaJipul st
SIY4 YBNoYy|p ‘sam 193UIS S,UBMO IS UO TOSY 8y} ojuo
Buiuoiyisubuy Ag spow 8up uoldUN( 8y} JO SWID Jayjo
0} }994JG |[IW UO SJUSWISAOW 3|24 pUD 4SO Jo31)S
s,uamQ 43 uo jussaid aio yopoiddo uo sup| 8242 ou

yiim saup| Buinanb s|diynyy "498.4s yiog uo juasaud si
o4 paonB pup uoisiroid Buissoid ON ‘SaWN[OA dLJD.}
MO| pawINssp UsAIB s|qodaddp pawssp 48alis ||IW
$50100 Bulsso1d pa||04juodun up ‘oIA papircid aip squay
paddoup pup Buiabd s|io04 PUD JSSM PUD 4SOT Jo81IS
S,UBMQ IS $50420 paplroid aup sBuissod pasipublg

vl

8L

€L

H0g

sis|quiny
/E0LYV/PIol4

%EL sisjed IS

aupT
EENSYETT ]
%95 saupJD

pooy ausq
uoydwibH
%9 /8E¥Y

pooy

9A015) /19343
SUSMO 1S

/4994S

%61 Jauing

joouis
W/482418
SUSMO IS

o€

6C

8z

£z

74

102

Jp Te——— .Aﬁwmv € w_ﬁ_mwOQ (o] +O }NO g| ®40d0S Cm_wwﬁ CO_,GCJH 14 a\ewm \+®®\_+w r_A—UM_ 97
ealy Apnis dIMMOIT ¢ _ 1 N
SjusWaAO|N 8100g BWDN ‘ON

suolbpuswwodal ubisap jo Alowwng poy-oN  oBojussisg SEE GG

§Z0T JequisAoN up|d a4nyonuysoayu] Buipaym Bunyiop BulpA) 0207 [1UNo) BulyspiojaIeH

jlouno)
allyspIojoIsH D



uolpsijliord
B sjoafougd

IouNo
allyspiojeIoH

75



sjo9foad
BulAypuap

520z 4oquienoN

dIMMOD1 @y4 Jo juswdo|ansp sy} jo

paod so payiuspl syosfoud jo jsi| Buo| b no s |jim asydoyd sy

up|d ainypanysoipul Buesym Bunjjom BuipA) P07 1pUNo) aaiysplojelsH

106



‘apIm-Ajunod ainjonJisedyul Bunaka pue Bupssym
‘Buiylem asueyua o} papasu suoljuaAtajul jo abued
9AISUR]X?d 9Y} 9JRIISUOWAP 0} |12UN0Y Y} S3|qeus
siy] “Alunod ayj} ssoioe spaload 1@Ae.} aA}oe

JO M3IAJIBAO J1ED]I B YHM ]12UN0Y JIYSPIojalaH

*0} 3INQII3U0I 10 dA3IYIe 0} Huikly
si 12aloud ayj 1By} SawWo2Ino 3y} pue padinbal
suoljuaAtaul jo sadA} ay) uo Buipuadap paseq

-eaJe 10 paseq-ajnoJ aq Ajjesauab ued syoafoug

'841U3D UMO} B WOJ) pue 0} ea.e |eljuapisad

e Wwo.y Juswanow ueriysapad pue diyje.} 91942 Joy
921AI3S JO 19A9] paroldwil ue o) pea) paulquiod
UaYM Yd1ym ‘peo. e Huoje suoijusAlalul Jo SalIas
e as1udwod jybiw 1a9foad e ‘souejsul Jo4 ‘(s))eobh
10 (s)awo2)no J1y1dads e aAalyIe ued pauiquiod

uayMm yaiym suoljuaaiaiul jo dnodb e sj josfoid y

108

apinoud 0y si 3sn) paulquod siyy jo asodund sy pooloag
N
*aunadid ay} uj asoyy Jo )12Unoy aJlysp.ojalay ‘J1asy Aq awodino
Aq padojaaap buiaq Ajjualind syoafoad umouy 1enuelsqns Aue aAalyoe j1 1)Im Jou sjeob dibajelis
13yj0 se ]am se (dIMMIT) ueld ainjanaisedju) 0} 8)nqLi3u03 03 A1axnun si )1 inq ‘djay wejqoud uo
Bunaaym pue bupjiem ‘buinaiy 1eso ayj ybnoayy anss| pasi|edo) e ssaJppe d)ay Aew uoljuaAalul
Arewrid payipuapl saAljel}ul sapn)aul 3sh) SiyL ue xaju0d siyy ui bupjeads Ajjessuag ‘Kkemjooy e jo
*sy03foad jenuajod jo isi) Huoy aAisuayaidwoo e Buiuapim Jo juiod Buissoad mau e Buipuawwodal
3)E31d 0} Pajepl|osuod uaaq aAey ‘yuawabebua apn)oul jybiw 31 ‘adue)sul 104 "3}IS 1BNPIAIPUI UB
Jaployayeys ybnouyy pasayieb syybisul U0 PasnJ0j 8INSEaW 8)3.3SIP B S| UOIJUSAJISIUI UY
apisbuoie ‘sisAjeue 8jnod ayj wouy sbuipuiq
}s17 Buoq uoljuaAIBu|
foad in} 6
sjo9foud ainjny buluyaqg
SZ0Z 4oquianoN upld danpnuspaul Bulpaym Bupiipm BuipAd (9207 pauno) saiyspiosaiey Q_cw_u___ww‘_wﬂwu_.u_ O-




LLL

(Buipuny dn Buijeas)
Aqg pa|qous) ||iH auoyss|Ay Buojo juswdojsrep

(1) @a1yspJoyaisH ul spoefoid aingny Jo ysiq Z3|qpL
pooY uopepuny
Buojo uoisiroad doys snq o} Ajjigissedop upliysepad
panosdwi Buipiroid [|am so enuBAY 884] JNUIDM Of
POOY UOBPUNH SSOUOD ADM UIBISOM 08I0 JOBUU0D pooy
o} supLysapad Joy Buissoud pasijoubis Jepisuo) - juowag / POy UouSpUNH syu Ao 51000
(ewwpiboid puny dn (puny
Bujjjens] ybnoayy pansiyop aq o} pawinsso) Ajjiqoy[om dn Buyjjens)) sjuswanoidwi saboyond
anoudwl pub duYjpi) 8|24 Joj 8jnol b a|qoug - 8[2AD proy Ad0T swijoH Aipjuswsdwon #1000
sjuawanoidwi ubLysspad pup (dwwpiBoid
puny dn Buijjans| sad sp aboyood sepnoy 2Ny ybnoayy
PaASIYdD 8¢ O} POUINSSD) DUYJDI4 JOJOW YHM UOLDDISJUL (puny dn Buijleas) saboyopg
[oWIUIW YHiMm dU4bU4 894 Jo) sejnod s|qoug - aBoyoDd sajnoy aInd Aioyuswsjdwon €1000
U0z 9242 pup uplysapad b ysijqoise
o} (WpQEg:QL puL wWdpEg:y Usamaq A|uaiind) umoy
yBiH Buojo BulpAd oy swpiyewiy Buipuaixa Japisuo) -
umo] ybiH uo seauy/Buyupid pup uoisiroid uolpounf aipnbg susjed i
Bunyiod a[2A2 [ouoippL pub Bunjpwadp|d JapIsuc) - 0} 9a4iS S,4919d IS ‘UMo] yBiH syury A ZL000
uolID}g sNg pJojalaH Of AJIAIIDBUUOD 8|2Ad/uplisepad
anosdwil pup suomiau 81942 sy} Jo Ayljigoawisd (8ePY) 198418
1910216 10) MO||D O} YO UoIun Buoo BulPAd UBMQ §S O} J88.4G Jauun]
MO|4D.4u0d BuljqoUS J0) UD|d UOIOD UD JN0 485 - 49314S ID|YIND JS / Y|OM Uoiun syu Ao 11000
oM aaoadwil pup pooy yul] AHD piojaisH jo
spls Ulayjiou uo yjod ssn paibys 0} J28UU0d 0} sisI|2Ad
1o} ss9200 epiroid pjnom siy] Buissold [oubis Ajuo
uplsapad juaiind Buipoibdn pooy yui AD plojaisH proy yur] Ao
/ 1981JS YSIDWSPIM JOA0 BUISSOId UDONOJ JOpISUOD) - piojeIsH /198445 YsiDwapIm syur A 0L000
Buiuiny usym spaads a|21yaA a3npad pup
Apjigoyjom aaoidwi o} lippd uondun( usiyBiy sepisuo) -
aupT
ybnojd ssolop a|qo} pasip. b Jo uoisiroid ajpBysaaul -
*aupT ybnold o} ss9230 UbLIsepad
apinoad of suoloun( sy wolj AoMb PDOY SSOIISJIYM pooy
Jano Buissoud ublijsapad pasijoubls Jepisuo) - $s0.UD3}IYM / U7 ybno|d syur Ao 60000
|ooy>g Adpwilid 21joyipD s,ApPDT INQ O} $58220 (enuany
uplisapad apinoid o suoyoun( sy wouy Abmo anuany 884 jnujpm) POy juowieg
24| JnujpMm J9A0 Buissoud pasijpubis Japisuod - G9PY Of POOY SSOY 61y syur A 80000
proy Adp7 swjoH Buo|o seiiuswWD
uplisapad pup 81242 panoidwy 1) sjpsodoud puny
dn Buyjians| 1ed so pooy Aop7 swjoH uo pajs|dwod pooy
Bureq y4om BuloBuo pup suonquio yim ubipy - $SOY 617y 0} pPOoy AdDT swoH syurm A £0000
yind spisaq sjods Jsal [puolippo Bulpiroid Jspisuo) - ajnoy
Ajeyos peniedted enoidwi pup dyiop pooy 824D |Iyuepaid
UBYM UoIjp|0s] o asuas PloAp o} Bulybi| Jepisuo) - puD}spUDIS 0} Yo0lg JOZDA O} pJojeieH 90000
(swwnpiboud [ooydg o} sajnoy Jajog
ybnoJyj paAsIyop 8 0} PaWINSSD) S|OOYDS WO.y/Of (puny dn Buijjeas)) saboyond
Ayljiqodjom aaocidwil pub dL4oI} 8943 U0} 8jNoJ B|qPUT- |00YG O} S3}JN0Y I8j0S Aipyuswisdwiod 50000
(ewwpiBoud puny dn Buijjeas) yym ubio o} uoyounf
pawinssp) sjuswanoadwi uoyounf yBnoayy AjIGoY oM PROY [PIDISWWOD) / POOY YUl
anoidwil pup dyypI} BJ2Ad Jo) 8Jnol b 3|qoul - AjD piojeisH o} [|IH suojsajAy syu Ao #0000
BuioAd ajnoy
PUD BUD{|OM 4O} JUSWUOIIAUS DYJDII-MO| D B}08ID O} 894D [jIyuspaid
pooy uoBull|i| uo Jaiy Jopow [ouaiod Jspisuo) - proy uoyBullL 0} pJojaisH £0000
g auoiss|Ay ybnouyy anos Buojo Buyybi| sepisuo) -
‘(34 duojsaAy ojul Yol 8|24 Jo
uolpbnuUoD) swwpibold puny dn Buljjeas|iad so ||
auoysa|Ay 59y Buo|b suolPPUSUILIODS. JBPISUOD) -
uoljpjeben
U0 3204 N> pub doB WG’ WNWIUIW D Y§IM SisI[2Ad pup
suplisapad o} 8]qIsse0D S| 8{N0J BY} 8INSUS O} g 3o suolsajhy DIA
auojse]Ay ojul siaLIDg UBIsepal JO [DAOWSI JepISUOD - pboy 869]|0D o ||IH suolsajAy syur A 20000
(ewwpiboud puny dn
Buijjena] ybnouyi passiyoo aq o} pawinsso) Aljiqodjom
aAoidwil pup dyYjpI} 8242 U0} B4N0JI D BqPUT ~ auD7 suuap o} ||IH uojsajhy syur Ao 10000
suolppuswwodal ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswubiy # ainoy al

ubisep Buiobuo yym syuswasoadwi ubiy- aup A||o4 / GOPY syur AyD 0£000
(Buipuny dn Buijjeas)
Aqg ps|qous) ||IH suojsse|Ay Buojo juswdojerep
ubBisep BuioBuo yym sjuswsnoiduwi ubiyy - syuIm ApD 62000
aAlpIadO-0D 8y | ajnoy
o} juadpfpp PO BJIAISS Y} 0f BulPBUUOD ‘PDOY sW|3 poOoY sw|g 834y 324D [IIlyuspaid
991y ssoop Buissoid ubonoy pasijpoubls Jspisuo) - / poo4 eAlpiad-0D 8y 0} piojaleH 82000
‘PROY PUDISPUDIS) Of §D8UUOD Of POOY
J8WIOH Woly 67y $50420 uolsiaoid Buissoud enoadwi -,
‘sjuswanoidwi uoliysepad puo
Jdompau 81242 ayy jo Ajjiqoawiad 1ajpaib 1oy mojjo
o1 67V payduyoIs AlyBiy ays Buimojjos ainou spaul| uolduN( POOY UMOIMEN
Buipinoid ‘poou ad1A18s pROY JawoH Buojo BuipAd / PPROY J3WoH o} uoyoun(
MO|3bJpu0d Buljqoua 1oj ub|d UOIDD UD INO JOg - POOY JOWIOH / PROY UDWOY syur A /2000
300.g JOZOA
pup usyaUIBH O} $98UU0D 04 suDT ybnold Buojo yyod Appiopg esn paipysg
asn paibys pusyx3y "dyyoiy 8|9A2 pup suplysepad uoy “DIA 3Ul| }00.g JOZDA / BUDT
821A18s JO [8A8] 8y} anoidwi of sup ybnojd pub ppoy ybBno|d o} pooy ssoldaliym
ssoudayym Buojo yyod asn paipys Buisixe uspim - ‘Ao UIBISOM J0BI) syu AD 92000
dob wg'|
wiNWIUIW B Y}im ssi|2Ad puo sublisepad o} 8|qissedon JEEIITS
S1 198115 JOOWUOUDD) WOJf MM OUO UOIDI8UUOD 8y} 10Bp3 o} jeallg Joowuoun)
2.Nsus 0} sielIDg UBISaPaJ 1O [oAOWI JBPISUOD) ~ ‘Ao uis)seMm Jool0) syur Ao 52000
BulpAd 1oy Aom-omy
Buiuiojal jsjiym ‘Buiuspim ADMOO) MO]|o Of dJDI}
Jojow Joj Abm-auo J9a.}g Ui Bulypw ajpbBisaAu| - 199U)5 UsaI9) / PPOY BA0IY syur Ao #2000
SUOID114S81 JO/PUD UOIDSI|DWLIO)
10y sayunpioddo Buriojdxs ‘Bunyiod Jod maInsy -
a4nou ayy Buoo BulyyBl spiroid -
SPPOJ BPIS $5042D suplisapad pup sisi2Ad
40y Ayioud spinoad o} saunjoay Buiwiod oyyol) -
Jooysg Aibwiid episyno
Appjnaippd ‘synou Buojo Buiuspim Abmiooy siojdxg -
(sp1gaz zx a9 o} Ajay)))
supliysapad Joy sBuissoud jo Adusnbauy espaudu| - uoyoun( |jiH auoysalAy
:2up7 suuap Buojo sainsbaw jo aboyoDg /®UDT SUUBA Of 8UDT SUUBA syur Ao €2000
pooy Adp7 awoH 404 pedojensp
Buleq ssoyy Bulyoyow JuswsAoW [opPOWINW B|qOUS 8NuaAy 8al] jnu|pm /
oy uoidun( siyy aroidwi o) up|d UOIOD UD JNO J8S - PPOY AdDT SWOH / PPOY SSOY syum AuD 22000
siuswipaJ} Buissold snonuiuod
poJ uoyoun( usyyBiy J8pISUOD) "SPOOI BPIS SSOIOD
Buissoud a|qpy pasioa b jo uoisinoid sypBiyseaul -
‘Buissoud upLysspad (gevV) 98148
pasi|oubis o4 joauyg adn|LuDD SOWOY] IS SpISiNO |00Y2S an|g / 199118 IO
}98.44S ysiowapIMm Ao Buissoud piqez spoibdn - MBN O} }98.14S YSIDWBPIM syu Ao 12000
1lipoJ uolpunl
usjybi} pup sBUISSOID SNONUILUOD “8°1 PPOY UOLIBPUNH
ojuo juswipad) Aipus poou apis eyplidoiddo ysiigoisy -
Ao ulelsepm
J0819 0} 128UU0d 0} dDB WG| WNWIUIW D YHIM SISI[2AD
pup supbLiysepad o} 8|qISSEIID SI SN0 BUj} 8INSUS Of Ao uteisam
2s0]D abpliquiad uo sialIpg UBisepal 4o sAocway - 10815 0} PPOY UoHBPUNH syur Ao 02000
sjuswanoiduwl ubliysspad
puD yJomau 8242 ayy Jo Al
pup ApAlpdauu0d aacidwi o) j9a.is sioll4 Buojo BulpAd uolippYy Joj|1Puno)
Mo|jbijuod Buljqoua 1oy upbid UoIOL UD JNO Jag - 199} sJpli4 - syur] ApD 61000
o1p.} 824 pup supliysapad ioj a31A19S JO
193] 3y} aroadwi o) yyod asn paipys Bulsixe UspIM -
pooy ajnoy
10ZDA PUD %00.g J0ZDA UsaM}aq Pa||pysul Buissoid) uoyoun( 924D |IIyuspald
updNO| 4o dwi} BuIssoId [PUOHIPPD JBPISUCD - POy J0ZD /300.4g J0ZOA 04 plojaieH 21000
(suoissnasip diysisumo pupj oy joafgns)
juowag ybnouyy yyod ssn paipys oy Buydsuuod ajnoy
‘aupT ||PYRINY 04 }s0T MIA AqQy Woly 8inos BuidAd Aom 894D piojaisH
/Bunjiom AomaBol1iod o Buipuaixs siojdxg - J8jsayd1o( 0} sUDT [IPYINY o} auoysbury /1000
sjuswenoiduwi ublyseped
PUD PPOY PPBWSHOMQY SSOIOD 8|q0} Pasio uo
Buissoud Ajiond 824> poeyo jybipays Jepisuo) - ‘pRoy
sis1|2A2 Joy Asuunofl yjoows spiroid o} sjuswanocidwil 150d UBP|09 O} UOIIBUUOD
@opyuns pup Buybi| eypdoiddo sspisuo) - PROI-JO / PLOY dWoyLIoN Jajsulwoa 91000
suolppusWWodas ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # @inoy al

ST0Z 4oquianoN

s}oafoad aunynj jo jsi

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspiojeleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

78

Q@

110



€l

51511942 pue suersapad Joj uasauldH

spaemo} y6no.y) 210, Aemybiy-j0 buoje sapesbin

Jenuatod pue peoy puelspue.g Buoje S13A3] J1ye.} 33npad 0} Bunjass

135019 1IN0 3ABYY WOJJ $53398 JUaWA0]aA3p M3U Y)m sjesodoud ubny -
(uonesjuelnsapad j9a.)s

yBiH "3'1) ueld JUBWISAAU| FAM-UO-SS0Y UIYIIM PAUINO SUOHEPUSIWIOIDY
a1ygeu) 91945 pue sueinsapad

10§ 32135 J0 13A3] 3y} 3A0Id W 0} yied asn paeys Bunixa UIPIM -

Aep usaysap 1.9 0juo SS3dde 0 adeds uelsjsapad pajedipap APIAOIg-
syleq asn

PaJRYS JaAIY 0} SS0128 AJIAIIBULDD BpIACId 0) BUISSO.) UBINOY 0 133,15
SUIIBW 1S A0 paleo] Buissoud uelnysapad Jua.ns Bujpelbidn 1apisuo) -
193115 auuAmg Buoje Buiaks mojje.3uoa Bungeus oy uejd UONIE UE N0 135 -
Bujuapim Aemjooy s)qeua pue yipim Aemaberiies buonpal ai0jdx3 -
Kemaber1ies uo A1aJes 1511942 33UBYUS 0} S3IN1E3) BUIWED 1ljel) d.01dXT -
‘Aya4es uelysapad poddns 0y 13215 SsJelpIRIg

550498 BuIsS01 pasijeuls 0} Buisso.d payjopuoaun BuipesBdn Japisuo) -
funiqesnem anoidwi o) 33uesip Buissod 33npas pue spaads

BUILINY 312143 MO]S O} IPE UOHAUNI UBIYBI} JBPISUOD "BUET SUUBA OJUO
peoy 3621109 s50.98 BUISS0.2 3]qe) Pasiey 1o AeM00} SNONUIUOD JaPISUO]-
saJnjeay buiwes Jyjeuy

yBno.y) uoaunf o} yaeoidde ay uo pue yBnoly) paads BujINPal JapISUO) -
199415 Jolid

01u0 559998 aA0.dwW] pue BuISSOLd UBING} JapIM & BulUBWa]dLI JapISUO] -

anoad

| pue
apir0ad o) 1anjesed abeys 1943 ajesedas yim BuISSO.D Pasieubis JapISUO) -
%Y U0 Juod 1211ju02 Je spaads 3121Y3A MO]s 0}

uonaunl o1 yaeosdde uo suawREaN AnUB Pastel pue ipes uoraunl UBIYBLL -

e Jeg S 3S yBnoay}

6unnoJ sis1194> pue sueLIsapad Jo UOKEIPISUOD Ul SuaWaA0IdW! ANIGISIA -,

St0quis 812> pajured
Pa¥ew BUIPNIoU] *SUIEI 3PIS PUE JGUIED YY1 JUSWSAC.dW] 284N -

deb wg| wnuwy

© Y)IM 11e 0} 21qISSIIE S| 3)N0 3INSUD 0} 192.41S SR IS 18 pjal4 Buike)q

A 961039 Bury uaam}ag xur uo spiefjoq Bunsixa ubiSapal 10 3AOWaY -
51511942 pue suelsapad 10y WG-€ O SYIPIM 3)qeISap

01 yIpIm yied asn-paleys BuidejInsal pue Bujuapim Aem1oo) JapISUO) -
*abplig Aseue)y

nyoddo ai0jdx3 -

0} SU011P3UL0 uets3pad 10} uoisiaoid paroidwi 1oj s

a6pug Aseueg 3 peoy SiIoM 11eng buoje Bunybn sjeridosdde sapisuog -

qmJ 118q3004 SP13IHSIM
“BIA 6V 0} 13215 JOLId PUE 13315 %00IG]IIW

‘peOY pueISpUEIg 'BALIQ X0g ASUPIS

ealy uequn akm uo ssoy
122115 sulep

15 01 BUNI3UUD 2101 JBATY / 12315 BIIA

193.15 EllIA ‘PeOY 150 UsPI0g

198415 BUUAM / 198.1G SUNIEN IS
peoy jeuey
0119215 AqsBuUIL0) 192115 YSIEWaPIM

Jeanls SieLppPENg 1985 1263

aue suuap o0y peoy 9631109

193115 J0lid / 597V /19205 J26p3

peoy abayjog / aueT suuspy

peoy

$50122)1UM / PEOY JBWWLIg / 193115 UBI3

10815

SR 1S 03 SPIaL BuIkeld A 3B10ag Bur

uonaun! 2y yblens auL

/ Peoy A2e7 3WIOH 0} Peoy SYJOM T1EjN0

U Ay 65000
ueld
Juawysau| akp-uo-ssoy 75000
syur Ao £5000
syur Aug 25000
syur] Ao 15000
syur Aug 05000
s Ay 67000
s Ay 87000
syur Aug LY000
syur Aug 97000

#Iom1au 3195 3y jo Aunigeawiad 1a3east 1oy mojIe 0] 13335 YBIH

/193415 peoug uo bunaka moyje.yuod burgeus Joj uejd uoiae ue 3o 3as -

“lepayied piojaIsH 0ju] $53938 21943 apraotd pinom siyy Buissosa janiesed

() eayspJojetsy ui spoafoid ainyny Jo isi € 3|qp).

uonounf Jaa.4s jse3

0] 19315 SJa11a4 ‘193115 3)Ise] edpayie)

suolppuswwodal ubisep jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy

57000
sy Ang 77000
# 9inoy ai

ST0Z 4oquianoN

/ Antonid 21243 e 03 392135 peoug Jano Buissoud eiqaz buipesfidn sapisuog - PJ0jaIaH 133415 Y24ny) 19345 peolg syur Ang £7000
S3121yaA J0j0W 10} 43P0 A|uo-sS3208 BuIdI0juB YBNOIYY
120415 1se3 Buoje 6u11IKI Mo1jeL3u0d Burjqeus Joj Ueld UONIE Ue 3 JS -
sjuawieal) Bulsso.d snonupuod
/ peJ uonaunl uaybiy Jepisuo) JaaJls adnjue) pue 122415 KaQIBYI3 IS 192,15 UOS|BN ‘183115 1IN 182115
WoJy Spe0 3pis $50.9e SBUSS0ID 3]q8) Pasiey Jo uoisinoad ajebnsanul - adnjue) ‘18RS 1ag1auI 1S 1eRIS 1583 27000
SjuaWiea) BUISSO.D SNONUKUOS / 1P Uoaun uaiybiy Japisuoy
193115 5,UaMO 15 SS0.98 SBUISS0.D 31qe) pasiey Jo uolsiroad ajeBnsanul - UoNRUNI 133,15 SUBMO 1S / PEOY A0 17000
ssa20e 2190 pue Aiigexiem panoduwy
10) Alivey 3 padeys 19315 SIeLIpOEIG PUE 193115 JeBp3 Ssadde 0) Buisso.d
ueano) aeys a1BuIs e yim BuISsols Ueanoy Jabbeys buideldas Japisuog - 192415 SJeLIpfRRIg / 19215 JEBp3 07000
‘128415 J0OWYBIH S5019€ BUISSO.D 31qe} Pasiey e Jo uoisinoad aleblsany] -
doys snq ssazoe
01 au aJ153p uetnsapad uo Buired 31119e) pue squay paddoup JapISUOD -
peoy
puejspue.g uo uoisinoid dojs snq o) BulIauL0d 1am Se 13315 dJowybIH an1Q xog Aaupis
0Ju0 peoy puejspue.g S50.08 BuISS0.2 Ueliisapad pasiieubls Japisuod - /19315 210WYBIH / Peoy pueISpUELg 65000
ueq usalg aueq
4 Woly 7Yy S50198 BUISS01D Udno) pasiieubls JapIsUoY - U3alg9 /193115 MaN 7YY / 19941 Moquiey puejsbury o} Jajsujwoa] 8£000
Aimaissaase
194 pue Aligesem aroadw o) Bujuapim Aemiooy pue |enowa aul) 3.usd peoy
‘sjuswiea. adeyns ajerdoudde Japisuod pue Gupjewadeld alebnsanul - UBI3 / Moy JamolieM / adoyumoy vzzyg Pa0jaIaH 01 9hM-U0-SS0Y L8000
193115 JOOWYUO 0JUO SS3IIE
piA01d 0} POy [BI2JBWW0] J3A0 BuISS0.3 Uelsapad pasijeubls Japisuog -
1ans yoeouddy
Joounjuojy Guoje 6uraka mojjeu0d Bungeus Joj ueld uonde Ue 1n0 1S - uonels 0} peoy Jeue) 1931 J0OWHUOW 95000
sjuawiea) Buisso.d snonuiuod / peJ uonaun ualyti Japisuog ‘peoy 132115 ELIOPIA
uoyeg / 111 Awooug Jo sBuIsS0.d 3]qe) paste. Jo uojsirod ajebysau] - 61y 01 peoy uojeg ke usaisap 183l €000
Ajijiqisse0p 8j2Ad
pup Apjiqoyjom aacidwi of AbmabpliIpd ayy jo apis
Jayy1e AJIAIIDOUUOD Ysi|qpyse of proy yui Ay Buojo
yiod asn paioys o} Abmjooy BullieAuod Jspisuo) - 192145 10Bp3 6V O} SOPY syu Ao €000
POOY Ul AHID SSOIOD JUSWUSAOW LINOS-L1IOU S4D}[ID0)
0y} Buissou) ubono] o4 Buissoud pasipubis spoibdn -
Ajpiqissedop 8j2Ad>
pup Ajjigoyom saoidwi o) AbmaBoLIpD ayj jo apis
18119 AJIAIID8UUOD Ysi|gpisa of ppoy yui AjD Buojp 19914 YSIDWaPIM
yyod asn paioys o Abomjooy BuipieAuod Jepisuo) - 0} pooy YuIl AlD Sory ££000
sjuswypaly Buissosd
SNoONULUOD / PRI uolduN( ualyBiy JspISUCD "SPLOJ BpIs
$50400 sBUISSOID 8|0} PasID jo uoisiroid ayobyseaul -
yiod asn paioys Buiuspim 1oy saliunpioddo
Buliojdxa ‘uoypieben ulpUIDW puUD 3oPq N - ajnoy
uoypBaibas sul| ajym arowal 824D [jIyuspaid
pup y4od asn paipys Buojo Buidpyins saoidw - 08¥V o} E0LPY o} pioyaisH 2€000
‘MMD 0} }28uu0d
0} POOY UOLISPUNH O} 8NUBAY 881] {nUjDM Wodj yyod
@sn paJoys Jo uoldes Joys Buyuswejdwi Jepisuo) -
“Buissoud uponoj pasijpubls o} ppoy juow|eg ppoy juowjeg
Jan0 Buissoud pajjopuooun BuipoiBdn sspisuo) - GOPY / ©NUSBAY 884] JNUIDM syur Ao LE000
suolppuswwodas ubisap Jo Apwwing Juswiubiy # ainoy ail

up|d ainpnuysoupul Buieaym Bunjjom BuipA) 0207 DUNo) aaiyspiojeisH

alyspIoyeIsH

79

Q

12



SlL

(g) eaiyspJojatey ui spoafoid ainyny Jo isi ¥ 2|qp).
uo1})0S| JO 3SUIS PIoAR 0] 3jnod |)nj Buoje Bunybr Japisuo) -
aseq 0} yjed asn paseys wo.j buissosd
sjulod buissold
sjes 3jeN]19e} 0} SauI] BUING Jeau BuISS0I> Ueana) sjeridosdde Japisuog -
a|qiss222e ‘3aIsnoul ajeald 0} abexaed Buined 3108y pue squay paddouq -
sainos ,a6pay ay puiyaq,
sjods 6uijsau 31qe)inNs apiA0Jd 0} UMO) By} SSOJ2E SaYIUBE -
Bunebisanur yBno.yy Ajjenuajod Aemabierriea ui 6unako pioae o} nogepunoy ainoy
suelsapad 1oy Aioid Buipiaosd ‘SBUISS0.3 SNONUNUGS JapISUOY -
wo.y pgyYy Jo Juaixa |1y buoje yied asn paleys Bujuapim Japisuo) - peoy uonels ‘0gyy 219K 111Yuapa.) 0} paojaiaH 69000
sBuISS0.2 Uelsapad pa)joJjuod Jo Aauanbauy Japisuog -
uoiysod Aemabersies
S3191Y3A 10}0W UMOP Mas 0} paubisap Saniead Aemaleg, -
A101€1N2.11> pUe S)IX3 ‘saljua aue) 316uls ay) aleys Ajajes ued sisioAd diel) Aep siaiiaey
SeaJe §SaJ pue aunjanssesur uaalb se yans syudwaosduwi
13410 18U} 0S UIPIM BUE] 3INpaJ puE SPaads dijje.) Buianpal JapIsuoy - /12315 166p3 / (67Y) PEOY UMOIMAN syur Ay 89000
wyeas angnd yym pasejdad ‘sbunie. paenb Jo jerowas Japisuod -
*spuawanoldui Aemjooy pue Buiuaiyfiy sopmoul st swswsnosdu]
[ 61 d: d d -
uotiunt ybnodyy asustiadxe uetlisapad o} sjuswao.dwl Japisuod 193,15 J0OUWNUOR / peoY Jer2.awwo) L9000 “BUI|EM 32UBLUB 0} UMO) BY} SSO.IE SIUBWAA0IdWI Uelsapad apim-ealy 3.y uequn uolbuly apIMm eauy uojbury 09000
¥1BM UoIUn Uo peJ uonauni a3npay ¥1EM UoIun / POy e1IawWo) syur Aig 99000 awuiod Bursson
SisNIk3 Joy saun] 21q1559998 ‘anisnjaul ajea.d o abesyoed Buined a)oe) pue squay paddouq -
dojg pasueApy yum uoun| pasijeubls Buanpoul ‘ubisapas uopaunf - peoy Jozep / peoy pueispue.g S4ur Ao §9000 s10ds Bunysal 3)qe}ns apiA0Ld 0} UMO) 3y} SSOIIE S3YIUAg -
suswiealy suewysapad Joj Aiolid Buipiaoad ‘SBUISS0.3 SNONUNUOS JBPISUOD -
BUISS0J2 SNONUKUOS / 1IpeJ uonaunf uajyBl Japisuo) peoy uojduielg $BUISS0.2 UeLsapad Pay0.1uoa Jo Aauanbaly Japisuog -
6uoje speoJ apis sso1de sBUISS0LD 3]qe} Pasiey Jo uoisirold aebnsaaul - S3]2142A J0jow UMOP MoJs 0} paubiisap Sainjea Aemaleg, -
peoy uojduielg sso.ae (s)juiod Buissoud pasijeubis |eUOHIPPE JapISUog - SealE 1534 PUE 2INJaNISELU U316 SB YINS SjusWaACIdW!
JUBWUOIAUS paads Jamo]s 3jea.d 0} peoy uojdwe.g Buoie sisjued pue w)eas anqnd yym pasejdal ‘sbunies paenb Jo jeAOWaL JBPISUOD -
SaU2IYY ‘SAWNY PEOJ ‘SIN0-PIING Se YINS 3.njea) BUILLIED J13e.) JaPISUOD - peoy uoidwe.g p.ojaJaH 0} akp-uo-s50Y 9000 :s9pnUI SIY) sjuawanoldw] %
sjuiod buissotd “Buiyiem aaueyua 0} UM} 3y} SSO.I2E SjUBWAACIdW] UelL)Sapad apim-ealy ealy uequn pledwolg 3pIM eauy pJefwolg 65000
2]qIssa22e ‘aAISN)oUl 2jeald 0} abexoed Buiaed a)ijoe) pue sqlay paddoaq - sjuiod buissotd
s10ds Buiysal 3)qeyns apiao.d 0} UMo) ay) SSOIJe SaYIUAgG - 3]qis5922e ‘3aISn|oul 3jea.d 0) abexaed Buined )18y pue squay paddouq -
suelisapad Joj Aio1id Buipiaoad ‘sBUISSO.D SNONUNUOS JBPISUOY - s10ds Bunsal 31qelns apiA0.d 0} UMO) By} SS0.9€ SaYIUaE -
sbuisso.d uelsapad payjoliuod jo Aduanbaly Japisuog - suelysapad o) A1o1ud Buipiaoad ‘sbuissols snonunuod Japisuo) -
S2]2142A J0j0W UMOP Mo]s 0} paubilsap saunjea Aemaleg, - (Puswoy
seale |sal pue aunjanuiseyu; uaalb se yans syuawanoldwy ay] buoje 6-2) sBuIss0. UeLsapad pa]jouju0d o Aduanbaly Japisuo) -
w)eas angnd yym padejdas ‘sbunie pienb Jo |eAOWRL BPISUOY - (uoneys Aemiey Aingpan “69)
Sepn1oul Sy sjuswanosdwy £ungpa BuLI31US S31D1USA J0JOW UMOP MO]S 0} paublsap Sa.njead Aemajeg, -
‘Bup{lem 33UBYUS O] UMO] Y} SSO.IE SJUBWAACIGW] uelIISapad apIM-ealy ealy uequn akM-Uo-550y apim ealy akpm-uo-ssoy £9000 seale 1531 pue auMINLISeLUl U3aIB Se YINs sjuawaAcIdwW]
wieal anqnd yum paseidas ‘sbues penb Jo |eAOWR JBPISUOY —
snuss :sapn)aul siyL sjuawanoldw|
umo} 3y} Ut pue sjooyas puno.e Buipn)aur uonejusLaldw| sauoz ydwgg - fpmis "Bupfiem 3JueyUS 0} MO} 3y} SSO.IE SjuawAAIdW) UelSapad apIm-ealy ealy uequn Aungpa 3pIm eauy Aingpa 85000
APMIS UBWaAO KM UO SSOY UIyIIM PauNIne se J abexdeq ea.y uequn akm 4 A N 29000
sui0d Buissol> areidoadde a1aym BuluapIM pue BUIDEINSa. YUBWYSIQINGa. 1B] UMO] -
aqIssa298 aAISNIRU Bjeasa 0} abeyoed Buied aye) pue sq ey paddoi - sapnjou; siyy ABojens piodsuely K1ngpaT uiyim paunino se 9 abexaeq ety uequn Aingpa  ABajes wodsueuy Kingpa 15000
sj0ds Bunsal a)qeyns apiroad 0} UMo) ay) SSOIIE SaYIUAG - Buissou) J1el] umoy /19215 akg Juawaldwi -
suernisapad oy Aj1ioud Buipiaoad ‘sBuUISS01d SNONUNUD JapISUO) - fkuoedes bunysed jeuonippe
$BUISS0.2 Uelsapad payoJ1uoa Jo Aauanbaly JapIsUo) - BUIPN|OUI 3SNOH 134B 4 punoJe aseds aqnd asea.oul o) Aem100) PaUBPIM -
$31914aA J0j0W UMOP MO} 0} paubisap sanjead Aemaleg, - 212 BuigLay
seale |sa1 pue aunjanuiseyur uaalb se yans syuawanoldwi 'S13113YS 3pNJUI 0} 31}U3D UMO) BY) UIYYIM SaNNIGE) | d Jo Buipeabdp -
w)eas anqnd yim paseldal ‘sbunies pienb Jo |eAOWIL JAPISUOD - uonels Aemies
Sapn|dul SIy) sjuawanosduw pue |eLIOWa JeM ‘3SNOH 13xJej ays Aq Ajjeidadsa uonewojur 3wy jeay -
‘BUBIEM 32UBYUS 0} UMO] BY} SSOJIE SJUBWAACIW] UeLISapad apIM-ealy AUy URQIN JB1SUIWI0ST 3pIM By Ja1SUIW0aT 19000 :sapnjaul siy) ABajeas Jodsues] AIngpa uym paunino se g abeyeq ealy uequn Aingpa  ABajeds jodsuel) Aingps 95000
suolppusWWodas ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # ainoy al suolppuswwodas ubisap Jo Apwwing Juswiubiy # ajnoy ail

ST0Z 4oquianoN

up|d ainpanugsoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeleH

[louno)
anyspiojasoH ‘R

14



Ll

Jood juouwlag o} 128U 0} G9yy Buoje yied asn pateys pue Buissols ueano}

anoy

spiat4 Buikeid A 261009 Bury yBno.yy yjed asn-paeys ojuo AemaberLies
wouy ssanae Asea apinoud o) syuswieay Buieyns sjeridosdde Japisuog -

(smoly ae) o 193[qns) uonoun|-1 pasieu

0} 1N0EPUNO JUBIS3.) UOJUIH / PEOY UOJUIH J0 UBISapal 3}eBisaAu| -
[

Juawaned ‘F's sainseaw juawabeuew bupied sjepdo.dde Japisuos -
SjusWwanow 153k ajeqioey

0}25019 auLBa13 / PEOY UOJUIH JO IN0gepUNC. BuIualyBY JapISUC) -
peoy uojuiK Buoje spaads d1yje 33NPa 0} |EAOLA AUI] 31jU3d J3PISUO] -
‘swiweaoud puny

dn 6umaas) yum buubne ‘peoy Are awjoy Buoje sainseaw Jo abexydeq

suetijsapad Joj Huisso.d pa)oajuod aanpoJjul ‘auey dijs uiny-jybill aroway -

SjUBWaAOW YINos-you Buisijiiond ae. 31940 Joj Sjuawanow pashieubls
1991014 8E7V 3U3 U0 dljje.i-ybno.y) pastiojow io Aveded Jo sjans)

310EUOSE3 UIEI3 0} 3P0 Ul SJUSWSAOW J1jje] JOJow BUILIN} 39npaY -

SuonaUN( S} Je pue JopLiIod
S13 Buole spuaLwaroIdw; Jofew Yim ANEINSIIOY SIY) JaPISUOS - odsued
a1qeurelsns 1oy saue) Ailigow, se Saue] asay) J3pisu03 ‘skaunof snq slqenas

pue ainb a1qeus o3 ggyy a1 buoje suone.

410 Ul S3UE) SNQ I

uoy

(Butpuny dn Bummana] Aq pa1geus) 1915 100425 anig Buoje sjuawaAoIdwI

10p11100 Jo Juawdojarap ubisap BuioBuo UM SjuawaAoldw; Uiy -
Jewsajew 3500] Ajua.ind

S1Y2IYM UojemuY| JBAY SSO.28 210 AemaBeLLIEa-o Jo BuldeLINsaY -

ea.e Jenuapisal
550,98 330 33, Jiyge.} BuipiAo.d ‘31qisea) Ji Wg 0} Yied aSN-PaJeys UspIM -
uyeu) J0jow

yum paxiw Aemabersea uo bunakd s)qeriojwod 133y 03 31doad jsow Joj mojje
0} S3WNJOA J1jje1} JOJOW ||BIBAC 3INP3 O] S3INSEBIN 3PIM BIIE IBPISUO] -
Amiqesiem anoadwi pue spaads Buiuny 312143 Mo]S 0} IIpES UOHIUNI

ua1yBly pue spaads a121YaA 3NPa. 0] 3938 YIIYM 19215 BUOJE SINSEIN -
o215 uojbuLieg

550498 SBUISS0.3 SNONUNUOS YBNO.Y) AIAIII3ULO03 uelsapad anoidw] -
Bunak> pue Bup|eMm oy SYIPIM 31qeNns

UBIUIBW 0] J31JN)D 139115 JO 1EAOWIAI 3]GRUS Jey} S3IDN0d UONIE PUE MAIADY -
e} 0j0w

Yim paxiw Aemaberises uo buiaka a1qeliojwo 198y 03 a1doad 150w Joy Mofje
0] S3WN|0A J1jJE.1} JOJOL 1|BI3AO 3INPAJ O] S3NSLIW 3PIM BAIE JAPISUOY =
1enusiod 312h>

pue Auiqexiem anoldw pue spaads BujuINy 3121YaA MO]S 0} lIpe. Uopaun|
uajybiy pue spaads 3)31YaA 33Npal 0] %3S YIIYM S19313S BUO|e S3INSEIN -
sjesodoug punj dn Bunjans) 111H 2uoysalhy oWl 31 -

uonesijeuones

Joj saniunyioddo Buiiojdxa ‘peoy jerRuawwo) buoje buiyled Jed majray -
sbuissosd

219e) pastea B0y} spec apis ssoJoe sueljsapad of Ajiond Japisuog -

(¥) @aiyspJojeteH ui spoafoid ainyny Jo isi

sp1ald Buikeld A 361039 Bury| / peoy uojuIH

0} uopdUN| peoy UojulH / peoy AeT awjoy

193,15 UsIeWapIM / 192415 100435 anig

13]EMUBY| ‘BIA 3501] SJ3]IN 0} BueT] Saues]

peoy

Aingpa ggyy 03 peoy auag uoydwe NiH
uBI3 P10 ‘PeoY pLekauIp ‘PeoY SyeJebiep
1S ‘peoy yied uordwey ‘peoy ublg
uonaun| jaa.3S peo.g/ivans buly

01123, SEIOYIIN IS 133415 BLIOWIA 67V

19215 JoowuouE) / 12835 JeBp3

(aue saquin o}

peoy ausg uojdwen woid) peoy Aingpa

199415 Ujeg 0} PEoy |eIIaWwWoy

syurt Ay

puejsbury 0} Jajsuiwoa]

Hurt A

syur Ay

ol 0} pIojalaH

sy Ang

5 a|qoL

LL00O

9L000

81

6L000

¥L000

€L000

2L000

1,000

0Looo

pasijeubls Juawa)dui| ‘ggny 13 aueT Jleuany wouy uawanosdwy uopaunr - 1004 Juowag 0} aueT JIepIny 319K PI0aIaH 0} auolsBuly 06000
AuAnoauuos vewnsapad vonaunf
an0.duwi; 0y peoy AingpaT sano buissosd ueLisapad pasiieubls Juawadw - (ggyY) peoy Aingpa / peoy ausg uoidwey syur Ao 68000
sistko uonaun( 33eld Aloig pue
10y a2eds pajefiaifas apinoad 0} uonaunl Jo uBISapa. Jofew JAPISUOY - (67) PEOY JAWNOH ‘(47v) PEOY UMOIMAN 88000
ey Jojouws
im paxiw Aemaber sea uo Burjaka a1geriojwion 13 03 aidoad sow Joj moje
0} SOWN]OA J1JJE} J0JOUI [|2J3A0 3INP31 O] SAUNSEIN IPIM B3R JAPISUOD -
Ainigexiem aaoadwn pue spaads Buiuiny 319143A Mojs 0} lipe. uondunl uondun( peoy
ua1yBn pue spasds a121yaA 33NPa. 0] 23S UDIYM S}3auS Buole SaNSEd - J3WIOH / PEoY UMOIMAN 0} 39e1d A1oLid Syur Ao 18000
J14e4} Jojow
Uit paxiu Aemabiel1ea uo Buako a1qeriojwoa 193 03 a1doad sous oy mojje
0} SBWNJOA J1JjE} JOJOUI |EI3A0 3INP3 O] SBINSEIN SPIM E3L JAPISUOD - “uonunf peoy
Ainigesem anoidwr pue spaads Buj) B2IYaA MOJS O} IIPel UOIIUN]  SYJOM [|24iNQ O BUET UBZO.) J3a4S dHied
ua1BY pue Spaads a121yaA 33NPa. 01 335 YDIYM S13aS Buoje SaNSEA - 19315 PAOJIeH BUET UBAIY 13RS UOSIAN syur Ao 98000
el Jojow
im paxi Aemafieried uo Buiako a1geriojwod 12aj 03 a1doad sow Joj moje
0} SOUIN|OA 31441} J0JOU J|EIIA0 3INPAL O} SIINSEI PIM LIE JAPISUO] =
Aunigexem aaoaduw) pue spaads Buiuny 391yaA OIS 0} 1IpeJ UOIUN[  UDKAUNT BETY /13315 UBBIY UaIM uoRIUN(
ualyB1} pue Spaads a121yaA 3InPaJ 0} 4235 YIIYM 1231 Buoje SBINSEB|Y - 01380115 UBMO 1 ‘B1eNbS SJ933d IS 58000
uonounf 138115
1583/123.15 153 01 19915 UBIH ‘(193,15
‘12315 peoug Buoje Bunaka mojel1u03 Bungeua Joj uejd uonde Ue 110 135 - 1IBWMAN WOL) 1935 USIEWIPIM 78000
Siuawanoduw uepysapad pue BujaAd Joj sanfioe) a)gelns ainoy
13410 10 23eds 21223010 YIM INOGEPUNO Y} O} 10.13U03 JeuBiS 3aNPOU] - IN0gepuUNOY 08YY / SOLYY  319AD 1114UBpPaI] 0} pIojaIeH 28000
sueid vonenau aiyjex pioddns of pasoidxa aq
PIN03 132.05 UojuN Uo diyye.) esauab Jo moly ay) Buisiana. sued uogeInauD
15 21UB3 K12 UIIM 19915 UOIUN UO SJUBWAACIALI BjRUIPI00) -
Jiodsued) a)qeuresns oy saue) Aupgow,
se soue] asay} Jopisuos ‘skeunof snq a1qera pue yoInb sjqeus o} ggyy
ay) buoje SUORIIP Y10q Ul S3UE] SN JAPISUOD PUB M3IA WIB}-Buo] € axEl
SU0I3JIP Y100 Ul SUR] D1jjed} JOJOW OM]) 0} 133415 100YIS aNjg MOJIEN =
uonauNf J0 Wk fje uo sBuISSOL UeLsapad PaNIoAUO3 3aNPOAY] -
8EYY 2y} uo duyyeal-ybnoay) pasiiojow Joj Apdeded Jo 512A3) 193.)5 UoIUN / 133.)S |BI3WWOY
1 ute3aJ 0} J3pJo Ul 21yye.) Jojow Buiuiny aanpay - / PeoY JeRIBWWO) / 133115 100YIS anlg 18000
suewnsapad Joj buisso.> suoysalhy /
peaye-1yBies e ubisapas pue Buisso.d paJabBers jo |eAowal JapIsuoy - ey ur] Aid PA0jaIBH / POy eI Iawwo) 08000
190115 5013 35d0 o Alajes uelisapad pue moyy fpms
21j4e4} SS2UPPY APNIS JUBWIAOW 2AM UD SSOY UIYIIM pauIIno se 3 abexded - eaJy ueqJn akm- N JuaWanop M. ] 6L000
(uawdojanag
Apmis 110dsueIL UOJBUIY UIYIM PRUIING SUONEPUBWWIOIB) JuaWBdW] - ey ueqn uoibury  ul) ApmiS Lodsuey uojbury 8L000
suolppusWWodas ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # ainoy al

suolppuswwodal ubisep Jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy

# 84noy

ai

ST0Z 4oquianoN

up|d ainpanusoupu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeleH

jIouno)

auyspIojaIRH R

16



61l

AeMmuaa.b, 10 8Jn0J JaARL} BAIIE MBU @ 0JU] BUI) |1EJ SEJLIUOg 03 KM
-uo-Ael LI01s1Y 3y} BunaAU0> Kemusaig AaneA uaplog Ayl Juawaldw] -
Juswisa.Be diysiaumo pue) oy 13lgns

“Aemuaa.g Ja1suIW0aT ‘pIeALog 4a}Sad10M 3yl Jo ANIGRIA 3y JapISuo) -
SaAEUIa}IE BAISNIOUI J3Y0 1O S31eB BUIMS 113w Yim 3jnos

) Buoje Sa)s Jo 1eAOLB. 3y BUIPNIOU! KNIGISSa33e aSEaLaUI 0} JNOYBNOIY}
33841 PIE] ‘Y300WS € BuIpIAC.d ‘SJUSWEACIdW 338N S3INbal BjnoY
‘210 BuB{eM J0j Suawar0JdL AemaBeLLIED-1j0 PUE PEOI-UC JO BIMXIN -
“skemured

apISY}IOU PUE YINOS 3y} 193ULD 0} MM 343 0juo Buipea) duwel e Buiea.d
sapnjaul iy ‘Bunok> pue Bunasym ‘Bunyiem a)doad Joy 3qissade aJous pue
J34es 1t axew diay 03 g1 AGBnY PIojaIaH PuE BPISaAM 193(0Jd YIM Ul 31 -

A 59008

194 pue Aunigesiem panosduwi 1oj ajnos Buoje sijedas 1apisuog -

aue Jaquin Buoje (wa)qodd e se payuap) i)

d 3ue 121 1dope o} pauinbau 1 S3WNJOA 1.} YBN.Y) 3INPaY -
SaAIRUIBIIE BAISNIUI 134}0 40 S81eB BUIMS JejaW Yim 33nod
3 Buoje sa)ns Jo jerowwas ay} BuIpNIUI AiNIGISSa29e 3SE310U] 0} INOYBNO.ILY

32ens pie) ‘Yioows e buipiaoad ‘syuswisaosdwi adepns salinbas aynoy

2104 BUB{IEM 10} SIUBWIAACIdWI AeMaBeLLIEI-1j0 PUE PROJ-UO JO BINIXIN
SaAIBUIB)IE BAISNIDUI J3Y10 10 53186 Buims jejaw yim ainos
a3 Buoje sa)ns Jo jerowa ay} Buipn)Ul AiNgISSad2e 35€312U] 0} IOYBRO.IYY

2384nS pie] ‘4100w € BuIpiA0Id ‘SjuaWBAOITwWI 3d.4INS Sa.INba N0y

2101 BuB{|eM Lo SuBWIBACIHWI AeMaBELLIED-1j0 P PE0I-UO JO BINJXIK
SaAIEUIR}IE BAISNI2UL J3Y0 J0 Sa1eh BuIMS [eIaW Yim aInos
ay) Buoje sa)s Jo jeAowal ayy BuipnIou; Kgissaaae asealau; o) JnoyBnoLY}

22841nS pie] ‘4100w € BuIpiA0Id ‘SjuaWaA0IdwWI 3d84NS Sa.inbas ajnoy

2101 BUDY]EM 10} SJUBLISACIT! AEMABRLIIED-140 PUE PEOJ-UO J0 2JMIXIK
Bunyby sreuidoudde uswardw -
punc. Jeak-lie ae1d avje} o} BulAd 31qeus o}

3deyuns pajeas e apiroid 0} kemajpiig Buoje Budepins yjoows yuswsjduw) =

S1511942 10} A1i01id apiaad o) Saumea) Buiwles dyell -
saniuniioddo/diysaumo pue) o uatysiqelss

pue sJaujled yim palojdxa aq o} pasu sajnod

1eMm DpISJaALI padueyuT 4

afieyaed Apnis JUWAAO 3AM UO SSOY UIYIIM PAUIIINO Sul

epuaWWOdY -
UM} 3y} Jo Y1iou AJARIBUUOD 33Uy 0) BUISSOID 47y MaN §

aBeyoed APNIS JUBWIBAO AN UO SSOY UIYIIM PAUIINO SUOHEPUBWIWIOIBY -
uoiBuIyIM 03Ul Bupun peo Buoje (w3)qo.d e se paliuap! 4l)

sa1diouLd aueT 13N 1dope 0} pauinba.l Ji SAWN|OA J14je) YBNoIY} 3INpaY -
peoy

13119 NaMAIOH / peoy Xed uojdweH JaAo BUISSO.I UBINO} MU © JapISU) -
3IN0J |3ARI} SAIIR YINOS-Y1I0u

© ap10ad 0} aAM JaARY SS019€ 3BPLIG UELSaPad/a19Kd MaU @ JapISUO] -

uonejuswedw
akp-uo-Aey o) sequog femusaig Aafen uspiog
fpmis Kingisea Aemuaalg

JeIsUILI0aT pieAwo.g Jaisadlom Ja1sUIW08T 0} pIeAwolg

(7) 2oy Aem Mol JeisuiioaT o3 piojasay shem mols

PY

akp sonny JoNpUN0g - Syur At

uonaun goLyy o) aue Jaquin uoIBUILIM O) Pa0jRIaH

()
1oy Aem mols paeAwoug o) JeisuILoaT Shem mols
30y Aem mols Angpan o3 paojasaH skem mors

@
1oy ke mols akM uo ssoy 0 paojasaH skem mois
peoy ainoy

uewoy 0} peoy UoNels woiy kemajplig 31949 11Iyuapau) 0} paojaIsH
(uomppy J0]11un0g)

lleH uoiburiag o) aueT 943 UoIsNT 0} JaISUIL0ET

Apms
ealy uequn akm: el A )
Apms
2.y ueqIn 2AM: Yy Am: ]

plald sJ813d 1S uoIBUILIM 03 PIojIBH

aueT Jajng 119MAI0H "BIA peoy 3uaQ uonippy

uodwieH 0} 1N0gEPUN0 SN WBIEAS 66E7E Jonpunog - syur Ay

aue Jleysiony Buoje (wajqoud e se paynuap! 4
sadiduLg aueT 1aing 1dope o} paJinbal Ji SaWN|OA d1yje.} YBoIy} 2anpay -

02100 (yuawdojanap xJomjau 212A7/Aeme1akg yae)es 3 uojdweag

M M UIYHIM pauIINo Suol -

Juswabebus pue juswsibe

k=)
(g) @41yspJoyaisy ul sydefoid ainyny Jo ysi] 9 9|qpL
anoy
aueT jleyiany o) auojsbuly 91949 paojauay o} auoysbury 90100
ueid

ea.y ueqin kM- ] Am- ] 50100

suolppuswwodal ubisep Jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy # ainoy

61100
diysiaumo pue) o 13(qns ‘Anyiqein Aemuaaib Buriodxe § gny Ainigopn sueld jussaAu]
*871) UBId JUBLUISAU| UMOL }33}IBIN UIYHIM PBUIIING SUOHEPUSWILIOIBY - 3.y UBqIN JRjSUIW0aT] UM 1@)ely J2isuIwoaT 70100
(s1uawanoudwi 19815 YBIH UoIBUIY Ueld WBWISaAU|
81100 “31) UB]d JUSWISAAU| J]WOU0I OB PaUNINO SUOREpUAWWI0I3Y - ealy uequn uoibury U033 uojbury £0100
Juswabebus pue juswaaibe diysiaumo
pue) 0} 193[ns ‘uone.0}s3. Aemuaaig piekwoug jo Aunigeia Buriojdxa sueld Juawsanu]
£1geiou ‘ue|d JUBLIISBAU| UMO] 13)JBIN UIYHIM PAUIINO SUOHEPUBILIOIBY eaJly uequn piekwoig umo] 18xJejy piekwolg 0100
aUE" PJBYIQ JIAO 1BIL UMO] U0 36p1IGI00) MOLIEU BUILBPIM
:y abexoed Apnis 1odsue.] AINGpaT UIYIIM PAUIIING SUONEPUAWIWO93Y - ealy ueqin Aingpa  ABajeds podsuedy Kingpa 10100
L1100 spub emes
10y s1eq PoJ papea.yy (wwigpl) padeds Ajasopd Bunuawaidwi J3pisuog - IH UoWWOY 0} peoy uoydwiesg pIojaIaH 0} 3kp-uo-ss0Y 00100
91100 SBUISS0I § (Peoy UOIIM pue peoy Apmis
PlaluayaLy 31S13p1IH) UMO) 3y) Ul SBuISS0.d UeLsapad maN - aBexded - ealy uequn ahp y A d 66000
eaJe jeyy ul says Juawkojdws
3y} pue peoy 11021ng 0} UO PUB PEOY UMOIMBN UYiIM }1 3ul] 0} MM 3Y} uonippy
SL100 40 uonenunuod e apiroad o) auyy e uepunpad buuadoad Japisuo) - aul] J1ed ¥oo.g ysJewsapipm peo-Ho Jopipunog - syur Aug 86000 2
ssediapun a2e1dad 0} sBUISS0.2 apeJb-1e Buipirold ajebnsanu] - 199115 J1omag [o0]
6%V uo ssedJapun ueliysapad anoway - /13315 UBI3 8ENY /193115 BLIOWIA 69V syur Ay 16000
aue) dijs uin} 2] arowy -
71100
sueljsapad
10} 33IAI3S JO 13A3] 3SE3I2U] 0] 3]GRUOSE3. 313YM UoNIUN 1€ IIpes uoiaun|
UaYBI “UoNaUNT JO SWLIE J1E Uo SBUISS0.3 Uesapad pajiosjuod 3Inpa.iu| -
€L100
S1UBWaAAOW 15aM-1583 BuIsIyIoLd D11e.) 319K J0) SIUBLLIBAOW
pasneubis 19910.d *67Y 2y} Uo Jye.} yBno.y) pastiojow oy Auaeded Jo sjans) peoy uoyieg
Z1100 3]GRUOSE3. UIB}3. 0} J3PJO Ul SJUBWBAOW di3je.) Jojow Buruiny 3danpay - /13315 SBIOYIIN 1S / 1333 BLIODIA 49V 96000
uosn
11100 03 32ue.jUB AJIuBIS 0} (sa.njead Aemajeg) sjuawanodw wieal angnd -
51511943 104 Aj1i014d apiaoad o) saunjedy Bujwies aiygel) - (aue @43) uojsn 0} 35019 SJRNIW uojsn 0} J3jsujWoa] 6000
puesbury
0L00 0} 2duenjud Ayubls o) (saunjeaq Aemaleg) syuawanoadwi wieas AMgng -
Bunybi srendoudde yawadw - (o3
40100 subls Buiusem 63 saunjeay Buiwes oijel - ‘e1A) peoy uaalg 66N 0} 3501 SIAIN puejsBury o} Jajsuiwoa] 76000
Apnis Juawabeuely
20100 Apnis uswaBeuey J1jjea1 PIeAWOIG UIYIM PAUNIND SUOHEPUAWILIOISY - eauy uequn piekwoig 1ed) piefwoug £6000
Ue|d JuawsaAy|
UB]d JUBWI}SBAU| UMO] 13XJejN AINGP3T UIYIIM P3UIIN0 SUOHEPUBWIWOIBY - eaJy ueqJn Aingpa umoy 13xyJen Aingpa 6000
Burjaka pue Bunaaym ‘Bunnem i yimo.s 8EYY /193415
10100 319eu8 0} UonOUNI S1Y} Jo UBISaPa Jofew € 1o ueld Was}-Buo] e JapIsuog - PUElOd /19315 BLOPIA / 19835 Je6p3 syur Aug 16000
al suolppuswwodas ubisap jo Apwwing Juswiubiy # a1noy al

ST0Z 4oquianoN

up|d ainpanusoupu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeieH

j1oUN0D
alyspIoyeIsH Q



1zl

abeubis pue buipuikem panoiduw -
aoueusjUIEW UONEIRBaA

/ Buiybn pue adejns pajeas ‘yoows e buipiaoid ‘asueuajurew Aemyby

:3pNJaul SUoHEpUBWIWIaY
-3)n01 BUBEM 10 SJUBWSA0IAW] AeMaBELLIEI-1j0 PU PEOI-UO JO BINIXIN
2Beub|s pue Bujpulskem panosdu| -

@dueuajuiew uonejaban

/ BuiyBn pue s2e4ns pajeas ‘yoows e BuipiAcd BaueuBUIEW ABMUBIH -
:3pNJaul SUOHEpUBWIWOIaY

“31n0. BUB{|EM 10§ SIUBWAA0ITWI KeMIBELIIEI~1J0 PUE PEO.-UO JO BINIXIK
S3AIEUISIIE SAISNIUI J3YI0 10 S31EB BUIMS 133U YiIM 3101

2y} Buoje s3]} Jo |eAOWa. ay} BUIPN)IUl ANIqISSarIe asea.aul o) Jnoybnoyl
33841ns pie] “Y00ws € Bujpiroid ‘sjuswanoidul 3de4ns Saainbas 3jnoy
“21n0. BUB{EM 10} SIUBWEA0IdWI ABMIBEILIEI -0 PUE PEO-UC JO BINIXI -
aBeufils pue Buipuikem panosdu] -

9oueuajuiew uonejaban

/ Bunybn pue 83e3ns pajeas ‘yoows e Buipiaoad ‘saueusiuiew kemybiH -
:pNJaUI SUOHEpUBWIW0IBY

-21n0. BUB{|EM 10J SJUBWAN0Id W] AeMaBELIIEI~}j0 PUE PEO.-UO JO BINIXIK
aBeub|s pue Bujpuikem panosdu] -

aueuajurew uonejaban

01d a2ueusiuew Aemy

/ BunyBy pue adeyns pajeas ‘yjoows e buy
‘3pN)oU; SuoyepUaWWOaY

‘2101 BUDY|EM L0 SUBWIBACIAWI AEMIBELLIEI-}§0 PUE PEOI-UO J0 SINXIK
S3AIEUIB}IE BAISNIOUI 1340 10 S31eB BUIMS 1e33W Yim 3jn0s

ay) Buoje sa)s Jo eAowal 3y} BUIPNIDU! KINIGISSaIIL BSEaIIU! 0) INOYBNOIY)

298440 Ple] “y300WS € BUIpIACIA ‘SJUaWaA0IdW] 3364NS S3INb3I 330y

-21N0J BUBIEM 10} SJUBWSA0IAWI AEM3BELLIEI-4JO PUE PEO-UO JO BINIXIN -
S3AIjRUI3)IE BAISNIDUI 13U} J0 S3jeb BuIMS |ejaw Yim 3inos

2y} Buoje sa]1s Jo |eAOWa. Y} BUIPNIIU! ANNIqISSIIE 85EB.IUI 0} INOYBROIYY
3984ns pie) ‘Y100Ws e Buipiaold ‘S)uaWaro.dw] 39e4ins sainbas 310y
-21n04 BUB{IEM 10} SIUBWBA0AWI AEMBBEILIEI-HJO PUE PEO-UO JO BINIXIN -
S3AEUIB}IE SAISNIUI J3Y10 10 S31eB BUIMS [e}aW YiIM 3101

ay) Buoje sajns Jo jerowal ayy Buipn)aul Aiigissadae asealoul o} Jnoybnodyy
32841nS pIe] ‘4100Ws e BuipIAC.d ‘SjuUaWaACIdW] 3384INs S34INbal ainoy
‘2104 BUBfeM 10} S1UBWIBACIAWI AEMBBELLIEI-4j0 PUE PEOJ-UO JO BINJXI =
S3AIEUIB}IE BAISN]UI J3Y}0 10 S31eB BUIMS [e}aW YiIM 3101

ay1 Buoje sa1is Jo jeAowa. ay} Bulpn1au| AiIgIssaade asea.au] o} noyBno.yy
a2e1ns pie] ‘yioows e Buipinold ‘sjuswanoidw 32ens sanbai anoy
210, Bup{jem oy S)uaLaA0.dui AemaberiIeI -4 PUB PROI-UO JO BINJXIN -
S3AIIEUIB}E BAISNOUI 13410 40 S31eB BUIMS 1e1aU YliMm 33n0s

ay) buoje sajiis Jo jeAowal ay) Buipn)dul Aigissadae asealaul o) noybnoayy
3384nS pIB) ‘y00WS e BuIpIAcId ‘SjuaWaAcIdwl 33B4INS S3JINbaJ ajnoy

2104 BUDEM 10} SJUBLISACIAWI AZMaBELLIEI-}jO PUE PEOJ-UO JO BJNXIY -

a1n0y Aep Mo)s a1owBim o} uoBury

210y Aem mols Aa1qoam oF uoiBuy

21noy Aep mo|s aubiaisa.d 03 uoibury

310y Aep Mol uoiBuy 0} akm-Uo-ker

210y Aej MOIS Ja1sUILI0ET 0} 310WBIM

(€) 210y Ae mols A21q0aM 0} paojasa

(1) 210y AeM MOIS Y2.ny2.312d 0} PA0jaIBH

1oy Aep MO]S HaImiyBiuy o) peAwiolg

(2) @10y Aep MO)S UBMBN O} BAM U0 SS0Y

)

10y e Mol Aingpar o} aAM U0 sSOY

S3AIJRUI)|R BAISN)IU J3Y)10 10 s3)eh Buims |ejaw yim anos

ay) Buoje S31IS 40 1eAOWa. 3y} BuIpN)IUl ANIQISS3IIE 353, 0} INOYBNOIYY
3284nS pIE] ‘Y100Ws € BulpiAcId ‘SjuaWaAoIdw] 3984 Saibal 3oy
“3ino. Bunjjem 1oy syuawanoidwi Aemaberied-}4o pue peos-uo Jo aunixiy -
SaAEUIBIE SAISNIOUI 13410 10 S31eB BUIMS 1e1BW YiIM 3101

3y Guoje sa1iis Jo 1erowal ay3 Buipn)aul Ainiqissadde aseasdul o} Inoybnoayy
2981ns pie] ‘Y100ws e Buipiaod ‘SjuaWwanoIdwy 39e4Ins sainbal 210y
“3n04 BUIY|EM 10} SJUBWBA0.IdWI AeMaBELLIEI-JJ0 PUE PEOI-UO JO BINIXIN -
S3AIBUI3}R BAISN]OUI J3Y}0 10 S31eh BuiMs 1eJaW Yl 3)n0s

au) Buoje Sa111s Jo |eAoWal 3y} BUIPN)IUI AINIqISSaI2E 3SE3IIUI 0) INOYBNO.LY
3984Ns pI] ‘Y100Ws € BuIpiAoId ‘SIUBWAA0IdW] 3981INS Salinbal 210y
“21n0. BUI|EM 10] SJUBWAA0.ALI ABMABELLIED-1J0 PUE PEOI-UO JO BINIXIA -
S3ABUIAIIE SAISNIOU] J3y}0 10 S31e6 BuIMS 1e1aW Yim 31N

ay) Buoje sa1ns Jo |eAowal ay) BuIpn)aul AiNIqISsad2e asealaul o) JnoyBno.L}
39841ns ple) ‘Y00ws e BuipiAc.d ‘SjuswaAcIdw] 33eLINs Salinbal aynoy
-21n04 BuI|EM 10} SUBWBA0.IdWI AeM3BELLIEI-}J0 PUE PEOI-UO JO BINIXI -
S3AIJRUI}IE BAISN)IUI J3Y]10 10 S3)eb Buims |ejaw yum anos

2y} Buoje sa1s Jo jeAowa. ay} BuIpN|aul AiIgISsaade asea.IUl 0} JNOYBROIY}
32e41ns pie) ‘y10ows e Buipircad ‘sjuswarodwy a3esins salinbal aynoy
“31n04 BUIY|EM 0} SUBWSA0.IdWI AeM3BELLIEI-}10 PUE PEOI-UO JO BINIXIN -
S3AljRUIB}R BAISNIOUI 13Y}0 10 Sa1eb Buims Je1aW UM 3)n0s

3y} Buoje sa]lls Jo |eAOWal ay} Buipn)aul AiNIqISSaI9e 353,90 0} IN0YBROIYY

a3epuns pie) ‘yioows e buipiaoid ‘syuswanosdwy 3depns sanbas 3inoy

2104 BUIN|eM 10} S}UBWAA0.IdWI AeMaBELLIEI-}J0 PUE PEOI-UO O BJMXIN -
SaAjEUIR}IE BAISIOUI 130 J0 SajeB BuIMS JelaW Yim ajnos

a3 Buoje sa)ns Jo jeAowwal ay} Buipn)aul AigISSadIe a5EaIN

o} 3noyBnoayy
3384nS PIE] ‘4300WS € BulpiA0Id ‘SJUWEAOITLWI 398N SIINba. 3jn0Y
2104 BuUIN|eM 10} S}UBWaA0IW Aemabel1IEI- 140 PUE PROI-UO JO BJMXIN -
SaAIEUIR}IE BAISNI2UI 130 J0 Sajeb Buims 1e1aW Yim ajnos

a3 Buoje sa)ns Jo JeAowa 3y} Buipn)ul AiNigISSadIe 353N

0} 1noybno.yy
39e41ns pie) ‘y100ws e BuipiAc.d ‘SjuswaAcdwl 33esns Sauinbal ajnoy
*31n04 BUIEM 10} SuaWaAC.IdWI AeMaBeLLIEI-}J0 PUE PEOI-UO JO BJNIXIN -
PaJinbaJ a1aym ajnod jo buldepnsay -

Juswabebua pue Juawaaibe diysiaumo

pue] 0} algns ‘siesodoad Aemuaalg 10 AIqisea) pue AIGRIA JapISuog -

11e Joj yied 91qissade

21qeus 03 BujaeLINs pie| aujyIew BujpiAc.d 2104 o BUIIELINSa. JaPISUOY -
14n0 S13)quIRY UO pauoisod I3}l |epow BUNSIX® Jo 33UBUBIURW ABMUBIH -
“fy1i011d 3195 10 subis 3193 pajeaipag

“e1A UOJBUIGH 0} UOIUNT SSO.IE JUBLIBAOW 31A3 Bunjelod.oout JapISuo) -
S3AIEUIB}E SAISN]DUI J3Y}0 10 S31eB BUIMS 1E3aW YiIM 310)

ay1 Buoje sa1s Jo |eAowal ayy BupNaU| AiIgISsarde asea.aU] 0} IN0YBoIY}
32e4ns pie] ‘yi00ws e Buipinold ‘sjuswaAoidw 3vens sanbas anoy
“21n0. BuI{em 10} SjuawaAodwi Aemabel ies-Jj0 PUe PEOI-UO JO BINIXIN -
S3AIEUIB}IE SAISN)OUI J3Y}0 10 S31eB BUIMS 1B YiIM 3N0)

ay) buoje sa11is Jo jerowal ayy Buipn)aul Ainigissadde asealdu| o) Jnoybnouyy
32e44nS pIe) ‘y100Ws e BuipiAc.d ‘SjusWaAC.dwW 3384INS Sa1INbal 3jnoy

“21n0. BuB{IeM J0j SjusWaR0Idl AemabeLLIED-JJ0 PUR PEO.-UO JO BINIXI -

(9) @41yspJoyaisy ul syoefoud ainyny Jo ysi]

310y Aep MO)S 3k uo S50y 0} TiH dod10

a0y ke mols uoiBuIy 0} aSNOH PaIpUNK

(2) 210y ke MOIS Mojpn 0} JaisuUIWI0aT]

ainoy

Kep mois si1em Anqual o) Jaisuiwioa]

1oy Aem Mol JaisuiwioaT 03 Ao1q0aM

(1) 10y Aep Mo1s Jatsuiwoa] o} uobuy

(1) 10y Aep MOIS TiH 40310 03 pa0jaIRH

(1) inoy

Kem Mol ploJeH sehm3 ) paojasaH

Kem uszisapm 1esig

pdojaiay 0} akm-uo-Aey

Uled aA1SSIUWIag SMOpE3J WeysuolIeg

uondunr goLyy

(2) a0y Aem mois Aingpa o) preAwiosg

(1) 21n0Y Ae MoIS paeAwolg 0} pojaIaH

skem mors

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois
syur] Ang

Apms Aniqiseaq Aemuaaig
paojaiay o) akm-uo-Aey

uonippy

Jopuno - syur AKo

UoIBuIYIM O} pIojaIBH

skem mois

skem mois

120

L£3|qpL

7€100

EE100

ZE100

€100

0€100

62100

83

8z100

Lzo0

9z100

§Z100

72100

£2100

zzio0

1z1oo

suolppuswwodal uBisep jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy

suolppuswwodal ubisap Jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy

# @inoy

ai

ST0Z 4oquianoN

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspiojeleH

jIouno)

auyspIojaIRH R



€l

aBeubis pue Buipuiykem panosdu -
saueuajurew uonejaban
/ BunyBy) pue adeyns pajess ‘yioows e buipiacd ‘a3ueusiulew KemyBiy -

:3pNJoUl SUOHEPUBWILI0IBY

21101 BUY|EM 10} SUBLIBACIW AemaBeti1ea-j0 PUE PEOJ-UO J0 BMIXIK (2) P10JeH SeAM3 0} yanyouR1ag skem mois 89100
suer Jleyuig Buoje (wajqoad e se paynuap! )
Sa1d12uLg aueT 181nD 1dope 0} pauinba Ji SaWNJOA e} YBNO.L} 3INPaY - sueTlleyulg  SuoNIPPY JoIPUN0D Ystied L9100
“Aj)ioey asn pateys o} Yiedjooy Jo UOISIBAUDY Oy Sholabuep AIaA ayy
3sn 0] 15119K2 10} Pa3U 3Y) 2AOWIAI PINOM 1EY) ‘2SN 12NP 11 Hew 0] PAUIPIM 3q
PIN0D S1Y} §| 'UOISIM 0} BIUBUS WIeS 19POJN 3y} WOy y1edjooy e S| 3Jay] - pJeAuad Japun uojsap 03 aApm-uo-ssoy SUONIPPY 40]119UN0Y ysiied 99100
“Uojea1 Kem1004 ‘IdJ UM EL7E6N BUBUN 21n01 1eINaL1D Bjes apiAold - SUeT UOIBUNIBM / QLYY SUONIPPY JOIPUNOY Ysted $9100
“uoljeald
femi004 “Uokd uoue Jo aBelA 31 yIM 100425 3BeIIIA BuIIAUL 31N0s 1n0g swua]
Buiyiem ajes se 1]am Se '9ldd YIM |07E6N Bujul ainod Jejnaaid ajes ajeal) 0} 100425 AJewiid uokd uoue) - o[LyY SUONIPPY 40]11UN0Y ysiied %9100
“uoneass emiood 0gdd PUe 1Ldd 100425 Asewilig uokq
‘01d0 69 BUIIIBULOD S3IN0 JENIID MOJIE O) SHUI) BUBEM 3J8S 3pIAOLG = UOUED 0] UONEIS 3IIAIGS YUBE YsNg - OLIYY  SUONIPPY JOIPUNOD ystied £9100
*uonjeasd kemjood ‘sjuapisal 1oj ajnos
Bunflem JeN.1 3jes MoIlY “uu] ysng 0} Wed a1 Aem auakm/6da ur oL - UujySNg - OUYY  SUOMIPPY JOIPUNOY ysLied 29100
‘pauinbai saydipupad aue) jainb pue BujIeLINSaY JuaLIOW aY3 1@ Bulkd Joj 11y
10U 51 12y} pja1y 3|qeIe Ue S3SS0.3 12y} Weq 9pAT JBMOT puUE SiIoM aBemas femiaing uonppy JoRUNog - A1
U0JaIO}Y Y} UBEMIB] UOIZS BUO S| 23UL 'SPR0L SN0ISBUEP SPIOAR BIN0Y - “e1n K9 pJojasaH o} 66N U0 uojasop  pIojasa o) 66N uo uojasop 19100
abeuis pue Gupuikem panosdu| -
adueuBjuew uone1aban
/ Bunyby pue ave4ns pajess ‘yioows e Buipinosd ‘Saueuaiurew AemybiH -
‘2pnjpul suoyepuIILI0IaY
2101 BuBf]Em 10} SuBWIAACIGW AeMaBeLlIed-1j0 PUE PE0I-U0 J0 I (1) 21N0Y Ae MOIS TIH d0310 0} YLuRS shem mols 09100
abeuys pue buipuikem panodu| -
a2ueusjUIeW UoiE1a63A
/Bunyby pue avejns pajeas ‘yoows e Buipinoid ‘saueuaiurews KemybiH -
2pnpUl SuonepUBWILIOIRY
2104 BUDIEM 10} SUBWIEA0IdW! AeMOBRLIIED-10 PUE PEOL-UO J0 JMIXIK awnoy Aem mols Aa1Goap oF yaanyaIoled skem mols 65100
abeubis pue Gupuikem panodu| -
adueuaueW UonEIaBaA
/Bunyb pue adejns pajeas ‘yoows e Buipinold ‘saueuajurew AemybiH -
‘2pnipUl suolepuaILI0IaY
21101 BuUY]EM J0) SUBWIAA0IGW AeMaBeL11ed-j0 pUE PEos-uo J0 JIMIXIK a1noy kem Mol A21903 0} akm-uo-kep skem mois 85100
SaAfieWINE BAISNIOU J3Y10 10 S31e6 BuiMs jejaw Yim 210
ay) Buoje sa)s Jo |eAowal 3y} Buipniaul AiNIqIssadae asealoul o} noyBnoly;
9844S ple] ‘y10ows e Buipino.d ‘Sjuawar0Idw] 99eLns SaINbal 3In0Y (1) anoy
21n01 BuBfem 10} SjuBWIAA0IdWI AeMaBel 1ed-1j0 PUE PE0.-uo J0 BIMXIN - Kem mols yaunypia12d 01 akm-uo-keq skem mois L5100
abeusys pue bupuikem panodus| -
@dueuajulew uoneaban
/6unybi pue a2e4ns pajeas ‘yoows e Buipinod ‘ueuaiurew AemybIH -
2pnpUl SUOKepUALILIOIRY
2104 BUY]EM J0) SUBIBACIGW AemaBeLiied-i0 pUE PeoJ-Uo J0 NN 31noy Aep MOIS paeAwosg o) si1a Aunqua) skem mois 95100
suolppusWWodas ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # ainoy al

S3AIIEUIB}E BAISNIOU] 310 J0 S31eB BUIMS |e1aW YlMm 33nod
3y} Buoje s3]} Jo |eAowa 3y} Buipmau; ANIqiSsasde asea.du; o) Inoybno.y)
39841ns pie) ‘Y100ws e Bbuipio.d ‘Sjuswarodwl a3eLINs Salinbau sInoYy
“ainoJ Bupjjem Joj sjuawanodwi Aemabeliied-}jo pue peos-uc Jo anixiy -

abeubys pue Buipuikem panoduw -

asueuajuiew uonejaban
/BunyBy pue adeyns pajess ‘yjoows e BuipiAcd ‘93ueuBiuIeL AemyBiH -
2PNVl SUOKEpUBWWO3aY

“21n0. BUIY]EM 10§ SjUBWACIAWI AeMaBELLIEI-H0 PUE PEOJ-UO JO SIMXIN
S3AIEUIB}IE BAISNIDUI 130 10 Sa1eB Buims 113w Yim ajn0s

ay) Buoje sa)s Jo JeAowwal ayy BuIpN|oul ANIGISSa22e BSEaIIU! 0} JNOYBNROIY}
a3e4Ins pie] ‘y10ows e BuipiAoad ‘sjuaWaACIdW 33eLINS Sainbal ajnoy
“21n0.4 BuUIN|eM 10} S)UBWaA0WI AemabelLIeI-1j0 PUE PRO-UO JO BIMXIN -
S3AIIEUI}IE SAISNIIUI J3YJ0 10 S31eB BUIMS 1E13W Yim 33n0s

ay) Buoje sa)s Jo JeAowal 3y BuipIoU KNIGISSaIR BSEaIIU! 0} JNOYBNOIY}
a3epns pre] ‘y1oows e Buipiaoad ‘sjuawancidul 33eLins sainbal ajnoy
“21n0 BuI¥|eM 10} 5)uaWaA0.IdWI Aemabel1IeI-1j0 PUE PEO-UO JO BIIXIN -
S3AIEUIB}IE BAISNIOUI J3YJ0 10 S31eB BUIMS 1E13W Yim 330

ay) Buoje sa)is Jo erotual ayy BuipIoU KiNIGISSaIe BSeaLdU] 0} JNOYBNOLY}
33e4ns pie] ‘yoows e Buipinoad ‘sjuswaAcidwl 33e4ns sainbaa ajnoy
2104 BuUIN|eM 10} 5]UBWAAO.IWI AeMaBelLIEI- 140 PUE PROI-UO JO BJMXI -
SaAeUIB}IE BAISNIDUI 130 J0 Sajeb Buims 1elaw Yim ajnos

ay) Buoje sa)s Jo Jerowal ayy BUIPNIOU KNGS aSEaLaUl 0} JNOYBNOIY}
3384nS PIE] "Y300WS € BuIpiA0Id SJUWEACITLI 338N SaINba 3jn0Y
*21n0. BuUIN|eM 10} S}UBWaA0.IWI Aemabel1IeI-1j0 PUE PRO.-UO JO BJMXIN -
aBeufis pue Buipulykem panosdu) -

asueuauleW UonejaBan

/BunyBi pue adeyins pajeas ‘yjoows e BuipiAcd ‘a3ueuBuIeL AemyBIH -

:3PNJOUI SUOHEPUSWIWOI3Y

“23n0.1 BUIY|EM 10) SIUBWAA0IALI AeMaBel11ea-Jj0 pUB PRO.I-UO JO BINIXIN
SaAIJRUIB)E DAISNIOUI J3U10 10 S31eB BUIMS |e1aW Yjim 3)no.

3y} Buoje S311S J0 1eAOWa. 3y} BuIpN)IUl AH)IQISS33Ie 353, 0} IN0YBROIYY
59e41ns pIe] ‘Yoows e Buipiroad ‘sjuswanosdwl a3eLns se.inbad ajnoy
“3Inou Bupyiem Joy syuawanoaduwi kemaberiieda-44o pue peos-uo Jo NI -
S3AljEUIR}IE GAISNIOUI J3Y10 10 S31eB BUIMS [ejaW YiIM 31n0s

ay3 Buoje s31s 4o jerowa. ay3 Buipnaul KIgIssarde asea.sul o} JnoyBo.yy
59841ns pIe] ‘Yoows e Bbuipiro.d ‘sjusarodul a3ejins salinbal aynoy
300, Buijem o) SuaWaA0.dwW) AemabelLIeI-}j0 pue PEO.I-UO JO BINIXIN -
SaAEUIBNE BAISN)OUI JaY10 J0 S3186 BUIMS [ejaW YiiM 210l

ay) Buoje sa1iis Jo jerowsau ayy Buipn)dul ‘Ainiqissadde asealoul 0} inoybnouy}
29841ns pie) ‘Yoows e Buipirc.d ‘Sjuauarodwl a3ejins salinbal ajnoy
“31n0. Buijem 1oy sjuawanodwi Aemabeliiea-Jj0 pue Peol-uo Jo aINXIp -
abeubiis pue Bupulkem panoaduy -

adueUBUIEW UOEIaBAA

/ Bunyby pue adeyins pajeas ‘yioows e buipiaosd ‘aoueuajuiew Aemybiy -
:3pNJOUI SUONEPUBWIWOIaY

310 BUY]EM J0j SJUBWAA0IHWI AeMaBELLIED-JjO0 PUE PEO.-UD JO 2INJXIY

122

() eayspJojatsH ui spoafoid ainyny Jo isi g a|qp].

aInoy Aep Mo)S uiaAjel o) pieAwolg

ainoy

Kem Mols away uodn uoyng o} pieAwiolg

(€) @0y

fem mols usanss uodn uordn o1 Aingpa

(2) anoy Aem Mol uoruners 03 Aingpay

(2) a1noy Aep Mol WamaN 01 Aingpar]

(1) 10y Aep MOIS UIBAIE 0F AngpaT]

210y Aep MOIS 3AM UO SSOY 0} YiLIJURYS

(2) @wnoy

Kep moIS UBSPIBUDIN OF 3kM U0 S5Oy

10y Aep Mol kM o S50Y 0} YooK

@

210y kem Mols 3k uo S50y 03 pa0ja100

ainoy

Kem mo)s uojbury 0} s)18m populipue)]

skem mois

skem mols

skem mois

skem mors

skem mois

skem mois

skem mois

ke mois

ke mors

skem mois

skem mois

SS100

%5100

£6100

25100

15100

84

0s100

67100

87100

Ly100

97100

S7100

ST0Z 4oquianoN

suolppuswwodal ubisap Jo Apwwing

Juswiubiy

# @inoy

ai

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAd (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeieH

[louno)
anyspiojasoH ‘R



azlL

“eydsoH Ajuno) 1eydsoy Ajunog paojelsH
Pa0jaIaH SS399€ 0} 193115 JBIYNY 1S W0y 33u3LIadx3 uersapad anosduw) 13315 YIRIYING 1S 123} SPUOWIAS 0} 13315 EIYING 1S £0Z00
“weyuapog ybnoLy
wwn paads Buianpas yBnoys 32uaLadxs 1Sk pue uerisapad aroiduw Lo weyuapog iny 90200
9815
Spuealky Buoje sainseaw Guiwies diye.) Juawajduwl pue Juwi pasds aanpay 190115 Spuejaky 1901 Spuejaky 50200
"34)u32 UMO] Y3 yBno.y) saunseaw Buiwied dyedy abeqp Aarsipaes £91sipae3 %0200
“Jnogepunoy ssoy A0 1e uoIsiAcid Buisse1 aroidw Inogepunoy ssoy 1aA0 Inogepunoy ssoy 13AQ £0200
667 6607 oAy
1Ay 550198 36p1q 2124 pue uersapad panosdwi ue Jo Aigises aJ0jdxa 8Evv SS0.2€ UOIIAULOD BENY 20200
‘peoy uojuialg pue jza.is
Bunesisam 0} SUONP3UU03 BA0adw pue Sanseaw Buiwles e Juawaidw| 193115 adoyuers 193115 adoyuers 10200
“S1511942 3]q2Ua 0} 2.1N}ea) aULDIYD BUIAOWAI BPISUOD as01 suaydals asol suaydals 00200
eAQ
41 01 Anwixoud ur peoy uowiag Sso.3e buISS0Ld UEaN0} MaU JuaWwalduw peoy Juowag 12A0 341/ peoy uowieg 66100
“ang
Ploms0) pue aueT uoBuNUNH UM PeOY 313y SBUIY 4O YioU Y} uo
papiaoud aq 0} kemyooj jeuonyppe buipn)ou; ‘kemyooy jo asueuajurew aroldwy 0LLYY pue aueq uojbununy usamiag peoy a.oy sbury 86100
“uonaunl geyY / peoy uoladysy o} yaeoudde ay) uo paads seinatyan aanpay ZLIYY 01 8y 217V / 8eyY - 1edwniy L6100
“3W014 JBAY J9A0 S3INSEIW BUILED JIjJe) JIPISU0D 1IN uapmoy TN uspmoy 96100
peoy uoLaYdsy 4Ly J0 i) paads aanpay peoy uopaydsy Llyy  3woid uoue) o) uoiaydsy 56100
aue
a6l 201SpNT YBNOIY) PEOY SSOY 6YY7Y Jo Nwi] Paads 3anpay syyY  NeH A o) wued plaipted 76100
Inogepunoy
$5047 BnBeld SS0198 SUOYIBUUD 1K) parosdul Jo Aunigisesy a101dx3 ss01) anbeid Inogepunou ssou) anbeld £6100
wiey yooug
“W.e 4 Y0oIg pue Peoy 1N0J UoYIAY UaaMIaq ZLL7Y AU} Jo Jiwi paads 2anpay LYY 1 PROY 1IN0Y UONAY ZLIVY 26100
SisipAd Joj JuauIL0IIAUS
. pe apiaoad 03 yipim Aemaberies
6uanpas Jo Aiigein 2101dxe pue sanseaw Guiles e Juswaidw peoy yLiomspiop peoy YloMSpIom 16100
uonaunf peoy
aoueuajurew uopejaban panoadu Ag ANngisia aa0iduy (fueig) Ujeyy / peoy Jalsujwoa] 06100
“ainou ay) Buoje sanunjioddo Gunysn a101dx3
si511240 10y 32uanadxa Juesea)d a1ow e apiaoid o) Buideynsas 3jnoy peoy Aumaeon o) mojed winy Wi aBpry 03 Mojled 68100
19215 Bury wouy Ayanoauuod
pJemuo anosdwi 03 133415 40 U0 6undka moyjenuod Buimone aiojdx3 199415 BYO 199115 B0 88100
“Bunybn jeuonippe yum
“Aemqns ss3338 01 Y1k Jeg SIeLAR19 YBNOLY} 3101 BUIKI Bjes IBpISuO) -
“aNUAAY sJelijhaug woly asim Juawaned aueq aue a1apanjdeg NMH
daals Buiowal ‘SIsaka 10) 67y BU) Japun Aemans wouy duwies 3piold - 2J9PaNIag ‘IItH Awoo.g ‘aueT umopadwe)  Awooug ‘auen umopIade) 18100
peoy Aingpa
-a1n01 ayy Bucje Buipuiykem pue abeubis ‘BuyBi) jeuonIppe 23npoY| IEM SJaW0S “Hiem 1adsoud 01 11K Buisalfy Kajsdny 98100
*5195N ||B 10} 33BJINS Y)0OWS 3)qeus 0} sjulod ulepad
16 BuPRJINSa.1 pUE 31GEIA 219YM 24n0.1 J0 BujuapiM Ioj Sanyunioddo a.01dx3
“Buopng
51302l 6uole uoejaban Jo B3ueUBIUIRW PUR BUNYGH JeUOHIPPE BPIACIY e udinppig o Buolng sjaqen Buong s10eW 58100
suolppusWWodas ubisap Jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # 9inoy al

ST0Z 4oquianoN

(8) @aiyspJojateH ui spoafoid ainyny Jo isi 6 3|qpL
ainos Bunako
51511942 10§ 47y WOJJ UONNIBUUOS apIA0Id puUB 3)n0J Jo BulelINSaY 8E7Y 01 7YY WO UOPeaT JaAlyY pue Bupjiem uopea JaAy 8100
‘ama Neqiood Agbny
Kingpa7 pue qm) 1919 AINgpaT wo.j S3IN0J J34eS 3)qRUS 0} 3JNJINLISelul
219> pareBa.Bas Joj sanuniioddo a101dxa pue BuluapIM AeMioo) JBpISUO)
“JnogepunoJ 0 yoeosdde uo spaads Jejnajyan 2Inpa o} SaInjea)
Buiwes d1jje.) 29npoLjuUI pUE gyyy Buoje Aemjooy uo uonejaban uiejuIely peoy ssoy g1 11eq1004 AgBiny Aingpa £8100
3Be))IA UoLIaqW0g YBNOIY) S3.NJea) BUILIed J14e.} 3INPou] 29678 3beniA uojIaqWo) 28100
*51511242 10} 3je1S3 |RLISNpUl yBnoayy
3jnoJ ajeaipur o} abeubis jeuoiyippe pue sainjes) Huiwied diye.) 2anposju| 21eJST |eIISNPU| J2)SUIWO0ST  3)e)ST |eIISNPU| J3)SUIW0RT] 18100
‘Aemio0y uerysapad pusixg -
‘spaads JeIN2IyaA 39NPaJ 0] PIOJIPIO Ul S3InJea) BUIWIED D1jjeJ} 3INPOIU| - aBeNIA pIoppION 08100
“InoiAeYaq JAALIP Ul SluawWaA0dw! 1eubls 0} uolBuLLIEL uobuLLe]
0} 3duejUR 3y} Je 3injes) Aemajeh ay) adueyua pue uonejaban uiejulRl BEYV peoy plojalaH 6L100
1511942 Joj AYA28UU0? Ja1ealb
apinoad 0} yied asn paeys 1004 Juowag Buoje sajed Buisspf anoway an0.g oBeal) 0} 100d Juow|ag syur Ay 84100
-peoy A2e aWw(oH ‘B3 aJnjanuIseU BUNSIXD 0} ANANIOUUDD PIEMUO
ap1noud 0} maiA uolkys Buoje Buipuikem pue abeusis jeuonyippe Japisuoy MaIp uolhS syun Ay LL100
“Buiyied Juawaaed adnpad 0} sainseaw Juswabeuew Aemjooy Japisuoy
“31j4e4] J0J0W WO SS9 199115
ajesedas AfjeaisAyd o) spuem Jo asn ay) yBnouy) uoneBaibas Jybi) JapISUD)  UBBIQ 0] 1931)S JBUIN] WO 13315 UBMQ 1S syur Ang 94100
RECRES 193115 s1913d
1B12J3WWO0Y 0jU0 183415 Yieg wodj A1jua uo Bunakd moyyeluod mojy - 1S 0} 193.41S Yieg WoJj 33415 |eIdJawwo) syur Ay SLI00
sjesodo.g puny dn BuijaAs] IIH 2U0isaIAY ol 31 -
uopjesieuones
104 saniunjoddo Buroldxa ‘peoy jer awwiog Buoje Buppied Jed Malnay -
sbuissosd
3)qe) pasied ybnouy) speod apis ssoude suelysapad o} Ajiolid Jepisuo) - 1BM uolun 0} peoy |eldlaWwWoy syur Ay YL100
“peOY UBWOY YiIM UORIUN] 0) JuiY paads ydwigz puaixg Aemaberlies uo
Bunako 10y Aaunof say100ws apiaoid o) aue 100yaS PIO 0 BulIeLINSa JoulN ue 100435 PIO syur Ang £L100
Kem uszisap 18219 B3 aamanselur 91340 Bupsixa o}
A1AI93UU0S 1318316 apir0id 0} 31n0J Buoje aBeubis pue BuipulAem |eUOIIPPY  qN1Y 11BG100- SPIaLISaM 01 Ae UoiBieyuad syur Aug 24100
‘a8 1010W Woyy SiSIAY jesedas Aeaishyd oy aa11q xog Asupis
spuem Jo asn ay yBnouy) peoy puespuedg Buoje uolyebaubas ybl) Japisuo) 0} 3ALIQ UMOPUES W0} Peoy puelSpue.s 1Ilyuapa) o) piojasaH 1L100
aBeubis pue Buipuiem panosdu| -
saueusuleW uoe}aBaA
/ Bunybi pue a3ens pajeas ‘yoows e BuipiAold ‘SaueuBUIRW ABMYBIH -
:3pN1aU| SUOHEpUBWIW0IAY
“3)n01 BuI{jEM 10§ SJUBWAA0IAWI AemaBELIIBI-JJ0 PUE PRO.I-UO JO BINIXIK ya1myybury o) prekwoig skem mo1s 0L100
abeubiis pue Bupulkem panosduy -
saueuajUIeW UolelaBaA
/ Bunyby pue adeyins pajeas ‘yioows e bujpiaoad ‘aoueuajuiew Aemybiy -
:3pN)IUI SUOHEPUBWIWOI3Y
33104 BUIYEM J0J SUBWAA0IHW AeMaBRLIIEI~1J0 PUE PEO.-UO JO BIMIXIN (2) MoIPNT 0} BJ0WBIM skep mo1s 69100
suolppuswwodal ubisap jo Apwwing JuswiuBiy # ainoy ail

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojeleH

j1oUN0D
alyspIoyeIsH

85

124



yaal

SZ0Z 4oquanoN

uouag Jaddn pue

(6) @41yspJoyais ul syoefoud ainyny jo ysi] oL 3|qrL

192,15 Burjeisapm uaamiaq Aemaiplig Buoje aaueuajulew uoyelaban Japisuod a1ua) K119 piojaaH o) uouag Jaddn peoy uojuiaig 81200
100Y35 UBIH PIalaSE UYor Jeau snaoj senaned e ym puaINoS
ay) Buoje sainseaw Buiwes J1yel) pue Jiwn paads Buianpal JapIsuo] Kem uopea 0} peoy JajsadIoM Wol4 puayinog ayy 11200
peoy
peawsjoqqy / peoy juowiag
“Buiako pue Bupjiem uj yimoss peoy peawsjoqqy / peoy juowjag G99V / PeOY WoyInos
319eu3 03 uonauUN( S1y) 40 UBISapPa. Jofew e 1oy uejd wiB}-6UO] JBPISUOY  G9YY / PEOY SWOYINOS / PEOY SLIOYLION / peoy awjoyioN 91200
Juounag o}
suonaauLe 2rosdwi 0} Gepy Buoje nwn paads Guianpas o Agei 2.01dx3 1uowiag pue 100d 35009 USMIDE s9rv 61200
'spaads 2191y paanpas pue sjurod buissosd panosduwi Buriapisuod
“|00yas Asewiid Jeau juswuoIIAUB 3s119AD pue uersapad anodwy 19935 1IN 100y35 Asewiig uoybury 1200
417 ulyam paumno sajdiaurid 100Yds 0} S3IN0. J3JeS YIm UBIY peoy plaLuayaly BuIss0.9 peoy plaluBYILY £1200
uone)s Aemjiey 11emiog 0} ssadde 3jakd pue uerysapad saodwy Nemion uonels 11emiog 21200
sjesodo.d ue)d Jodsuel] 18207 ypm suoipoe ubny 133415 YInos 0} peoy spuejaky peoy spuejaky Jajsuiwoa] 11200
uoners Aemiiey Ja1sujwoaT ssaaoe 0} Uoisinoad Buisso.d anoduw peoy 12)sa010)  Peoy 121532100 JalSUIW0aT o1zoo
2SNOH 13)Jejy 0} Awixoad uj uoisiroad Buisso.d ancadw BSNOH 1fep 3snoH 1ax4ep Aingpa 60200
193,15 UBIH puekwoug SS.2e UoisiAoid Buiss0.d aroidw] 109115 UBIH 199,15 UBIH puekwoug 80200
suolppuswwodas ubisap jo Aupwwing Juswiubiy # 8inoy ail
up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojaleH __OF_—JOO

alyspIoyeIsH

86

Q

126



sjo9foad
Buisijriolid

5202 JaquianoN

‘poasijiond

aq ||m spoofoud jo jsi| Buo| ayy moy jno jos ||Im aapdpoyd siy|

up|d ainganysoagul Bulpasym Bujjom BulpA) P07 1DUNo) aalyspaojelsH

128



LEL

uoqun

oIy

spaJp [pJnJ ul Asuinofispim o jo pind eq o}
BulpA> pup Bunjom oy pasu ayy Buisiubodey

uoypdIdnp pioAo
o} salpnys paje|dwod Ajsnoinead yjim juswiubily

Ayunod ay} ssouop Aom Jo sypyb oijgnd Auow
8y} ybnouyy AjiAlpdeuUU0d [oinJ uo Buisnooy

sdpbb sy} ui Bu

siadojensp wouy Bulpuny Buisseddy

salIUNWWOD Mau uj Asuspuadap Jod Bupnpay
UaJp|Iy> 40} [00Yds O saynou Jaybs Bullgouy

saljold jo20] pup saidlod yim juswubily

[2ADI} 9AIOD BuiMouB o} uoyNqLIuoD

S9}DWIISd 450D

s&24nos Buipung

siauppd Aseallag
Anpgoaenlieg

uBiseq
punoub sy} uo Aieljep jo peadg

9242 pup [98ym
“jjom o} Ajisuadoud Buipesdxe Jo Bulyeay

uoypup|dx3

pup sjop ay} Buiuiof

510400} UOHDSHLIOL 1L 2|qpyL

uolpiBajul [PPON-LINW

SUD|d JuUswWisanu|
UMO] 93D Yiim uolpibajul

Aom jo spyBu
o1gnd Bullsixe yim uolbibayul

spoafoud
Ajaod-pJiy} 40 8injonasoIuUl [9ADIY
a1} Bulysixe Yjm uolpibajul

a})is Juswdojanap o} Ajlwixo.d

s|ooyds o} Ajwixoid

jyauaq d1Baiolg

@oupPMOo|o Jobpng

Apxejdwo)

sojodsawl |

pupwaqg

104204

SJ10}2D} UOI}PSI}LIOLId

SZ0Z 4oquanoN

9)deyd

SIY} J0 suo1329s jJuanbasqns ayj ul papiroad si
‘el4a)143 buioas Buipn)oul ‘sioyoey uonesiyiorid
3y} Jo yoea uo Jiejap Jaylind ‘sabed Huimo)joy ayy
uo pasliewwns si syaafoad Jo }si) yaes Joj pasn
sJ0}2e} uonjesniiolid ay] "pasiubodau s ade
SUOIJUaAIRIUI |BINJ BINns Bupjew jsjiym Ao ayy Joy
sanunjioddo Buipuny }abuey o} sdjay suouantajul
pJ0ja43H 104 1SI) P33LIIP3P V PI0J3I3H UIYHIM
suojjuaAlajul dsniold 0} ylomawely y

:pJojalaH jo Ayo ay) punode pue ui sydaload uequn,

‘padojarap usaq sey syoafoad

184N jo )si) pajeaipap e ‘bujuueld ano ui pajoa)yad
S JUBWIHILIWOD SIY} 8INSUD 0] ‘A|JUBIBYIP 19ARL}

0} 8S00Yd 0ym 3soyy Joj saijiunjioddo Buipiaoad

0} Pa1IWIWOD aJe aMm ‘pajiwi] aq Aew seaJe jednd

ul |9AR) BAI}OR 0] 9Sh UBD WoJ) Yiys peasdsapim

e Joj 1enuajod ay} 3y ‘skauanol jepow-ijnw Jo
J3buo) jo pied se Ajejnayaed ‘91242 o aaym ‘Yiem
0} ysim oym asoyj jdoddns o} jueysodwi sujews.

} UBABMOH "84NJINJISEIJUI PBYIWI] pue S3due)sIp
19Ae)} 186U0) 0} anp saed uo Ajad 0} A1ay1] alow ale
S1}IUNWWOI |ednJ ul S)uspIsal jey) asiubodal apm

'Seale Jayjo pue sumoj }axJew ul syoafoad jeany,

:padojanap aq 111m sjaeload jo
1s1) pasniiorid om) ‘ueld aanandiselyu) Bunesym

pue Buijiep ‘Bunakg 1es07 apim-Ajunod ayy Jo4

up|d ainpanusoupu] Buieaym Bunjiom BulpAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojaleH

A)unod 3y} SS0JIE SBUNWWOD

Jo spaau Buiajoaa ay) yym paubie pue ‘pajabuie)
‘9](1X3]4 UIBWSI SUOISIIBP JUBWIISIAU] JBY) SBINSUD
yoeoudde siyj "awi} JaAo s@duejswnal buibueyd
pue sjybisul mau 0} Buipuodsau ‘yuswindop Al

© Se pajead} aq I!M dIMMOT 3YL 33UspiAd
Buibaawsa pue ‘poddns Japjoyayels ‘puewsp

uo paseq sjaaloud Buisiyiionid ‘suoijuanalul
pasodoud jo }si) ay} Buissauboud uibag 1Im

112uno0) aJyspaoya.aH ‘pardope si ued ayj sy

‘9auepinb jeuonjeu
YHM 3UI) Ul USYELISPUN SBM S]] "SBW02}N0 pue
saidijod jeuorjeu pue jeuoibal ‘|ed0] JueA3)ad JO
1X3ju0d ayy ui g1 abed uo Z 3jqe| ur umoys sem

sjo8(oud pue suonjusAlajul pasodo.d jo 8jnpayds y

‘K1aAnsp

pue ubisap ‘Buipuny Jayiiny Joj syoafoud 1aAed)
aAloe asijilorid 0} pasn aq o} xiJjew uorjespilord
e Ul papn)aul 3G UBD YIIYM S10}08) JO isI| &
Aynpuapi oy s1 uol}das siyj jo asodund ay] "siojoey
lenuajod 4o 3sn-6uo) e jo uonedyUBPI 1R

ue uo paseq sjaafoad 4MMD] o uonesniond

J0) yoeoudde pasodo.d e jno sjas Jaydeys syl
"JX3}U02 1BJ0) 3y} 0} paJlojie} aq pjnoys yseoidde
ayy 1ey) sasiseydwa asueping 'syosfoid pue

suoljuaalajul jeppuajod Buisiyiolad Joy yoeoidde

pajsafifns e sapn)oul asuepinb 4iMMO1 S.140 YL

MIIAIBAQ

uolpsijLIoLd

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

88

Q@

130



€€L

186pnq JsyBiy o aiinbai o} Ajey| Jo/pup
paip21|dwod aiow aup joy} sposfoud (1) mo

196pnq |aAs|-wnipsw b
aJiinbau o} Ajayj1| 8. Joyyj syosloud :(z) wnipsy

196png Jemo| b alinbau o} Ajeyj1| Jo/pup
pajoo1dwod ssa| aup joyj spoafoud :(€) ybiH

Adljigrasaisp

puD 503 ‘UBisap Jiay} JO sWIS) Ul Ajuippisoun
10 |oA8] Jaybiy Jo Apixe|dwod ubisep jo

|ons| 4aybiy o sApY joy} spoafoud (1) mo

pup }sod ‘uBisap jo swusj ul Ajuiopiedun Jo
[oAs] wnipaw pup Ayixa|dwod ubisap jo [aAs)
wnipaw b 8ApbY joy} spoefoud :(g) wnipap

Ayiqoaenisp

puD 4500 ‘UBIsap syl Jo swua} ul Ajuiopiedun
10 [9A3] MO b pub Ajixa|dwod ubisap jo
|oAs] moj b @ApY oy spoafodd :(€) YBiH

‘SUOIUBAISLUL
paipo1jdwod sss| 4edpayd spnpoul
Ajjoisuab |jim seoupmol|p jobpng Jemo)
Yim spoafold ‘suoluaniajul papodlidwod
‘anisuadxe aiow spn|dul Ajjoisusb |im
s92UDMO||D Jobpng Jaybiy yim sposfoid

*sjoefoud payiyuspl Joj padojansp
uaag aApPY $92UBMO|[b fobpnq [aAs]-ybiH

'sjoefoud / suoljuanisiul jo Apixsjdwod
SAIjD|aJ BY} SISPISUOD JOJOD) SIY |

*(syurpaysuod ubisep

“Js1 [po1Bojode ‘Buipuny Jo Ajjigp|IDAD
‘pioddns |poyijod 6°8) Alealep puo
uBisep Jiey} BuipapBal spuIpIISUOD PUD
‘sa]opysqo ‘sabus||pyd Jo 8|ds By Ul
sadualayIp dAlb}I[oNb 8q ||IM 18y}
‘syoefoad / suolusAlajul payiuspl 104

‘punoub ayj} uo

Asanijep joofoad ui Ajuippaedun jo |aAs)| 8y}

J0 @inspaw aAlp}ijoNnb D si Ajixejdwo)

SZ0Z 4oquanoN

's9|DIsaWI} 9S8y}
UIy}Im paJdaAljep aq jouund joafold — (0) sUoN

'si0aA oL Buipesdxe sajpasswl}
uolpjuswa|dwi wisy-1abuo| Ul {nsal ya1ym
$924N0S8. PUD UOKPUIPI00d ‘Buluupid
aAIsuayxa Buuiinbau sposfoid - (1) moT

22UPMO||D

1obpng

Anxsjdwod swos
2q 0} A|ey|I| SI 848y} JoAeMOY ‘SIDBA G-7 Ixau
8y} ulypm passaiboud aq p|nod josfoud youyy
Ajuippied Jo [ans| s|gpUOSDBY — () WNIpayy

*s10A z-| jxou ey} ulyum passaiboud aq pjnod
128foud yoyi Ayuiopied Jo jens] ybiH - (€) YbIH

(sdiy AopAisne Jo sduy

2.nsia| 10} pubWap Jamo| pub Buynuwiuwod
Joj pubwap wnipaw *6°8) sduy jo sadAy
1amaj A||plpupysgns 8|qous o} Aje! }osfoud
8y "puUPWap paylusp! JO [9AS| J8BMO| 1O
wnipaw o sajpiysuowsp josfoud sy (1) moT

(sdiy AopAisne uo sduy

2INSI9] J0J PUDWBP JMO] Jnq BuNWWod oy
pupbwsap ybiy ‘6°9) sdiiy jo sadA} Jemay s|qous
o} Ajayl| st yoafoud sy "sedA} duy juaieyip

1O} PUDWISP PayIUSPI JO [9AS] WNIPaW b
sajpuysuowap yoafoid ay] :(z) wnipapy

(sdii} AopAiene

pup aunsia| ‘Buiynwiwod) sadAy diuy jusiayip
10} ‘pubwisp payiuspl Jo [aAs] ybiy AjeAlip|al
o sajpasuowap jaafoid sy :(g) ybiH

Ajxe|dwo)

‘A1aAijop s}i 1o} se|pIsaWIL

-}I0Ys 8ADY 0} paIspisuod aq Afjpisush
pInom A}ixa|duwiod Jo s|aAs| MO| YHim
awayds payodildwod ssa| b ‘o|dwoxa 404

"BuipAd

Jo Buijsaym ‘Bunjjom s|qous o} papasu
suoluaAiajul Jo Apixadwod ubisep o
paip|e1i0d aq Ajpiauab pjnom 4| ‘Alanijep
JOJ 8]02SSWIL D SPUSWIWIODS. 101D} SIy |

‘Buipuny jopao o} Ajeyl| @low 8o
sjoafoud asayy 840049y} PUD ‘puUbWSP 4O
|1oA8] Jaybiy o yum spoefoid mau Joj 8s0d
SSaUISNQ D 3OW O} J3ISPS sl JI ‘A|jpIsuss)

Jojoy s1y} Joy A|yBly aiow palods aio

sisAjoun dIMMDT 8yt yBnouy payiusp!
pubwap jo [aA3] 4ayBiy b yim sydafoid

‘uoyosiyiond

SU} OJUl PBJOIID) S| PUDLISP [SAD} SALID
PaI-dIMMOT $0U4 8InSUS O} uoypsioLd
8y} Ul papN|PUl Usaq SPY 10Dy SIY |

a|posawl]

pubwag

[Ny B upq.dn - asiyliolid djay o} siojop4

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojaleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

89

Q@

132



Sel

suo|d

10 syoafoud Apiod-puiyy Jo ‘sjpsodoad
[2ADI} BAIOD JSYI0 Y}IM 92D)I8)UI UD
soy Jou ‘sa|didounid 0z/L N1 sieaw
UDIYM INIONIISDIJUL [DADIL SAIDD
Bulsixe yym dojeAo 1o of jo8uuod
Jou seop ajnou ay| (1) uonpibajul
10/pUD JUSWUBI|D JO [9AS] MO

sup|d 1o sydafoid Apipd

-pdaiy} Jo ‘sjpsodoud [8ADI} SAILOD J8Yl0
U4IM 92D418}Ul JO [9AS]| 8|qDUOSDA

D spY a4noJ 3y :(7) ainponaispoiyul
pauup|d Jo spoafoid [oAnl} oAl
pauup|d Jayjo yum uolpibajul
Jo/pup Juswubilo jo |9As| YybiH

ajnou BuipAs/Bupyiom Buiysixe

UD Y4IM S8DDJISJUI IO O} S|D8UU0D
ajnou ay] :(g) punoub ayy uo Appaujp
24NJ2NUISDIJUI Y}iM uolypaBajul Jo
/pup juswublo jo |aAs| yBiy

“ajis
JuswdojaAep Mau b 0} 8502 PayPI0|
jou si poafoud ay] (1) Ajwixoid mo

'sayis juswdojensp wioly

Jo 0} Bui|2A> Jo Buijeaym ‘Bupjjom

Aq ss@20p Buiroidwi senoud o Jos
Pa4ouIpI00d 81njNy D O} SiNQLIUOD
Apbwi j1 szenemoy ‘elis Juswdojanap
MaU D opul] $23.1p D dpIroid jou ssop
posloud ay] :(z) Ajwixold wnipsyy

‘BuipAd

1o Bullpaym ‘Bunjjom Aq ssao0
anoadwi pjnom pup ajis juswdojarep
MaU D ‘o yul| }28uip b saplaocid

10 ‘o) Ajiwixouad asod ul pajod0o|
s1poafoud ay] :(g) Apwixoud ybiH

"94NJN} @Y} Ul UOIIDBUUOD PIOMUO
Joy saijiunjioddo jupjiodwi epinoad asayy
sb Apluoud Jeybiy s payljuspl os|p aib
(saynou BuloAo pesodoud so yons) seipnys
/s|psodoud Appd-paiy} Aojuswejdwod
J9Y0 y}Im 8dpgaa)ul yoiym sydefoid

*10JoD} uolpsijIoud

siy} ul AjyBiy a1ow paiods aip (3ooig
J0zp) Buojo saynol "6'8) seynou BuidAd
Jo/pup Bupjjom Buysixe ‘Yim dojiano Jo
‘Ypm o048l yaiym sioefoid pesodoud

'sayls juswdojensp mau ybnouyy 1o wouy
‘o) Bul|2A> pup Buieaym ‘Burjiom Aq
ss9200 anoidwi Aeyj Jeyeym uo pesoq
sjoafoud sa103s 910}018Y} JOJOD) SIYy |

*AJunod sy} ssouop Buipuny auniny
40 924nos ulbw b Ajjusuind si Asuow
Jadojansap oy} pasiubodal os|o si §|

'ybnoioq pup JoLIYSIP BY4 Ul SBYIS
Juswdojanap mau o} suoldosuuod Bulsixe
saAoidwi JO SUOLDBUUOD Mau sapirosd
JI0MIBU dIMMDT @44 4oy juppioduwl st i

sjoafoud
Apod-paiy} Jo
2INnjoNuysoaLUl
[9AD.) SAIOD
Buisixe yim
Juswubi)y

alls Juswdojansp

o} Ajlwirxoud

upqJn - asjiolad djay o} suioyon4

SZ0Z 4oquanoN

'|ooyds Woly/0}) 8|94 1o [98YM YoM O}

uSJp|Iyd d40W 8|gPUS Jou JBUDpP POO. SINpPa.

Aj@y1] Jou pJNom 10/pup (S)|00YDS O} JDBU
pa1od0] jou si Joafoud ay] (1) Alwixoid moT

‘s19yjo apn|oxa p|nom
1NQ ‘|00Yds WOUy/04 824D 4O [88YM Sf|OM

0} UaJp|Iyd awWos 3|qpus pub Jabupbp poo.
@onpal Ajejl] p[nom pup (s)|ooyds o} Joau
pajpo0] st jasfoid sy :(z) AHwixold wnipsyy

‘looyos
W01} /04 8242 10 [99YM “§|OM O} UBIP|IYD
aJow Ajolupisans s|qoua pup sbupp poo.
aonpa. Ajel] p[nom pup (s)|ooyds o} Jpau
paiooo| st yoafoud sy :(g) Alwixoid ybiH

'$9W0d4N0 PuUD S|POB JupAS|el

0} (S)uolNQLILUOD J163}D.4S |PIUDSQNS JO YID|

D 8ADY 0} Aj8yI] 84D yd1ym spoafoud (1) Mo

'$9W054N0 pup s|pob

JUDA®|8J O} suolNQLIJUOD 8|qpUOSDaI wmu_>0‘_Q

o} Ajoyji] 840 yo1ym syoafodd :(z) wnipsy

'S9WI0D4N0 PUD S|POB JunAS|el
o4 (s)uonnqLiuod d16a}p.ys Jo |ans|-ybiy o
apinoid o) Ajay1| a4 yoiym sposloud :(€) ybiH

*|o0YDs wouy/0f 8]2Ad

10 [99YyM YoM o} (supipipnb/sjuaiod
Jlay} pup) ualp|iy> Bulqous ul Jod
Juppiodwi up Apjd upd sjooyds o} Joau
2.p 10 ‘Aq ssod yoiym sposlosd pesodouy

‘Jyauaq d16ayouys

10 |98 YBiy b 8ADY 0} patapisuod aq
1YBiw [aApIY 910D JO s|aAs| Buispaioul
104 poodwi apim-yBnolog /oLsip

yiim posfoud b sidwoxs Joy — josloid
8y} Jo Jyauaq jo o|ods diydpibosh

8y} o} paypjal aq os|o yybiw 4

" AOM}BU 10 8jN0J [8AD.} AP Bulsixe
up Ul yul-yPam Bulsixe ub BulwodIsA0
ul sjdwbxs Joj — sjysuaq Bulieljsp ul
Aousbun jo |ans| swos spnjoul Abw siy|

‘[IoUN0) aJlysplojeisH

SS0JD SOWODJNO PUD S|POB JuDAS|a.
o} uolNqLIIuod diBa}pILs AjeyI| JIay}
uo pasoq syoafoid / suoljuaniajul
pesodoud sasijliolid Jojony siy |

(s)|jooyos

o} Ajlwrxoud

iysusg
[SEYTIITS

[Ny B upq.dn - asiyliolid djay o} siojop4

up|d ainpanusoapu] Buieaym Bunjiom BuipAD (0207 1DUN0D aaiyspaojaleH

jIouno)
alyspIojaIoH

o
(e}

Q@

134



0} 8pli-puo-yiod
10 ‘suolpys uipdy ‘sdoys snqg Agapau ou apn|oul
so|dwiox3 HNdYIP [8ADRIY PBUIqUIOD Bunjow
‘Ajijiqisse2o0 Ul sdpb jupdyiubis suo aisy )
‘JJodsupuy JO SOPOW JBY40 Y}IM UOI}D8UU0D

OU JO [DWIUIW 9ADY $3JN0Y (1) MO

'sinojep
a|biepow aiinbal joy} suoiipys ulpl) 1o sdoys
snq Agupau spnjoul sejdwpx3 ‘pedupyus aq
pIno> inq jussaud si suoydo piodsupiy o1gnd
0} AJl[iqiss@2y ‘papeau aJo sjuswaroidul
Inq ‘podsupuy) Jo saPOW JSYJ0 YlIM
UO1}29UU0D 9WOS 9ADY $84N0Y :(Z) WNIpajy

"ajnouJ ay} Buojo sal|Iop) epli-pun-yiod Jo
‘suolypys ulpJ} ‘sdojs snq o} SUOIPBUUOD J23IIP
apn|oul sa|dwpx "PaINsud 81D 8OUBIUSAUOD

‘Aeuinol ssejwpaes b spiroid
sajnou joyy Burinsue ‘Buipl 8sioy puo
opl B yJod ‘IbJ ‘sng Y}IM suol29uUU0d

sy Buipupbysiapun Ag Junoddp ojul siy}
8)D} 0} 3885 P|NOM J0}OD} SIY ]| "9|qISO8}
AJlIDSS®28U JOU S| S9UDJSIP 9|gPIepISU0D
BuipA> puo Buijeaym ‘Burjjom Buiupsw
‘spaJp |pJNJ Ul palinbai sadupysip
9|gpJepIsu0d ay} uaAIb juppiodwi si

SIY| 'SPaJD [0INJ $S0IDD jiodsup.ly Jo

uolbibaju|

136

Ky e [PPOW
pup Al|Iq1sse300 YBIH *S19SN 10} SUOIISUD.} SOPOW JOYJO Y4IM JO8UU0D $84N0J By}
sso|wpas Buipinoid uodsup.y Jo sapow Jayjo —iun
YHM pajdauuod-|jam a1p sa4noy :(g) YBiH [[9M MO JO JUBWISSassb UD sI sIy| HnwW
"UD|d JUBWIISOAU| UMO] 934D 8Y} Ypim ubijo
10 a4piBajul jou ssop yoafoud ay] (1) Mo sup|d
*[I2UN0Y) JIYspIosald i
"UMOY §231JDW BY} JO SBADS[GO PUD UOISIA 84 I O 8dlyspdojeleH juswijseAu] o
yiim ubijo Ajeypispouw syposloud :(z) wnipspy Aq pajpa.d suD|d JusWisEAU| UMOL
JOYIDW UIY}IM PBUIINO SUOILUBAISIUI Umo|
‘UMO} jo}IDW By} 104 ABaypISs pup JO 4S| PUD UOHIqWID By} YiM subijo 1o)IoW Yiim
UOISIA BUIY21019A0 44 Yiim ublD ._o\_ucuc SuPld  yoefoud syj yoiym o) jusyxe 8y} Uo pesoq ’
JUBWISBAU| UMO] JXIDW UIyHm Juswdojansp
10§ pajsi] Uoaq oADY spfoid (€) UBIH Juswissessp aAyoyPNb b oq pinom sy UOIHDIB8LU|
*a|qossod Buieq jou Aom jo jybu d1gnd EIELIREIIE)
Sy} Ul §|NsaJ sjuInajsuod ubisap jupdoyiubis Jo
/pup Aom jo spybii o1jgnd Buysixe ypm ubijo pofoud sy; Buuswisidwil jo Aynoyyip Jo
10 94piBajul jou ssop joafoud ay] (1) Mo 8SD® 8AID|81 8Y4 8dUBN|JUI YDIYyM 4O ||O
‘suoljojiwi| ubisep pub ‘suoibISPISUOD
‘sabua|oyd ubisep Jo suieduod |P2160j028 ‘Ajijigp|ioAL Bulpuny ‘uoddns
|2160]028 “AMm Jo JybL d1jgnd Jo abosn mo| Suifod oyl o Buipusde
Jua1Ind 0} pajp|al $8|204sqo pub sabus|joyd [P3tH[od 3l] J0}op) Uo bulpu P
s|qoaBoubw 80y sjoafoid :(Z) WnIpa salIoA uolypaBajul siy} o Apixejdwod ey
Aom jo
‘paiinbau a1 sjuswanoidwi ubisep ignd auy 6 d
|PWIUIW PUD PBYSI|CDLSS [|[9M B1D Pasijin 0} 9|qIssed0pb shomyjod Bulysixe sezijiyn siybu ongn
Aom jo spybu o1gnd puo ysi [po160]0d8 Mo|
sl @19y "Aom jo spybu oignd B 1N Jo ‘o} PUD Yiim suByjp 4oafoud b Ajyjoows moy mc_hw_xw Ylm
BuiloeuU0d Ul $3]2PYSq0 pub sabus|ibyd JO JuswIssassD aAlDYIPNb O s AoMm jo
[PWILI J24un0dUS spaafold :(€) YBIH siyBu o1ignd Buisixe yum uoyoibayul, uolijpJ mm._.r__
|pany - asiuolid djay o} suopo04
GZ0Z 4aqwianoN up|d ainpanuspagu) Buleasym Bunjiom BulpAd (0207 1DUno) aalyspaojeisH __nv::oo D

auIyspIojaIH R







€6

Herefordshire

Q
O Council

Appendix 3
Selected recommendations made by Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee and Connected Communities Scrutiny
Committee - active travel and the local cycling, walking, wheeling infrastructure plan

OFFICIAL

Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee

Monday 12 May 2025

Road Safety

Rec. | Recommendation Response

No.

1 Herefordshire Council The road safety strategy is currently being rewritten for publication in 2026 It is vitally important this
develops a road safety strategy encompasses those elements that address a Highway Authorities statutory duty, under various
strategy that supports the existing highway legislation such as the The Highways Act 1980, and Road Traffic Act 1988 amongst
priorities under People, others.

Place and Growth in the
Council Plan and At present all elements contained within the existing strategy encompass all actions an authority can
complements the policy reasonably be expected to take, with regard road traffic collision data management, investigation / casualty
produced by the West reduction engineering, delivery of road safety educational initiatives, speed management & general traffic
Mercia Police and Crime management across the highway network. It is also important these strategies reflect the levels of service
Commissioner. achievable within current resources allocated to this field in order to ensure a both realistic and sustainable
approach for the future.
At present there is a high level of collaboration between Herefordshire Council &and West Mercia Police
across the principle areas mentioned above, which will underpin the new strategy moving forward.
This will be reviewed during the various draft stages prior to being formally adopted.
The new LTP has a requirement to support improved Road Safety with the following policy
LTP Policy TN7: Road Safety
To reduce the number of people being injured on our transport network we will:
* Monitor collision data to identify priority locations for improving road safety.
* Take targeted action to further reduce fatalities and injuries on our network.
» Support safer speeds to improve perceived and actual road safety.
Webb, Danial Page 1 20/02/26

Version number 3




v6

OFFICIAL

* Deliver education programmes and infrastructure to improve safety for vulnerable road users,
Investment will be prioritised in those areas with the highest numbers of vulnerable road users and/or
collision history.

Once adopted officers will be required to work on embedding the policy

The executive should seek
opportunities to improve the
road network environs in
the five market towns to
make them safer and to feel
safer for all road users.

The new LTP contains a section relating directly to the Market Towns. Previous assessments of all market
towns undertaken by BBLP as part of the Levelling Up Fund already exist, however current progress is
unclear and will require a review against existing priorities following completion of the new LTP.

The interpretation of feeling safe is subjective therefore it would be impossible to property monitor and
target this recommendation. It should also be a drive for the Council to ensure all roads are safe as this is
a legal obligation for all roads. - rephrase — road safety important, feelings of safety delivered across a
whole range i.e. maintenance, LTP policy,

As per the response to Recommendation 1 the LTP has a road safety policy requirement

Herefordshire Council to
work with West Mercia
Police to unlock
behavioural, perception of
safety, and geographic data
about near miss and
dangerous driving reporting,
to better inform decision-
making about engineering,
education and speed limit
zone solutions.

We will investigate and where appropriate act on concerns raised. Howeverwe have no formal way of
collating reports that we receive and any response or action we take into a single source of information.
Concerns and reports can come to us through a number of different channels such as phone calls to our
Operational Call Centre, Operation Snap submissions, the ‘contact us’ page on our website,
Neighbourhood Matters, e-mails to our generic Road Safety Team inbox, direct contact with Safer
Neighbourhood Teams and direct contact with Traffic Management Advisors. As there is no single point of
contact it would be a significant undertaking to co-ordinate these and to report formally.

Operation Snap is probably the easiest to quantify, but again, the resource needed to do this could have
an impact on the overall number of submittals we then act on.

The validity of using these reports as a basis for action could be questioned as they can sometimes give a
disproportionate picture of what is happening on the network. We have had instances, particularly with
Operation Snap, where a co-ordinated plan of action by an individual and/or a small number of residents in
a particular area shows a high number of reported incidents and suggests a major problem with one type
of incident at a particular location.

While useful, reporting of this nature does not necessarily give an accurate reflection of concerns held by
the wider public or the number of incidents happening across the network as it relies on people actually
reporting them rather than “suffering in silence”. An individual's perception of risk and danger differs from
one person to another, so it does not give the degree of quantifiable, fact-based evidence that injury RTC
reports do.




G6

OFFICIAL

Information on collisions where there has been a personal injury is collected by the Police, passed to
Herefordshire Council, and more detailed collision investigation done by the Accident Investigation &
Safety Manager. Where appropriate any remedial works at collision cluster sites/routes is then channelled
into the future maintenance programmes etc. Herefordshire Council, BBLP and West Mercia Police’s
Traffic Management Advisor have a long standing, close working relationship on this and all highway
matters.

Collision data is also assessed by the Police and targeted enforcement is conducted on areas where there
is a particular issue such as “high harm” motorcycle routes.
Link to LTP

For the council to undertake
an evidence-based increase
of the road safety education
budget, or to transfer
funding from schemes for
children to older adults.

It would not be appropriate to remove funding from child road safety education to that for older adults as
these are equally vulnerable road users. The Council does offer older adult driver training for a very low fee
and additional funding would allow for the scope of the offer to be increased.

There would be scope to work with the emergency services to delivery joint educational training
opportunities; for example, both West Mercia Police and Shropshire Council funded young adult road
safety education videos one of which focuses on Herefordshire; this model shows how we can
collaborative on initiatives.

Retain work with children, we do offer older training, when budgets are set me will consider opportunities to
increase funding to increase the offer.

West Mercia Police to
consider the balance of
factors that contribute to
road danger when
undertaking road safety
enforcement.

West Mercia Police are committed to enforcing all road traffic legislation, and while speed enforcement
may appear to have the highest public profile, our the police Operational Policing Units undertake all forms
of enforcement year round in conjunction with NPCC campaigns such as summer & Christmas drink/drug
drive, tyre safe, mobile phone use and driving without seatbelts. In addition, our speed enforcement
officers are now able to provide evidence of additional offences such as drivers using mobile phones, not
wearing seat belts,driving whilst not in proper control etc so while speed enforcement is the priority for
them the activity contributes to the wider enforcement picture.

This recommendation cannot be accepted as Herefordshire Council do not have the ability to direct police
resources.

The Traffic Regulation
Order (TRO) eligibility
criteria should be made
more transparent.

There is currently no one specific eligibility criteria for the provision of Traffic Regulation Orders. These are
assessed on an individual case by case basis by trained Traffic Engineers, and depend upon a multitude of
factors that are determined upon investigation. It is vitally important these are evidence based / data led
and follow both national and local best practice guidance / regulations, in order to ensure consistency of




96

OFFICIAL

application.

more transparent information
imminently. The Team are to

seen online. The stages of th

The Traffic Management Team have reviewed TRO information which is available online and have found it
to be no longer fit for purpose. What happens now? Some changes have already been made to provide

with some more slight amendments and updates to be progressed
also upload a copy of the prioritised waiting list so current applications can be
e application process to also be amended to ensure clarity.

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee

Monday 9 September 2025

Local Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan Scrutiny Report

Infrastructure Plan are Specific, Measurable, Agreed (or
Achievable), Realistic, and Time Bound.

Rec. | Recommendation Response
No.
1 Ensure that the performance indicators monitoring the Agreed
success of the Local Transport Plan include indicators officers will review the current LTP KPI’s that relate to the LCWIP and include
showing reduced collisions, reduced emissions, and additional measures as indicated above
greater take up of walking and cycling as a mode of
transport.
2 Ensure that any targets in the Local Cycling and Walking | Agreed

Officers will review the document and ensure that the targets are given
measures as prescribed above

3 Publish the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
implementation plan, prioritisation list and programme of
work by the end of 2025.

Agreed

The current stage of work for the project is prioritising the list of projects that
have been identified pre and post consultation. Once this has been
completed and once the external funding provided to us has been announced
this autumn the programme of work will be completed and will be returned to
Scrutiny Committee for review.




OFFICIAL
AGENDA ITEM 9

& Herefordshire
O Council

Title of report: Work programme 2025-26
and 2026-27

Meeting: Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee
Meeting date: 03 March 2026

Report by: Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Classification

Open

Decision type

This is not an executive decision
Wards affected

All Wards

Purpose

To consider the draft work programme for Herefordshire Council’s scrutiny committees for the
municipal years 2025/26 and 2026/7.

Recommendation(s)
That:

a) The committee agree the draft work programme for Environment and Sustainability
Scrutiny Committee contained in the work programme report attached as appendix 1,
which will be subject to monthly review, as the basis of their primary focus for the
remainder of the municipal year.

b) The committee note the work programme for the other scrutiny committees and identify
any opportunities for collaboration or alignment of work.

Alternative options

1. The committee could decline to agree a work programme for its future committee meetings. This
would likely result in unstructured and purposeless meetings.

2.  The committee could also decline to identify areas of potential collaboration or alignment of work
with other committees. This could result in duplication or overlap of work.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Danial Webb, email: danial.webb@herefordshire.gov.uk

97



OFFICIAL

Key considerations

3.  Afundamental part of good scrutiny is planning and agreeing a programme of work for the
committee to undertake. A well-considered work programme:

a. identifies priorities for the committee’s work that align with corporate and partnership
priorities, as well as reflecting community concern;

b.  ensures that each identified topic has clear objectives that focus the committee’s work;

c.  creates a timetable for the committee’s programme of work so that the committee carry out
its work at the optimal time; and

d. provides officers and partners with requirements for evidence that will support the
committee in providing evidence-based scrutiny

4, To prepare this work programme, the committee chairs have met with officers of the council to
identify potential priority areas of work for the committee. These priority areas have been
scheduled within the work programme to ensure the committee considers topics when it is
most useful to do so. A draft of this work programme has then been circulated to the council’s
corporate leadership team and other key senior directors, alongside committee chairs, for
further comment and refinement.

5. The most recent work programme was published on 17 February 2026 and is attached as
Appendix 1.
6. Attached as Appendix 2 to this report is the council’s most recently published forward plan of

key decisions.

7. Appendix 3 is a list of all recommendations made by Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny
Committee in 2025.

Community impact

8. Effective scrutiny enables the committee to reflect community concern, one of the four
purposes of scrutiny as outlined by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny.

Environmental impact

9. This report contains no direct environmental impacts. However the work that the committee will
undertake resulting from agreeing this work programme may have direct impacts. Reports
arising from or supporting this work will outline their potential environmental impact.

Equality duty

10. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively
contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, and demonstrate that we are
paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery of
services. This report contains no direct equality impacts. However the reports and issues that
the committee will consider may have direct impacts. Reports arising from or supporting this
work will outline the any associated equality impacts for committee consideration.

Resource implications

11. This report constitutes part of the typical function of this committee. Similarly, a programme of
work undertaken by committee is an integral part of the council’s ‘business as usual’. There is

98



OFFICIAL

no resource implication in setting or agreeing a work programme. However agreed topics in the
work programme, in particular any requests for bespoke research or the involvement of outside
experts or community groups, may incur resource costs. These will be contained in any
reporting or planning of agreed topics within this work programme.

Legal implications

12. The remit of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 3 section 4 of the constitution and the role
of the scrutiny committee is set out in part 2 article 6 of the constitution.

13. The Local Government Act 2000 requires the council to deliver the scrutiny function.

Risk management

14, There are no risks identified in the committee agreeing an effective and timely programme of
work. However there is a risk to the council’s reputation if committees fail to set a work
programme, or set a programme of work that does not address local authority, partnership or
community priorities.

Consultees

15. In drafting this work programme, consideration has been given to:

a.  The previous work of scrutiny committees;

b. Priorities suggested by members of the committee; and

C. Work with Herefordshire Council officers to develop topics and agree optimum timings
to bring items for consideration.

16. This work programme is subject to ongoing review, which may involve additional consultees.
Appendices
Appendix 1 — Herefordshire Council scrutiny work programme 2026
Appendix 2 — Herefordshire Council Forward Plan
Appendix 3 — recommendations made by Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee
in 2025
Background papers

None

99






10T

OFFICIAL

. Herefordshire
O Council

APPENDIX 1

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
March 2026

Below are the work programmes of Herefordshire Council’s five scrutiny committees and their six task and finish groups.

Work programmes are subject to change, with revised programmes agreed at the end of formal committee meetings.

Table of Contents

Children and Young People SCrUutiny COMMITTIEE ......oooiiiiiiii et e e e e e e e e e et e s s e e eeee e e e et b s eeeaeeseasttaa s aaeaessessssannaaaaaaeeennnes 3
COMIMITEEE WOTK PO AIMITIE. ...ttt 3
Early help task and fiNiSN QIrOUD .......oooi i 7

TEIMS OF TEIEIEICE ...ttt 7
VA Lo] ¢ 1 o] fo o =012 1 L= PPRUPPS 9

Connected ComMMUNITIES SCIULINY COMIMITIEE ... 12
COMMITEEE WOIK PIrOGIBIMIMIE. .. ... ettt 8888888888588 12
Placemaking and public participation task and fiNiSN QrOUP ........coooiiiiiiii i 14

BLIC=T S0 LB == (=] T = SRR 14
LAV g el o £=T 0] 1 11 TP TTPTTPRTI 16

Environment and Sustainability SCrUtiny COMIMITIEE. ... .. .. i ittt e e e e e e s e s s s 18
(O%e]anTaaT (TSI V0T q Qo] £ e = a1 1 0= TSP 18

Webb, Danial Page 1 20/02/26

Version number 6



[40)

OFFICIAL

Bus and passenger services task and fINISN QIrOUP ........ouuiiiii i r e e e e e et et a e s e e e e e e e ettt e s e eaaeeeeatt e aaaaaeeanres 22
VN O K DI OG AIMIMIE ...t 23
Health, Care and Wellbeing SCrULINY COmMMIUTEEE ... ..o e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e ettt e e s e e aeeeeeaett s e s eeaaeeeesetanaaeaaees 26
COMIMITEEE WOIK PIOGIAIMITIE. ...ttt 8888888888888 26
Meeting the demand for adult social care task and fiNiSN GroUP .........oooiiiiiii i 29
VN OTK DI Og AIMIMIE ... 29
SCrutiny ManagemENT BOAIT ........cooo i 32
COMIMITEEE WOTK PIrOGIBIMIMIE. ...ttt 8888588888888 32
Inequality and social mobility task and fINISN GIrOUP ..........uui i e r e e e e e et ra e e e e e e e e e e et e e e s eeeaeeesstaaaaaaeeaaeeennnes 34
RVAY o] 1 (e =2 012 0= PRSP 34
Commercialisation task aNd fiNISN GrOUD...... oo e e e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e eaee e e e sttt seeeeeaeeesataa e eeeeeesareraannnns 37
TEIMS OF TEIEIEICE ...ttt 37



€01

OFFICIAL

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Committee work programme

Committee Briefing
3 March 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

School Capital Programme

e Overview of the programme

e Briefing

e Liz Farr, Director of Education
e Quentin Mee

Committee Meeting

10 March 2026 report deadline 2 March 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 4 March 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

ILAC inspection and action plan

e Review findings of the Ofsted inspection report and any
associated action plan.

e Scrutinise arrangements to drive improvement following
the inspection.

e Ofsted inspection report and action
plan

e Tina Russell, Director of Children’s
Services

e Tori Lynch, Service Director,
Corporate Parenting

e Rachel Gillot, Service Director, Early
Help, Children in Need, and
Safeguarding

Work programme

e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer




70T

Committee Briefing
24 March 2026

OFFICIAL

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Home to school transport

e Update on work to develop a new home to school
transport service.

e Briefing

Gemma Dando, Chief Operating
Officer

Liz Farr

Hilary Jones, Head of Additional
Needs

Dr David Land, Head of Transport and
Parking

Craig Lewis, Transportation Services
Manager

Committee Briefing
14 April 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Fostering

e Overview of fostering panel.
e Overview of key performance indicators
e Update on recommendations made July 2024.

e Member briefing
o Feedback from foster families

Natasha Newton, Service Manager
Fostering, Adoption and Home
Finding Teams

Tori Lynch, Service Director,
Corporate Parenting




G0T

Committee Meeting

OFFICIAL

12 May 2026 report deadline 1 May 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 7 May 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Neglect Strategy

e Understand the definition of intention and unintentional
neglect.
e Feedback on regional peer review

e Officer report

¢ Rachel Gillott

e Natalie Solomon, NHS Herefordshire
and Worcestershire Integrated Care
Board

e Leanne Lowe, West Mercia Police

West Mercia Police:
Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL) inspection
findings

e Committee briefing

e PEEL inspection report and findings

e Leanne Lowe

e Ruby Card, Service Manager MASH,
ECHO & SAFE

e Rachel Gillott

Work programme

e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Committee Meeting

22 July 2026 report deadline 14 July 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 17 July 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Families First Programme

e Peerreview findings

e Dawn Knight, Service Manager Early
Help

e Lindsay MacHardy, Public Health
Principal

e Core members of the steering group

Early Help Task and Finish Group

e Review group findings and recommendations

e Final group report

e Chair, Children and Young People
Scrutiny Committee

Work programme

e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer




90T

Committee Meeting

OFFICIAL

6 October 2026 report deadline 28 September 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 2 October 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Alternative provision

e Officer report

e LizFarr

e Louise Tanner, Head of Learning and
Achievement

e Hilary Jones, Head of Additional
Needs

All Age access to play and open space

e Agree terms of reference for a review of access to play and
other open space.

e Terms of reference

e Lindsay MacHardy
e Emily Garner

Work programme

e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Topics for possible future scrutiny

e Youth provision
e Participation strategy
e Housing




0T

OFFICIAL

Early help task and finish group

Terms of reference

Background
Herefordshire's Early Help offer includes both universal and targeted services aimed at supporting children, young people, and families before statutory
intervention is required. The offer includes:
e Universal services: Provided largely through Talk Community, voluntary and community organisations, schools, health, and public health-
funded initiatives.
e Targeted early help: Led by the Early Help team within Children’s Services, working directly with families who require structured support.

Key developments in this area in recent years include:
e Integration of Early Help into wider Children’s Services through locality models.
e Introduction of Families First and Lead Practitioner roles.
e Recruitment of two new children’s-focused community development workers within Talk Community.
e Partnership commissioning (such as with the PCC) to support local early intervention initiatives.

To build on these developments, work is underway to identify and address weaknesses in current practice, including:
e Persistent confusion around distinctions between universal and targeted Early Help.
e Limited public visibility of the Early Help offer and recent developments.
e Variability in provision and access across different localities.
e Pressure on schools to deliver Early Help without sufficient funding or infrastructure.
e Need forimproved coordination between statutory and non-statutory partners.

Purpose
The group therefore aims to provide a constructive and collaborative space to:
e Recognise strengths in current Early Help provision.
e |dentify good practice across different communities.
e Highlight gaps or inconsistencies in provision and the work in place to address them.



80T

OFFICIAL

Scope of Inquiry:
In recognition of the broad and varied nature of early help available in Herefordshire, the group intends to carry out two distinct but closely
interdependent streams of work:
e Targeted Early Help and Families First
e Understanding the Families First implementation.
e Exploring the role of lead practitioners.
e Clarifying the role of schools and multi-agency collaboration.
e Community and Universal Offer
e Mapping and showcasing local Early Help initiatives.
e Exploring partnerships with Talk Community hubs, voluntary groups, parish and town councils.
e Engagement around youth activities, access barriers (transport), and local innovation.

Work Programme
The group will determine its programme of work to meet the above objectives. This programme is likely to include:
e Local Appreciative Inquiry events in Hereford City and each of the five key market towns (Ross, Ledbury, Kington, Leominster, Bromyard),
Supported by Talk Community and Children's Services.
e Case studies
e Meeting with families and professionals, individually and in focus groups

Proposed Timeline
e Summer 2025: Agree task and finish group, establish membership, agree programme of work
e Autumn 2025 to Spring 2026: Community engagement events, interviews, focus groups.
e Spring/Summer 2026: Reflection and analysis.
e Summer 2026: Presentation of findings and recommendations to Children and Young People Scrutiny.



60T

Work programme

Targeted early help and Families First

OFFICIAL

e Recognise strengths in current Early Help provision.
e Identify good practice across different communities.
e Highlight gaps or inconsistencies in provision and the work in place to address them.

o Neil Crawford

Objective Evidence required Responsible officer | Date
Understand targeted early help - rationale e  Overview of programme briefing note Simon Cann November
and performance o Thresholds of need 2026
o Current performance management
o Current programme of activity
Overview of current Families First e  Meeting with service managers Simon Cann 15 Dec
programme and targeted early help o Victoria Leader 2026, 3pm
o Dawn Knight
Update on implementation of Families First | e  Meeting with service managers Simon Cann TBC
programme and targeted early help o Dawn Knight
Support for young carers, no wrong door e  Meeting with young carers Simon Cann 2 Mar 2026,
o Jane Marshall — South — Ross and VL, John Burgess, 3pm
Susan Brace, Niall Crawford
Appraise locality-based targeted early help e  Meeting with a locality team Simon Cann 16 Jan 2025,
o Victoria Roe — North 3pm
o Jane Marshall — South — Ross
o Chantelle Bennett — Central
o Tracey Spencer — Central
Working with schools e Meeting with schools Simon Cann 21 Jan 2026,

3pm




0T1

OFFICIAL

Commissioned targeted early help services e  Meeting with Venture — commissioned service Simon Cann 27 Feb 2026,
o Hilary Thomas hilary.thomas@vennture.org 1pm
Community and Universal Offer
e Mapping and showcasing local Early Help initiatives.
e Exploring partnerships with Talk Community hubs, voluntary groups, parish and town councils.
e Engagement around youth activities, access barriers (transport), and local innovation.
Topic Evidence required Responsible officer | Date
Overview of local early help initiatives Early help marketplace — Ross-on-Wye Danial Webb 13 Oct 2025
Overview of local early help initiatives Early help marketplace - Hereford Danial Webb 17 Nov 2025
Overview of local early help initiatives Early help marketplace - Leominster Danial Webb 3 Dec 2025
Evaluate the role of school community e  Meeting with service manager, Quentin Mee Simon Cann 23 Mar 2026
support e  Meeting with school counsellor/school support service
Understand how midwives support young e  Meeting with midwives Simon Cann 20 Mar 2026
parents to be. e  Emily Strange (named safeguarding midwife)
e  Sian Jenkins (community Midwife manager)

The role of school nurses e  Meeting with school nurses Simon Cann Mar 2026

o emma.dewar@wvt.nhs.uk

o Wendy.Long@wvt.nhs.uk

o Nikki.Lawley@wvt.nhs.uk
The role of health visitors e  Meeting with health visitors Simon Cann 17 Mar 2026

o Lyndsay McHardy, Julia Stephens -0-19 Strat.

o Hannah Bannister-White

e  “Best Startin Life” strategy

Youth clubs overview e  Overview of youth and sports clubs in Herefordshire Simon Cann 9 April 2026

10



mailto:emma.dewar@wvt.nhs.uk
mailto:Wendy.Long@wvt.nhs.uk

111

OFFICIAL

e  Visit to youth club
e  Meeting with youth club attendees
e  hvoss Will Lindesay

Talk Community and co-ordination of e  Overview community support carried out by Talk Simon Cann 21 April 2026
support for universal community services Community.
e  Nikki Stroud, Emily Lowe, Michelle Trussler, Abigail Allcock
Report to Cabinet
Topic Evidence required Responsible officer | Date
Draft final report Learning from above meetings May 26
Agree final report Draft report Task and Finish June 26
Group
Present to Cabinet Final report Toni Fagan July 26

11




AN

OFFICIAL

Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee

Committee work programme

Committee Meeting

15 April 2026 report deadline 7 April 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 9 April 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Broadband Connectivity

e Review of coverage gaps and speeds, and work to
address them

e Consultation with businesses, schools,
parish councils

e Public call for evidence

e Supplier business plans

e Ofcom policy

e Other evidence to be determined

e To be determined

Work programme

e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Committee Meeting

7 July 2026 report deadline 29 June 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 2 July 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Year of delivery — capital projects

e Mid-year review of capital projects taking place in 2026

e Council capital programme

e Individual programme progress
reports

e To be determined

12




el

OFFICIAL

Public participation in planning task and finish group

e Agree the task and finish final report

Task and finish group report

e None

Work programme

e Review work programme

Draft work programme

e Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Committee Meeting

January 2027 report deadline TBC pre meeting lines of enquiry planning TBC

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Year of delivery — capital projects

e End of year review of capital projects taking place in
2026.

Council capital programme

Individual programme progress
reports

e To be determined

*The Corporate Director, Economy and Environment, Cabinet Member, Economy and Growth, Cabinet Member, Community Services and Assets,
Cabinet Member, Roads and Regulatory Services, and Cabinet Member, Transport and Infrastructure, all have a standing invitation to the meeting.

Additional Topics Proposed for Future Consideration

e Hereford City Masterplan
e UK Shared Prosperity Fund

13




viT

OFFICIAL

Placemaking and Public Participation task and finish group

Terms of reference

Background

Herefordshire is entering a significant period of growth and change. Delivering new housing, infrastructure, and services must strengthen local
communities and reflect the county’s distinctive rural character.

Research shows that while public involvement in planning is vital, engagement often remains procedural rather than meaningful. Many residents feel
disconnected from decision-making, uncertain about how to participate, or unconvinced that their input makes a difference.

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires every local planning authority such as Herefordshire to publish a Statement of Community
Involvement. The Levelling-up and Regeneration Act 2023 and resultant secondary legislation is likely to place greater emphasis on this statement with
a proposed requirement for a local planning authority Community Involvement Scheme. This provides a timely opportunity to modernise
Herefordshire’s existing Statement of Community Involvement (January 2022), ensuring it reflects Herefordshire Council’s 2024—2028 priorities for
economic growth and community development.

This task and finish group will explore how Herefordshire can plan with its communities, ensuring that growth, infrastructure and environment evolve
together in a fair, transparent, and creative way. It will then make recommendations to underpin the Council’s new statutory engagement framework.

The aim is to move beyond statutory minimum consultation and create a culture in which residents look forward to new development as something
they have helped to shape. Growth with, not to, communities.

Purpose

To identify and recommend practical, evidence-based measures for making community engagement in planning and placemaking more inclusive,
accessible, and effective across Herefordshire. The group will:

e Examine best practice and innovative approaches to public participation.

e Advise on the update and replacement of the Statement of Community Involvement (2022) with a new Community Involvement Scheme
(2026).

e Ensure that community voice and cultural engagement sit at the heart of the county’s future planning system.

14



G11

OFFICIAL

Objectives

e To understand current legislation and good practice in community involvement and evaluate how residents currently engage with planning in
Herefordshire and identify barriers to participation.

e Review and learn from good practice in community engagement in other local authorities and with housing providers.
e Inform and help draft the replacement of the Statement of Community Involvement (2022) with a new Community Involvement Scheme (2026)
e Make recommendations to the Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet to deliver the above.

Scope

The task and finish group will focus on how communities are involved in shaping growth, not on what is built or where sites are allocated. It will not
duplicate the work of the Housing Development Working Group or the technical drafting of the Local Plan.

Membership and Governance

e 5-7 elected members of Herefordshire Council (no Cabinet members).

e Up to two co-opted members with relevant expertise or community experience.

e Supported by officers from Democratic Services, Economy and Environment, and Communications.

e Reports through the Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee, which will submit recommendations to Cabinet for formal response.

Expected Outputs

e Afinal report setting out
o practical recommendations for improving public participation in planning and placemaking.

o A proposed structure and content outline for Herefordshire’s new Community Involvement Scheme (2026), replacing the 2022
Statement.

o Case studies and prototypes demonstrating innovative engagement methods suitable for rural and market-town contexts.

Success Measures

e At least five examples of national or local best practice reviewed.

e Two or more new engagement methods agreed or trialled.

e C(Clear, costed recommendations adopted within the 2026 Community Involvement Scheme.
e Cabinet adoption of group recommendations into council policy.

15



911

WORK PROGRAMME

OFFICIAL

Objective To understand current legislation and good practice in community involvement and evaluate how residents currently engage with planning in
Herefordshire and identify barriers to participation.

Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date

Understand current legislation and e Qverview of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act November

good practice in community 2004 2025

involvement e Overview of The Levelling-up and Regeneration Act 2023

e Good practice guidance

Evaluate how residents currently e Herefordshire Council Statement of Community November

engage with planning in Involvement. 2025

Herefordshire. e Interviews with housing associations and council planning

officers.

Identify current barriers to e Interviews with housing association, community groups November

participation. and council planning officers. 2025

GROUP MEETING Henry Merricks November
Murgatroyd 2025

Objective Review and learn from good practice in community engagement in other local authorities and with housing providers.

Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date

Examine requirements for new e Draft regulation and statutory guidance December

Community Involvement Scheme 2025

Identify good practice in other local e Literature review January 2026

authorities e Site visit (if useful)

Identify creative engagement e Desktop search ideas such as including digital tools, easy- January 2026

methods.

read and visual materials, short videos, and cultural or
media partnerships.

16




LTT

OFFICIAL

GROUP MEETING

February
2025

Objective Inform and help draft the replacement of the Statement of Community Involvement (2022) with a new Community Involvement Scheme.

Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date

Work with officers to set new e Draft Community Involvement Scheme TBA March 2026

parameters and scope for the

Community Involvement Scheme

Ensure inclusivity by improving reach e Draft Community Involvement Scheme TBA April 2026

to rural residents, younger people,

working families, and under-

represented communities.

Recommend resourcing and e Meeting with planning officers in a ‘good’ local planning May 2026

governance arrangements to support authority

sustained, meaningful participation. e Draft recommendations

GROUP MEETING May 2026
Objective Make recommendations to the Connected Communities Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet

Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date

Draft report to committee e Draft report June 2026

Draft report and recommendationsto | e Final report July 2026

Cabinet (if required)

17




811

OFFICIAL

Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee

Committee work programme

Committee Meeting
2 March 2026 report deadline 20 February 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 26 February 2026

Topic and Objectives Evidence required Attendees*
Waste Recovery Contracting e To be determined e John Hobbs, Corporate Director
e Update on establishment of new waste recovery contract. Economy and Environment
e Update on roll-out of garden waste collection. e Nicola Percival, Waste Services
Manager
Active Travel e Draft LCWWIP e Ffion Horton, Transport Planning
e Review the relevant recommendations from the previous Services Manager
Scrutiny on Active Travel against the latest draft of the e Gemma Dando
Local Cycling, Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan e David Land, Head of Transport and
(LCWWIP). Access Services

e Examine the structure of LCWWIP for clarity and
understanding by members and residents.

e Review the proposals for the prioritisation of Active Travel
projects under the LCWWIP.

e Contribute to mechanisms to attract funding for and
deliverability of the LCWWIP.

Work programme e Draft work programme e Statutory Scrutiny Officer

e Review work programme

18



61T

Committee Meeting

OFFICIAL

17 June 2026 report deadline 9 June 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 11 June 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Land Use Management

e To review the operation of current council policy on
enabling and enforcing appropriate land management and
use (including riparian responsibilities) across the county;

o to protect carriageways, ditches and verges.

o Tolook at related enforcement issues — including
planning breaches.

o The impact on public rights of way.

e To explore how the local authority can support adoption
of sustainable farming methods.

Enforcement analysis

Current council planning regulation
concerning land use management
MP office briefing on the withdrawal
of the Sustainable Farming Incentive
Catchment Sensitive farming data
(including regenerative farming)

Richard Vaughan, Sustainability and
Climate Change Manager

Kelly Gibbons, Development
Management Service Manager
Environment Agency representative
NFU

Mark Tansley, Development Manager
- Enforcement

Work programme

e Review work programme

Draft work programme

Statutory Scrutiny Officer

*The Corporate Director, Economy and Environment and Cabinet Member, Environment, both have a standing invitation to the meeting.

Committee Meeting

21 September 2026 report deadline 11 September 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 17 September 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Transformation of the economy and environment directorate

e Understand the transformed leadership structure and how
it is performing currently, in particular where
responsibility for delivering on the Council’s
environmental priorities and targets, including net zero.

e Has embedding a commercial mindset impacted on the
delivery of these environmental priorities and targets.

e Has transformation impacted on the overall resource
dedicated to the environmental side of the directorate.

e Explore the case for a more distinct operational area for
environmental matters under the Corporate Director.

Officer report

John Hobbs, Corporate Director
Environment and Economy

19




0cT

OFFICIAL

Buses and passenger services task and finish group

e To receive the final report from the group and consider
their recommendations, including testing the evidence on
which they are based.

e To agree a set of recommendations to go forward from
the committee to the executive.

e Final report

e Chair, buses task and finish group

Flooding task and finish group — terms of reference

e To agree the terms of reference for a proposed task and
finish group to scrutinise flood risk management and flood
emergency responses.

e Task and finish terms of reference

Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Committee Meeting

2 December 2026 report deadline 24 November 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 27 November 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Rail Strategy

e Objectives to be agreed.

e Evidence to be agreed

e John Hobbs

e Ffion Horton
e Roger Allonby
e David Land

20




1T

OFFICIAL

Bus and passenger services task and finish group

Work programme

Objective Activity or information needed Carried out by Timeline
Initial review meeting Task and Finish Group | July 2025
Create a central information Setup Teams library and chat space Simon Cann, Danial September 2025

repository

Webb

Review Herefordshire Council’s
current powers and
responsibilities.

Compile and provide overview of

e Existing legislation in England and Wales
o Local Transport Act 2008

Transport Act 2000

Bus Service Act 2017

Bus Services (No. 2) Bill

Public Service Vehicle Regulations.

e Overview of who is responsible for local transport in England (Commons
library)

e Any allied statutory guidance

e Bus operator legislation and guidance.

e How these apply in Herefordshire.

O
O
O
O

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos, task and
finish group

Sep-Oct 2025

Review current passenger
transport operations in
Herefordshire and how they
meet current and future need.

e Previous council bus service reviews (c. 2019)
e For both commercial and community operators
o Routes and frequency
o Passenger numbers
o Subsidy
e Home to school transport
o Current services provided
o Current providers
e SEND transport
e Adult Social Care Passenger transport

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Sep-Oct 2025

21



https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-10321/CBP-10321.pdf

[44?

OFFICIAL

Current local authority and
regional funding

2025-2026 and medium-term funding

e subsidised routes
e community transport
e other transport funding provided by the local authority

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Sep-Oct 2025

Review Meeting

Task and Finish Group

October 2025

Overview of current BSIP
funding

Summary of

e National Bus Strategy
e Herefordshire Bus Service Improvement Plan 2024
Briefing on

o Allocation of the £3.2m BSIP grant (2025—26) (£1.3m capital, £1.9m
revenue) e.g., shelters, passenger experience, supported services

e Progress in delivering funded projects and services

e Their contribution to improved services

Site visit to any BSIP-related capital project

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Nov-Dec 2025

Assess Enhanced Partnership
performance

e Understand how the current enhanced partnership timetabling meets the
objectives of the partnership.

e |dentify ways to apply learning from the group to new ways of meeting
the objectives of the enhanced partnership.

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos, task and
finish group

Nov-Dec 2025

Combining bus services with
other transport services

Desktop research

e Current rail services and how they align with bus services
Group meeting

o Network Rail or other responsible authority

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Nov-Dec 2025

Explore cross-border and cross-
county transport

Map and list of current cross-border services to include

e Frequency

e Operator

e Funding (if applicable)

Examples from other local authorities

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Nov-Dec 2025

22



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a6becf96a5ec000d731aa9/bus-service-improvement-plans-guidance-to-local-authorities-and-bus-operators-2024.pdf
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/23031/herefordshire-bus-service-improvement-plan-2024
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/27397/bus-service-improvement-plan-bsip-delivery-plan-2025-26
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/27397/bus-service-improvement-plan-bsip-delivery-plan-2025-26
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/23621/herefordshire-enhanced-partnership-plan-and-scheme-for-buses

XA

OFFICIAL

e See previous work looking at other local authorities
o |dentify opportunities for any cross-border service support

Review Meeting

Task and Finish Group

December 2025

Community Transport

Site visit to a community transport provider
Overview brief of Services in Herefordshire, to include:

e Current services, routes and frequencies
e Cost
e Funding

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Jan-Feb 2026

Home to school and other
resident transport

Overview brief of home to school services in Herefordshire, to include:

e Current services, routes and frequencies
e Cost and funding
Meeting with Home to school co-ordinator

Meeting with Transformation team

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Jan-Feb 2026

Review Meeting

Task and Finish Group

February 2026

Examine how other rural local
authorities provide sustainable
services.

Internet research — what do they do in other rural local authorities?
Suggested workstreams:

e Demand Responsive transport
o YorBus, CallConnect
o Worcestershire on Demand | Worcestershire County Council
o The Robin (your bookable bus) | Gloucestershire County Council

e Use of powers of funding
o Use of enhanced partnerships — Oxfordshire, Cornwall
o Branding
e Integrating transport and social care
o Community transport
o The role of third sector organisations

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Mar-Apr 2026

23



https://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/council-services/travel-and-highways/bus-travel-worcestershire/worcestershire-demand
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/the-robin/

1£4"

OFFICIAL

Site Visit

o Shropshire DRT — Shrewsbury
e Social care focused visit

Bus franchising

Overview of Bus Services Bill
Overview of approach taken by other local authorities
Meeting with consultants or another local authority

e What are the barriers to franchising in rural areas?
e |s this an opportunity for Herefordshire to pursue?
e Are there partnership opportunities with other local authorities?

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

Mar-Apr 2026

Review Meeting

Task and Finish Group

May 2026

Draft report and
recommendations

¢ Draft final report
¢ Draft recommendations

Simon Cann, David
Land, Craig Lewis,
Natalie Amos

May-June 2026

Present report to Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee

Task and Finish Group

June 2026

24




T4}

OFFICIAL

Health Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

Committee work programme

Committee Meeting

27 April 2026 report deadline 17 April 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 23 April 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Shaping neighbourhood health
e Analyse how the health partnership identifies health
needs in communities.
e Scrutinise provision of current and future neighbourhood
health services.

Neighbourhood health bid
Taurus Out of Hours GP service
Worcestershire Council papers

Attendees to be agreed

CQC Inspection of adult social care services
e Examine findings of the recent CQC inspection of adult
social care services.
e Scrutinise any action plan arising from the inspection
findings.

CQC inspection findings
Post-inspection action plan

Hilary Hall, Corporate Director,
Community Wellbeing

Adult Social Care budget outturn

e Scrutinise financial outturn against budget
e Scrutinise performance against perfmornace
management framework

Quarterly budget outturn and
performance monitoring

Hilary Hall, Corporate Director,
Community Wellbeing

Work programme
e Review work programme

Draft work programme

Statutory Scrutiny Officer

*The Corporate Director, Community Wellbeing and Cabinet Member Adults, Health and Wellbeing, both have a standing invitation to the meeting.

25




9T

Committee Briefing
April 2026 (TBC)

OFFICIAL

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Herefordshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report

e Review the work of the Herefordshire Safeguarding
Adults Partnership.

e Safeguarding Adults Board Annual
Report

Kevin Crompton, Independent Chair of
the Safeguarding Adults Board

Committee Meeting

27 July 2026 report deadline 17 July 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 23 July 2026

Topic and Objectives

Evidence required

Attendees*

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

e Review work to develop a new joint strategic needs
assessment for Herefordshire.

e Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Zoe Clifford, Director of Public Health

Adult Social Care budget outturn

e Scrutinise financial outturn against budget
e Scrutinise performance against perfmornace
management framework

e Quarterly budget outturn and
performance monitoring

Hilary Hall, Corporate Director,
Community Wellbeing

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

e Objectives to be agreed

e Draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Zoe Clifford

26




2T

OFFICIAL

Committee Meeting
14 September 2026 report deadline 4 September 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 10 September 2026

Topic and Objectives Evidence required Attendees*

Right Care Right Place e Evidence to be agreed e Attendees to be agreed
e Update on work to deliver acute community mental health
support in Herefordshire.

Adult Social Care budget outturn e Quarterly budget outturn and Hilary Hall, Corporate Director,
e Scrutinise financial outturn against budget performance monitoring Community Wellbeing
e Scrutinise performance against perfmornace
management framework

Q2 Better Care Fund outcomes e Evidence to be agreed e Attendees to be agreed
e Objectives to be agreed
Meeting the demand for adult social care task and finish group | ¢ Final task and finish group report e Chair, task and finish group

e Agree draft report and recommendations

27



8¢T

OFFICIAL

Meeting the demand for adult social care task and finish group

Work programme

Objective To understand the extent of demand for adult social care services provided or commissioned in Herefordshire, and the likely change over

time.
Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date
Understand Herefordshire’s Demographic information Charlotte Dec 25-Jan
demographics and future ) ) ) Worthy/Herefordshire 26
demograohic change e Understanding Herefordshire demographic data Research team
grap g . .
e Future population of Herefordshire report
e Joint Strategic Needs Assessment report
Understand the demand for adult e Market Position Statement Zakia Loughead Dec 25-Jan
social care in Herefordshire e  Market Sustainability Plan 26
e Current rates of demand for adult social care
o Type of demand (domiciliary, residential, nursing)
o Duration
o Change over time
Compare demographic change and e Desktop research comparison with ‘statistical neighbours’ | Danial Webb/Henry Dec 25-Jan
demand for adult social care Merricks-Murgatroyd 26
compared to other local authorities
GROUP MEETING Henry Merricks- February
Murgatroyd 2026

Objective To explore the drivers of increased demand for adult social care, and the capacity of the local authority and other care providers to meet it.

Objectives

Evidence required

People to speak with

Date

28




OFFICIAL

Increased complexity of demand Site visit — supported housing provider Feb-Mar 26
from an ageing population o . o . )
Site visit — third sector organisation working with older adults
The nature of funding for social care | Briefing on social care funding Zakia Loughead Feb-Mar 26
ASC finance team
The size and structure of the social Overview of social care market Zakia Loughead Feb-Mar 26
care market in Herefordshire . ) .
Meeting with care providers
Lack of housing growth, and flatlining | e Interview with Cabinet portfolio holders Feb-Mar 26
tax base
GROUP MEETING Henry Merricks- April 2026
Murgatroyd

62T

reduce demand for social care services, or to increase revenue to pay for services.

Objective To identify strategies and work carried out by Herefordshire Council and partners such as housing associations and other organisations

Visit to supported housing

Objectives Evidence required People to speak with Date
Assistive technology Visit to Technology Enabled Care Services (TECS) Team TBC May-Jun 26
Community based universal and Meeting with Talk Community Emily Lowe — Talk May-Jun 26
targeted services Meeting with third sector organisation Community
Meeting with other community team in another local authority
Market shaping and support Meeting — service director Commissioning May-Jun 26
Meeting — care providers’ network
Supported living Meeting — director for housing support Hayley Crane May-Jun 26

29




0€T

OFFICIAL

A supported housing
provider

In-house services and the role of Case study — Essex May-Jun 26
Hoople . .
Meeting with Hoople
GROUP MEETING Henry Merricks- July 2026
Murgatroyd
Objective To make recommendations to the executive on steps that should be taken to reduce service demand and to increase revenue.
Objectives Evidence required People to speak with Date
Write draft report and Draft report and recommendations Task and finish group August 2026
recommendations
Agree draft report and Draft report and recommendations Task and finish group October 2026

recommendations with committee

30




TET

OFFICIAL

Scrutiny Management Board

Committee work programme

Committee Meeting

13 April 2026 report deadline 1 April 2026 member briefing 25 March 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 9 April 2026

Topic and objective

Evidence required

Attendees

Dedicated Schools Grant High Needs Block Management Plan

e Review the draft management plan

e Management Plan

Rachael Sanders, Director of Finance

Q3 Budget scrutiny

Q3 Performance monitoring

e Budget report

e Supplementary information as
requested by the committee

Cabinet members
Rachael Sanders

Jessica Karia, Head of Corporate
Performance and Intelligence

Work programme
e Review work programme

e Draft work programme

Statutory Scrutiny Officer

31




[44?

Committee Meeting

OFFICIAL

3 July 2026 report deadline 25 June 2026 member briefing 22 June 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 30 June 2026

Topic and objective

Evidence required

Attendees

Inequality and Social Mobility Task and Finish Group

e To receive the report of the task and finish group.
e To agree any recommendations the committee as a result.

e Task and Finish Group Report

Task and Finish Group members

Q4 Budget scrutiny

Q4 Performance monitoring

e Budget report

e Supplementary information as
requested by the committee

Cabinet members
Rachael Sanders

Jessica Karia, Head of Corporate
Performance and Intelligence

Committee Meeting

1 December 2026 report deadline 23 November 2026 member briefing 24 November 2026 pre meeting lines of enquiry planning 27 November 2026

Topic and objective

Evidence required

Attendees

Q2 Budget scrutiny

Q2 Performance monitoring

e Budget report

e Supplementary information as
requested by the committee

Cabinet members
Rachael Sanders

Jessica Karia, Head of Corporate
Performance and Intelligence

32




€eT

OFFICIAL

Long list of potential topics
e Social Value in procurement
e  Working with the voluntary sector and others to help deliver services
e Review of the workforce strategy
e Supplier risk management
e Emergency Planning

e Annual review of effectiveness

33



VET

OFFICIAL

Inequality and social mobility task and finish group

Work programme

Objective To define and understand the different dimensions of inequality (including but not limited to protected characteristics, rurality, socio-
economic background and care experience) and social mobility in Herefordshire and the United Kingdom, including Herefordshire Council’s
understanding of inequality and social mobility.

Objectives Evidence required Responsible officer Date
To define and understand the e Briefing on different types of inequality, to include: Danial Webb Sep-Oct 25
different dimensions of inequality. o Wealth/income

o Health

o Rurality

e Briefing on groups affected by inequality
o Protected characteristics
o Military families
e  Overview of inequality as defined by other local authority
scrutiny
To understand those dimensions that | e  Sub-ward indices of deprivation Danial Webb and Sep-Oct 25
are particularly relevant to e Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Charlotte Worthy
Herefordshire. e  Economic data
To test Herefordshire Council’s e  Herefordshire Council Plan Danial Webb and Sep-Oct 25
understanding of inequality, how it e  Meeting with leader and deputy Charlotte Worthy
prioritises different elements of e (should this be merged with the above?)
inequality, and its priorities to tackle
and reduce inequality.
GROUP MEETING Danial Webb November
2025

34




GET

OFFICIAL

Objective To measure inequality and social mobility across the county and the different dimensions that impact on inequality and social mobility within
the county and between Herefordshire and other parts of the UK.

Objectives Evidence required People to speak with Date
Collect and analyse relevant datasets | e  Sub-ward indices of deprivation Nov-Dec 25
pertaining to Herefordshire e Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

e  Economic data TBC
Comparisons with statistical Nov-Dec 25
neighbours
Housing inequality Meeting with housing providers Nov-Dec 25
Rurality °
GROUP MEETING Danial Webb January 2026

Objective To gather examples of local authorities and wider local partnerships meaningfully reducing inequality and/or meaningfully improving social
mobility from across the UK and other countries.

Objectives

Evidence required

People to speak with

Date

Examples from other scrutiny
reviews

Other scrutiny reviews

e Scope
e Learning

Examples of other inequality and
social mobility strategies

Other scrutiny reviews

e Scope
e learning

Examples of evaluations of strategies
and action plans

Gather learning from those examples

35




9€T

OFFICIAL

GROUP MEETING

Danial Webb

March 2026

Objective To identify the plans, strategies and actions deployed by the council to reduce inequality and improve social mobility, and the degree to
which they are likely to or are actually reducing inequality and improving social mobility, and the degree to which they are not.

Objectives

Evidence required

People to speak with

Date

GROUP MEETING

Simon Cann

April 2026

Objective To make recommendations to the executive on steps that should be taken to meaningfully reduce inequality and improve social mobility

across the county.

Objectives Evidence required People to speak with Date
Write draft report and Draft report and recommendations Task and finish group May 2026
recommendations

Agree draft report and Draft report and recommendations Task and finish group July 2026

recommendations with committee

36




LET

OFFICIAL

Commercialisation working group

Terms of reference

Background

Herefordshire Council faces a potential funding gap of £27.3 million for the 2026-27 financial year, and further funding gaps in future years.
The executive has already identified commercialisation as key to its transformation programme. The executive has also indicated that
commercialisation and income generation will form part of the strategy to address the funding gap.

Commercialisation within local government represents both a financial opportunity and a cultural challenge. Commercialisation could
deliver significant cost savings and income-generating opportunities but only as a result of cultural change. For example guidance from the
Association For Public Service Excellence emphasises that commercialisation cannot simply be a reaction to budget deficits — it requires an
embedded strategy, a commercial mindset within the local authority, clear governance, and a well-developed understanding of risk.

To assist the Cabinet in developing a budget to propose to council Scrutiny Management Board will undertake a working group of members
investigating how the council could increase income in the short and medium term alongside greater commercialisation.

Initial recommendations will be provided informally to the Cabinet by the end of November,
Short- and Long-Term Opportunities
Short term: The working group will examine the opportunities of:

e reviewing and adjusting fees and charges,

¢ maximising income from council assets (such as property leases and car parks), or exploring asset repurposing or disposals.

e benchmarking against neighbouring authorities could identify under-priced services as well as gaining an understanding of work that
has already been undertaken in this area and

e other opportunities for income generation

The working group will seek to understand the impact and the risks associated with any short term operations

Longer term: The working group will identify opportunities to increase income and to drive efficiency in future years across the life of the
medium-term financial strategy including, but not limited to those opportunities presented by commercialisation.

37


https://www.apse.org.uk/apse/index.cfm/research/current-research-programme/risk-and-commercialisation-a-guide-for-local-scrutiny-councillors/

8€ET

OFFICIAL

Given the timescale the working group’s recommendations, especially for future years may be quite high level. The working group will
deliver the best-founded recommendations it can within the fixed (and tight) timescale.

Overall approach
We propose a three-stage approach

e Herefordshire council is already working on commercialisation and income generation. The working group will consider current
plans and arrangements, challenge these and work with officers to identify areas that they may not have considered.

e The working group will also have regard to the impact of their proposals on local people and the risks that may be associated with
them.

o If there is time the working group will also investigate the strategic issues relating to commercialization and make recommendations
for the cabinet to consider.

The Working Group will also have regard to guidance and experience across the sector in regards to areas such as (not an
exhaustive list):

o The purposes of commercial activity, namely the balance between maximising income (for example, through fees, charges, or
property ventures), supporting broader social value and strengthening community resilience.

o How the council might operate in markets without distorting competition and maintaining fairness to local businesses-governance
and risk management

¢ The cultural dimension, which cannot be overstated. Officers and members must share a mindset that sees prudent risk-taking as
legitimate. Without organisational readiness — training, leadership commitment, and internal capability — commercial ambitions will
fail.

The scrutiny process must therefore explore how Herefordshire can build this culture safely, balancing entrepreneurial ambition with its
statutory duty to protect public assets. It must also concern itself both with the immediate opportunities to increase income and the longer-
term changes required to inculcate greater commercialisation.

38



6€ET

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN CounCiI

This document, known as the Forward Plan, sets out the decisions which are expected to be taken during the period covered by the Plan by either
Cabinet as a whole, or by individual Cabinet Members. The Plan is updated regularly and is available on the Herefordshire Council website
(www.herefordshire.gov.uk) and from Council Offices. This edition supersedes all previous editions.

C'D Herefordshire

The council must give at least 28 days’ notice of key decisions to be taken. A key decision is one which results in the council incurring expenditure or
making savings of £500,000 or more, and/or is likely to be significant in terms of the strategic nature of the decision or its impact, for better or worse, on
the amenity of the community or quality of service provided by the council to a significant number of people living or working in the locality affected.

Current cabinet members are listed below. For more information and links papers for Cabinet meetings please visit
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=251

Councillor Jonathan Lester Corporate Strategy and Budget (Leader of the Council)
Councillor Elissa Swinglehurst Environment (Deputy Leader of the Council)

Councillor Carole Gandy Adults, Health and Wellbeing

Councillor lvan Powell Children and Young People

Councillor Harry Bramer Community Services and Assets

Councillor Graham Biggs Economy and Growth

Councillor Pete Stoddart Finance and Corporate Services

Councillor Barry Durkin Roads and Regulatory Services

Councillor Philip Price Transport and Infrastructure

Councillor Dan Hurcomb Local Engagement & Community Resilience

Documents submitted in relation to each decision will be a formal report, which may include one or more appendices. Reports will usually be made
available on the council website at least 5 clear working days before the date of the decision. Occasionally it will be necessary to exempt part or all of a
decision report from publication due to the nature of the decision, for example if it relates to the commercial or business affairs of the council. Other
documents may be submitted in advance of the decision being taken and will also be published on the website unless exempt.

To request a copy of a decision report or related documents please contact governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk or telephone 01432 261699.

Page 1


http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/
https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=251
mailto:governancesupportteam@herefordshire.gov.uk

ori

Report title and purpose

Decision
Maker and
Due date

Lead officer and lead
cabinet member

Directorate

Notice of
decision first
published / ID

Issue Type
and
exemptions

FORWARD PLAN FOR 13 February 2026 ONWARDS

Page 2




i

The following information is provided for each entry in the Forward Plan:

Heading Contains

Report title and purpose A summary of the proposal

Decision Maker and Due date Who will take the decision and the date the decision is expected to be made

Lead cabinet member and officer The cabinet member with responsibility for this decision and the officers producing the decision report.
contact(s)

Directorate The directorate of the council responsible for the decision.

Date uploaded onto plan The date the decision was first uploaded and the notice period started for key decisions.

Decision type, exemptions and Whether the decision is a Key or Non-Key decision, if the report is expected to be fully open, partly exempt or
urgency fully exempt and if urgency procedures are being followed.

Decisions to be taken by Cabinet at a formal meeting are listed first, ordered by date, and include both Key and Non-Key decisions. Decisions to be
taken by individual Cabinet Members are then listed, grouped by portfolio area and sorted by date. These include Key and Non-Key decisions.

Page 3



[A4"

Report title and purpose

Decision
Maker and
Due date

Lead cabinet member and
officer contact(s)

Directorate

Date uploaded
onto plan

Decision
Type,
exemptions
and urgency

Cabinet decisions by date (Key and Non-key listed)

Crisis and Resilience Fund 2026-29 Cabinet Cabinet member finance Community 13 February 2026 | Non Key
To seek cabinet approval for Herefordshire Council | 26 March 2026 | @nd corporate services Wellbeing Open
to take receipt of the Crisis and Resilience Fund
(CRF) grant as a programme funded by the I
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) between (N:g(ri;' rf&ﬁ?ydcﬁﬁgﬁ en and
2026-2029. The CRF replaces the Household Eamili
. : amilies Lead
Support Fund (HSF) and the Discretionary e Sroud@herefordshre gov k
Housing Payments (DHP) and will enable ' o
Herefordshire to work collaboratively with partners
and communities at county and local levels to build
long-term resilience, cohesion, and reduce the
need for crisis support.
Local Cycling, Walking and Wheeling Cabinet Cabinet member transport Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
Infrastructure Plan (formerly known as Local 26 March 2026 | and infrastructure Environment Open

Walking Cycling Plan adoption)
To seek Cabinet approval for the adoption of the
Local Walking and Cycling Plan

Ffion Horton, Transport
Planning Services Manager

ffion.horton@herefordshire.gov.uk

Page 4




evl

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Q3 Performance Report Cabinet Cabinet member corporate | Corporate 13 February 2026 | Non Key
To report to Cabinet the quarterly outturn of key 26 March 2026 | Strategy and budget Support Centre Open
KPls and progress against the Delivery Plan
2025/26. Jessica Karia, Head of
Corporate Performance and
Intelligence
jessica.karia@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260976
Update on the Phase 2 Phosphate Mitigation Cabinet Cabinet member Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
Schemes 26 March 2026 | €nvironment Environment Open

To provide Cabinet with an update regarding the
Phosphate Mitigation Wetland schemes

Roger Allonby, Service
Director Economy and
Growth, Gemma Dando,
Chief Operating Officer,
Scott Tompkins, Delivery
Director - Infrastructure,
Susan White, Programme
Manager
Roger.Allonby@herefordshire.gov.uk,
gemma.dando@herefordshire.gov.uk,

scott.tompkins@herefordshire.gov.uk,
Susan.White2@herefordshire.gov.uk

Tel: 01432 260330, , , Tel: 01432 260070

Cabinet Member Decisions (Key and Non Key decisions)

Page 5




144"

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Portfolio: adults, health and wellbeing
Extension of the council's Care Homes Cabinet Cabinet member adults, Community 13 February 2026 | KEY
(Unified) Contract member health and wellbeing Wellbeing Open
To approve the extension of the 'Care Homes adults, health Urgent
Unified Contract (Residential and Nursing DPS and wellbeing g
. e Ros Murphy,
Accredited List)' to 23rd Feb 2029. Before 23 o
. . Commissioning Managetr,
The current Contract is due to expire on 4th February 2026 : .
Community Wellbeing
September 2026. _
ros.murphy@herefordshire.gov.uk
To extend the council’s current commissioned | Cabinet Cabinet member adults, Community 13 February 2026 | KEY
home care framework member health and wellbeing Wellbeing Open

To approve an extension to the council’s current
commissioned home care framework for up to six
months from 31 October 2026 to 30 April 2027.

adults, health
and wellbeing

Before 2
March 2026

Sharon Amery, Senior
Commissioning Officer

sharon.amery2@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 383734

Page 6




14

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Herefordshire Homeless Prevention and Rough | Cabinet Cabinet member adults, Community 13 February 2026 | KEY
Sleeping Strategy 2026 - 2031 member health and wellbeing Wellbeing Open
This is a five year statutory strategy to replace the | adults, health
- and wellbein
2020 2925 strategy. It sets out our approach _to the g Robert Barnett, Housing
prevention of homelessness and rough sleeping in | 26 March 2026 .
Strategy Officer
the county. _
robert.barnett@herefordshire.gov.uk
Herefordshire Adult Social Care Prevention Cabinet Cabinet member adults, Community 13 February 2026 | KEY
Strategy member health and wellbeing Wellbeing Open

The purpose of the report is to approve the 2026-
2036 Herefordshire Adult Social Care Prevention
Strategy

adults, health
and wellbeing

April 2026

David Collyer, Acting

Consultant in Public Health:

General Practitioner

david.collyer2@herefordshire.gov.uk

Portfolio: children and young people

Page 7




vl

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Holiday activities and food programme (HAF) Cabinet Cabinet member children Community 13 February 2026 | Non Key
2026 - 29 member and young people Wellbeing Open
To seek approval for Herefordshire Council to children and
ing- oung people
accept the_ ring-fenced grant from the Dgpartment young peop Nikki Stroud, Talk
for Education (DfE) and to use this funding to co- 23 February . ;
) : ) Community Children and
ordinate the delivery of free holiday clubs for 2026 .
; . : : Families Lead
children and young people in receipt of benefits- i stoud@nercfordehie ou
related free school meals, as well as those who ' o
meet the eligibility criteria for a discretionary place.
Local Authority school building maintenance Cabinet Cabinet member children Children and 13 February 2026 | KEY
works 2026 - 2028 (amended from 2030) member and young people Young People Open
children and

To approve the proposed expenditure of capital
grants for the school buildings maintenance works.

young people

25 February
2026

William Merriman,
Sufficiency, Planning and
Capital Investment
Manager

William.Merriman2@herefordshire.gov.uk

Portfolio: community services and assets

Page 8




A"

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Letting on Unit 6 Maylord Orchards Cabinet Cabinet member Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
To seek approval to sign an agreement for lease member community services and Environment Part exempt
and lease for Unit 6 Maylord Orchards to a national | community assets U t
retailer. services and rgen
assets
Ben Oakes
23 February ben.oakes@herefordshire.gov.uk
2026
Portfolio: economy and growth
Portfolio: environment
Allocating the Climate and Nature Reserve Cabinet Cabinet member Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
Phase 2 member environment Environment Open

To Allocate the balance of the Climate and Nature
Reserve for the delivery of projects which will
positively impact the climate and natural
environment of Herefordshire to the benefit of all
who reside in the county.

environment

27 February
2026

Richard Vaughan,
Sustainability and Climate
Change Manager

Richard.Vaughan@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260192

Page 9




214"

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Solar Car Ports at Plough Lane Cabinet Cabinet member Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
To approve the scoping and construction of solar | member environment Environment Open
car ports at Plough Lane environment
20 March 2026 | katie Ainsworth, Senior
Project Manager, Richard
Vaughan, Sustainability and
Climate Change Manager,
Rosanna Willmott,
Sustainability and Climate
Change Officer
katie.ainsworth2@herefordshire.gov.uk,
Richard.Vaughan@herefordshire.gov.uk,
rosanna.willmott@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260192, Tel: 01432 261749
Adoption of Herefordshire Local Nature Cabinet Cabinet member Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
Recovery Strategy member environment Environment Open

To formally adopt the Herefordshire Local Nature
Recovery Strategy and accept associated
government grant for delivery.

environment
10 June 2026

Mandy Neill, Senior
Landscape Officer, Richard
Vaughan, Sustainability and
Climate Change Manager

mandy.neill@herefordshire.gov.uk,
Richard.Vaughan@herefordshire.gov.uk

Tel: 01432 260192

Portfolio: finance and corporate services

Page 10




671

Report title and purpose

Decision
Maker and
Due date

Lead cabinet member and
officer contact(s)

Directorate

Date uploaded
onto plan

Decision
Type,
exemptions
and urgency

Portfolio: local engagement and community resilience

The New Public Realm Service — Depot Cabinet Cabinet member local Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
Facilities member local | engagement and Environment Open
This report seeks approval to procure and engagement | community resilience
undertake any necessary works to depot and other | and
iliti i [ ' communit
: Highways and Traffic
5 Ma‘rCh 2026 Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260786

Portfolio: roads and regulatory services
Highway Maintenance Plan Cabinet Cabinet member roads and | Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
To update the Highway Maintenance Plan, which member roads | regulatory services Environment Open

sets out the reasonable system of inspection and
repair that will

be deployed by the Council to ensure that it meets
its duty to maintain all publicly maintainable
highways.

and regulatory
services

27 February
2026

Ed Bradford, Head of
Highways and Traffic

Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260786

Page 11




0ST

Report title and purpose Decision Lead cabinet member and | Directorate Date uploaded Decision
Maker and officer contact(s) onto plan Type,
Due date exemptions
and urgency
Public Realm Services Annual Plan —2026/27 Cabinet Cabinet member local Economy and 13 February 2026 | KEY
To confirm the annual plan of public realm works member roads | engagement and Environment Open
that will be delivered in line with capital and and regulatory | community resilience,
revenue budgets and in accordance with the services Cabinet member roads and
Council’s Highway Asset Management Plan and 28 February regulatory services
Highway Maintenance Plan. 2026
Ed Bradford, Head of
Highways and Traffic
Edward.Bradford@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01432 260786
Portfolio: transport and infrastructure
Capability and Ambition Fund 2025/26 Cabinet Cabinet member transport Economy and 13 February 2026 | Non Key
allocation member and infrastructure Environment Open
The purpose of the report is to confirm what transport and
Herefordshire Council will deliver with the infrastructure

Capability and Ambition Fund grant

2 March 2026

Ffion Horton, Transport
Planning Services
Manager, Scott Tompkins,
Delivery Director -
Infrastructure, Richard
Vaughan, Sustainability and
Climate Change Manager
ffion.horton@herefordshire.gov.uk,

scott.tompkins@herefordshire.gov.uk,
Richard.Vaughan@herefordshire.gov.uk

Tel: 01432 260192

Page 12




16T

Report title and purpose

Decision
Maker and
Due date

Lead cabinet member and
officer contact(s)

Directorate

Date uploaded
onto plan

Decision
Type,
exemptions
and urgency

Page 13







€aT

C‘D Herefordshire

Council

OFFICIAL

Appendix 3 Recommendations made by Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny Committee, January — December 2025

Monday 20 January 2025

River Lugg Water Quality

Rec. | Recommendation Date | Due | Recd | Response

No. Sent | Date | Date

1 Engage directly with Natural England and the Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Partially agreed. The Council will take advice from its legal
Environment Agency to achieve the lifting of the 28- 27- Jul- | team in regard to any identified risk in respect of removing
housing development moratorium as soon as Jan- | Mar- | 25 the Nutrient Neutrality requirement within the Lugg
possible. 25 25 catchment. If positively advised by Legal the Council will

seek a view from Natural England.

2 Ask for early consultation with Herefordshire Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Agreed. This is already underway. The Council has a
Council and the Nutrient Management Board on the | 28- 27- Jul- meeting diarised with the Environment Agency the author of
specific Diffuse Water Pollution Plan, for the Lugg Jan- | Mar- | 25 the Diffuse Water Pollution Plan, to be attended by Welsh
and its tributaries, the Arrow and the Frome. 25 25 government and Defra to request the DWPP is shared with

consultants responsible for drafting the catchment wide
Nutrient Management Plan.

3 Engage with Government to ensure adequate Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Partially agreed. It is outside of the scope of the work of the
funding for the actions in the Diffuse Water 28- 27- Jul- Council to secure funding for the delivery of the actions
Pollution Plan. Jan- | Mar- | 25 included within the DWPP as this lies with the Environment

25 25 Agency and Defra, however the Council can advocate via
the Nutrient Management Board, Phosphate Commission
and Wye Catchment Partnership to ensure funding is in
place for the implementation of the plan

4 Arrange another Rivers Conference focusing on the | Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Agreed. The Council will host a third annual rivers
Lugg, Arrow and Frome. 28- 27- Jul- conference in Autumn 2025, the focus of which is to be

Jan- | Mar- | 25 confirmed, but will encompass high levels of phosphate

25 25 within the Arrow, Lugg and Frome.

5 Prioritise processing of strategic planning Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Partially agreed. Currently the allocations policy for credits
applications to progress private mitigation and to 28- 27- Jul- is in date order, this decision was taken by Cabinet in May
reiterate the request to Ministry of Housing, Jan- | Mar- | 25 2022
Communities and Local Government to participate | 25 25 https://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.as

px?ID=8816
Webb, Danial Page 1 20/02/26

Version number 4




VST

OFFICIAL

in the pilot scheme for the development of the
nature restoration fund.

A policy change would require further consideration with an
accompanying rationale. Confirmation would be required
from planning and legal that this could be delivered via the
planning mechanism and a decision taken by Cabinet.

A request has been made to MHCLG to participate in the
pilot scheme for the development of the Nature Restoration
Fund and can be reiterated at the next Nutrient
Management Board meeting where the Deputy Director is
due to attend.

6 Invest, with partners, in a specific innovation Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Agreed. Already underway the Council holds a funding pot
process to consider approaches that have been 28- 27- Jul- | for river restoration which can be allocated to schemes that
successful in different locations or sectors and Jan- | Mar- | 25 demonstrate innovative technology in removing legacy
identify new approaches worth testing in the 25 25 Phosphorous from soils.
nutrient management context.

7 With partners, identify key outcomes that will Tue | Thu | Fri4- | Agreed. Already underway through the development of the
indicate the success of actions to move towards 28- 27- Jul- Nutrient Management Plan which sets out actions and
river restoration and agree how these will be Jan- | Mar- | 25 outcome-based reporting to record measurable reductions
collected and reported. 25 25 in phosphate levels.

Monday 24 March 2025

Energy Efficiency and Retrofitting

Rec. | Recommendation Date | Due | Recd | Response

No. Sent | Date | Date

1 Develops a plan to deliver progress on energy Mon | Sat Wed | Accept
efficiency and retrofitting across Herefordshire, 24- 24- 28- The Sustainability and Climate Change Team will draft a
including targets, in line with their ambitions on net | Mar- | May- | May- | retrofit strategy for Herefordshire outlining how the council
zero, to include the co-benefits that flow from this, 25 25 25 will directly and indirectly support, facilitate and encourage
including public health, wellbeing, and the cost of retrofit in the county. The ESSC will be consulted on a draft
living of the document once produced.

2 Appoints a skills champion on the cabinet to drive Mon | Sat Wed | Developing skills across the county is a key priority for the
forward upskilling across key business sectors, 24- 24- 28- council. Part of Councillor Graham Biggs role as Cabinet
including energy efficiency and retrofitting, to Mar- | May- | May- | Member Economy and Growth is acting as the councils
support their growth ambitions for Herefordshire 25 25 25 skills champion.

There is a skills board in place chaired by David Williams
principal of Herefordshire, Ludlow and North Shropshire
College. Councillor Biggs sits on this board alongside




GGT

OFFICIAL

council officers. All of the main colleges and training
providers in the county are also members of this board.
There is a collective effort between the skills board and
business board to host an event bringing a number of
Herefordshire businesses together to discuss and make
provision for workforce planning, skills gaps and future skills
needs.

In addition £400,000 of UKSPF funding has been allocated
to support employment and skills.

Retrofit is a key part of the above as a key sector in the
environmental economy.

Promotes the Publicly Available Specification 2035 | Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

(PAS 2035) standard for council-funded retrofit 24- 24- 28- The next retrofit programme the council is gearing up to

delivery and investigates equivalent standards for Mar- | May- | May- | deliver is called Warm Homes: Local Grant which

private schemes to consider 25 25 25 incorporates the use of PAS2035. This gives homeowners
confidence the work is delivered to nationally recognised
specifications and standards to ensure a high quality of
work on their home.
Through the creation of the Herefordshire Retrofit Strategy
we will investigate what equivalent and alternative
standards private homeowners could utilise instead of PAS
2035 and present the benefits and/or disbenefits of these
alternative options.

Arranges a summit of interest groups of landlords Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

and tenants, To explore how to implement the 24- 24- 28- The Housing Team are considering the implications for

Renters Right (Reform) Bill, when in force, with a Mar- | May- | May- | housing services. The changes should give renters

focus on energy efficiency and retrofitting and a 25 25 25 properties that meet standards giving better quality of

goal of improving living conditions for renters

housing, security and better rights. For Landlords it will
highlight obligations they need to sustain in a longer
tenancy agreement. However, it may decrease the number
of properties that are available to rent due to the more
onerous obligations and thus financial burden placed on
landlords to meet standards. Landlords also may decide to
sell to their properties due to this factor — which could
reduce the supply of private rental stock, making it more
difficult to secure a rental.

The Housing Team will create a webpage with information




94T

OFFICIAL

for landlords and tenants — this can be a repository of
information for both stakeholders.

The Housing Team in conjunction with Environmental
Health will look to hold a landlord forum with the National
Residential Landlords Association (NRLA) to facilitate
landlord training and accreditation. The Forum will take
place once the Bill has been enacted.

Develops an able-to-pay market strategy which will: | Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

- identify the key barriers to able-to-pay investment | 24- 24- 28- We are currently exploring options available to the public to

- work with partners to overcome these barriers and | Mar- | May- | May- | access private finance in support of domestic energy retrofit.

- use the evidence of the growing market to 25 25 25 Through the development of a retrofit strategy for the county

encourage supplier investment in the retrofit market we will explore the key barriers to ‘able-to-pay’ investment.
Through the delivery of the strategy we will work with
partners to overcome barriers that have been identified and
look to stimulate private investment in the retrofit market as
appropriate.

Investigates models of partnership with funders to Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

offer private low interest finance to support the able | 24- 24- 28- Research has identified that a significant barrier to

to pay sector to retrofit within an able-to-pay Mar- | May- | May- | increasing finance for retrofit is the difficulty for lenders to

strategy 25 25 25 prove that implemented measures will result in better
energy efficiency. Currently there are a number of finance
mechanisms and low cost loans but negative perceptions of
borrowing, complex applications and uncertainty over
eligibility are all hampering take-up. We will carry out further
research into finance models that are available to residents
to enable domestic retrofit.

Looks at ways to encourage small improvements Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

and easy wins that would bring a disproportionate 24- 24- 28- We will explore this idea through our partner Keep

improvement to a property’s energy efficiency. Mar- | May- | May- | Herefordshire Warm as well as via the Greener Footprints

25 25 25 initiative in a similar may to the promotion of domestic

energy retrofit last year Make your home more energy
efficient - Herefordshire Zero Carbon and Nature Rich

Ensures that council funding towards intervention Mon | Sat Wed | Accept

on retrofit skills continues to be used for projects 24- 24- 28- For any future council funded projects that support retrofit

that are appropriate for and reaching all retrofit- Mar- | May- | May- | skills we will ensure that the projects are appropriate for and

related companies in Herefordshire and focusing 25 25 25 targeted at all retrofit-related companies in Herefordshire




LST

OFFICIAL

on existing people working in the industry as well
as current students.

where possible within the terms and conditions of the
funding source.

9 Considers promoting a summary of all the sources | Mon | Sat Wed | Accept
of advice, help, and finance more widely. 24- 24- 28- The Herefordshire Council website acts as a single
Mar- | May- | May- | repository for all of the useful links residents need in respect
25 25 25 of home energy. Home energy — Herefordshire Council
This includes links to the Keep Herefordshire Warm advice
service which acts as a one stop shop for residents who
want to pick up the phone for advice or send an email
asking for help. Keep Herefordshire Warm promotes its
services via a marketing strategy that has resulted in all
Herefordshire Households receiving a flyer in March 2025.
Days such as Fuel Poverty Awareness day help to further
promote the service.
10 Analyses what it would take to bring all private Mon | Sat Wed | Accept
rented accommodation up to the EPC C standard 24- 24- 28- The private rented sector (PRS) accounts for 9,294
and identify what the council would do to help as Mar- | May- | May- | properties (approximately 11.1% of total). Currently 2,043
soon as the EPC C announcement is made. 25 25 25 households have an EPC C or higher. The majority are in
Band D (3,570) and Band E (2,192), Band F (711) and Band
G (178). The government is reviewing the Private Rented
Sector EPC band C by 2030. To bring these Herefordshire
properties up to Band C the investment required is
estimated at £367 million. This estimate has been
calculated using the Parity Pathways tool.
11 Writes and further petitions the Government to Mon | Sat Wed | Decline
demand that the EPC C standard is introduced for | 24- 24- 28- The government has recently consulted on the Energy
the private rented sector. Mar- | May- | May- | Performance Certificate (EPC) reform and the Minimum
25 25 25 Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES). The government is
consulting on proposals to further raise the Minimum Energy
Efficiency Standard for rented buildings to an EPC band
rating of 'C' by 2027 and to a Band rating of B by 2030.
Waste contract
Rec. | Recommendation Date | Due | Recd | Response
No. Sent | Date | Date
1 Commission a piece of work, exploring further Mon | Sat Wed | No response received.
options for improving current reuse and recycling 24- 24- 28-

rates across the county, in advance of any




84T

OFFICIAL

expansion of the waste collection streams to food Mar- | May- | May-
and garden. 25 25 25

Monday 12 May 2025

Road Safety

Rec. | Recommendation Date | Due | Recd | Response

No. Sent | Date | Date

1 Herefordshire Council develops a road safety Tue | Sun | Mon | The current road safety strategy contained within the
strategy that supports the priorities under People, 13- 13- 14- existing Local Transport Plan (LTP) produced in 2018 is
Place and Growth in the Council Plan and May- | Jul- | Jul- currently being rewritten in preparation for the new LTP
complements the policy produced by the West 25 25 25 expected in (20?7?). It is vitally important this strategy

Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner.

encompasses those elements that address a Highway
Authorities statutory duty, under various existing highway
legislation such as the The Highways Act 1980, and Road
Traffic Act 1988 amongst others.

At present all elements contained within the existing
strategy encompass all actions an authority can reasonably
be expected to take, with regard road traffic collision data
management, investigation / casualty reduction engineering,
delivery of road safety educational initiatives, speed
management & general traffic management across the
highway network. It is also important these strategies reflect
the levels of service achievable within current resources
allocated to this field in order to ensure a both realistic and
sustainable approach for the future.

At present there is a high level of collaboration between
Herefordshire Council & West Mercia Police across the
principle areas mentioned above, which will underpin the
new strategy moving forward.

This will be reviewed during the various draft stages prior to
being formally adopted.

The currently consulted on LTP has a requirement to
support improved Road Safety with the following policy




6GT

OFFICIAL

LTP Policy TN7: Road Safety

To reduce the number of people being injured on our
transport network we will:

 Monitor collision data to identify priority locations for
improving road safety.

» Take targeted action to further reduce fatalities and injuries
on our network.

» Support safer speeds to improve perceived and actual
road safety.

* Deliver education programmes and infrastructure to
improve safety for vulnerable road users,

Investment will be prioritised in those areas with the highest
numbers of vulnerable road users and/or collision history.

Once adopted officers will be required to work on imbedding
the policy

The executive should seek opportunities to improve
the road network environs in the five market towns
to make them safer and to feel safer for all road
users.

Tue
13-
May-
25

Sun
13-

Jul-
25

Mon
14-
Jul-
25

The upcoming revision of the current LTP will also contain a
section relating directly to the Market Towns. Previous
assessments of all market towns undertaken by BBLP as
part of the Levelling Up Fund already exist however current
progress is unclear and will require a review against existing
priorities following completion of the new LTP.

The interpretation of feeling safe is subjective therefore it
would be impossible to property monitor and target this
recommendation. It should also be a drive for the Council to
ensure all roads are safe as this is a legal obligation for all
roads. - rephrase — road safety important, feelings of safety
delivered across a whole range i.e. maintenance, LTP
policy,

As per the response to Recommendation 1 the LTP has a
road safety policy requirement

Herefordshire Council to work with West Mercia
Police to unlock behavioural, perception of safety,
and geographic data about near miss and
dangerous driving reporting, to better inform

Tue
13-
May-
25

Sun
13-

Jul-
25

Mon
14-
Jul-
25

This is difficult to address as while we will investigate and
where appropriate act on concerns raised, we have no
formal way of collating reports that we receive and any
response or action we take into a single source of




09T

OFFICIAL

decision-making about engineering, education and
speed limit zone solutions.

information. Concerns and reports can come to us through a
number of different channels such as phone calls to our
Operational Call Centre, Operation Snap submissions, the
contact us page on our website, Neighbourhood Matters, e-
mails to our generic Road Safety Team inbox, direct contact
with Safer Neighbourhood Teams and direct contact with
Traffic Management Advisors. As there is no single point of
contact it would be a significant undertaking to co-ordinate
these and to report formally.

Operation Snap is probably the easiest to quantify, but
again, the resource needed to do this could have an impact
on the overall number of submittals we then act on.

The validity of using these reports as a basis for action
could be questioned as they can sometimes give a
disproportionate picture of what is happening on the
network. We have had instances, particularly with Operation
Snap, where a co-ordinated plan of action by an individual
and/or a small number of residents in a particular area
shows a high number of reported incidents and suggests a
major problem with one type of incident at a particular
location.

While useful, reporting of this nature does not necessarily
give an accurate reflection of concerns held by the wider
public or the number of incidents happening across the
network as it relies on people actually reporting them rather
than “suffering in silence”. An individual’s perception of risk
and danger differs from one person to another, so it does
not give the degree of quantifiable, fact based evidence that
injury RTC reports do.

Information on collisions where there has been a personal
injury is collected by the Police, passed to Herefordshire
Council, and more detailed collision investigation done by
the Accident Investigation & Safety Manager. Where




191

OFFICIAL

appropriate any remedial works at collision cluster
sites/routes is then channelled into the future maintenance
programmes etc. Herefordshire Council, BBLP and West
Mercia Police’s Traffic Management Advisor have a long
standing, close working relationship on this and all highway
matters.

Collision data is also assessed by the Police and targeted
enforcement is conducted on areas where there is a
particular issue such as “high harm” motorcycle routes.
Link to LTP

For the council to undertake an evidence-based
increase of the road safety education budget, or to
transfer funding from schemes for children to older
adults.

Tue
13-
May-
25

Sun
13-
Jul-
25

Mon
14-
Jul-
25

It would not be appropriate to remove funding from children
road safety education to that for older adults as these are
vulnerable road users. The Council does offer older adult
driver training and additional funding would allow for the
scope of the offer to be increased.

There would be scope to work with the emergency services
to delivery joint educational training opportunities; for
example, both West Mercia Police and Shropshire Council
funded young adult road safety education videos one of
which focuses on Herefordshire; this model shows how we
can collaborative on initiatives.

Retain work with children, we do offer older training, when
budgets are set me will consider opportunities to increase
funding to increase the offer.

West Mercia Police to consider the balance of
factors that contribute to road danger when
undertaking road safety enforcement.

Tue
13-
May-
25

Sun
13-
Jul-
25

Mon
14-
Jul-
25

West Mercia Police are committed to enforcing all road
traffic legislation, and while speed enforcement may appear
to have the highest public profile, our the police Operational
Policing Units undertake all forms of enforcement year
round in conjunction with NPCC campaigns such as
summer & Christmas drink/drug drive, tyre safe, mobile
phone use and driving without seatbelts. In addition, our
speed enforcement officers are now able to provide
evidence of additional offences such as drivers using mobile
phones, not wearing seat belts,driving whilst not in proper
control etc so while speed enforcement is the priority for




29T

OFFICIAL

them the activity contributes to the wider enforcement
picture.

This recommendation cannot be accepted as Herefordshire
Council do not have the ability to direct police resources.

6 The Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) eligibility Tue | Sun | Mon | There is currently no one specific eligibility criteria for the
criteria should be made more transparent. 13- 13- 14- provision of Traffic Regulation Orders. These are assessed
May- | Jul- | Jul- on an individual case by case basis by trained Traffic
25 25 25 Engineers, and depend upon a multitude of factors that are
determined upon investigation. It is vitally important these
are evidence based / data led and follow both national and
local best practice guidance / regulations, in order to ensure
consistency of application.
The Traffic Management Team have reviewed TRO
information which is available online and have found it to be
no longer fit for purpose. What happens now? Some
changes have already been made to provide more
transparent information with some more slight amendments
and updates to be progressed imminently. The Team are to
also upload a copy of the prioritised waiting list so current
applications can be seen online. The stages of the
application process to also be amended to ensure clarity.
Monday 16 December 2025
Carbon Neutral Housing
Rec. | Recommendation Date | Due | Recd | Response
No. Sent | Date | Date
1 The Executive should commission a piece of work | Fri Thur | Tue | Partly Accept
in collaboration with housebuilders (including 19- 19- 17- A Local Plan viability study for Herefordshire is the most
housing associations) to quantify the impact of Dec- | Feb- | Feb- | appropriate and robust mechanism for assessing the impact
implementation of the Future Homes Standard on 25 26 26 of the Future Homes Standard (FHS) because it will

the achievability of the new housing target for the
County of 27,260. This should include the future
availability of new affordable and social housing.

independently and transparently test the cumulative effect of
mandatory national requirements alongside local planning
policies over the full plan period to 2045, rather than treating
the FHS in isolation.




€97

OFFICIAL

The Executive should continue discussions with Fri Thur | Tue | Accept

relevant industry partners to evaluate the skills 19- 19- 17- Building Regulations applicable to domestic properties are a

required to deliver the Future Home Standard in the | Dec- | Feb- | Feb- | Level 2 surveyor. All surveyors currently working for

County and how this will feed into a joined-up 25 25 26 Herefordshire Council are capable of domestic projects with

approach by the Council including colleges, the a floor level not exceeding 7.5m.

youth employment hub and those involved in

career advice.

The Executive should implement a review of the Fri Thur | Tue | Partly accept

Council’s policy and operational readiness and 19- 19- 17- Building Control have restructured to meet the current

preparedness of planning and building control to Dec- | Feb- | Feb- | demands, however, recruitment is troublesome at this time,

ensure they are fit for purpose for when the Future | 25 25 26 partly due to Herefordshire’s time-consuming procedures

Homes Standard finally comes into force, including and partly market conditions. The FHS appears to be a

training requirements. change to the Building Regulations 2010 and not a
structural change to the Building Act 1984. A change to the
Building Regulations is much easier to accommodate and
will inevitably be supported with LABC training. The new
structure, once fulfilled should be in a position to
accommodate the changes.
Planning: FHS considerations to be incorporated into Local
Plan preparation process.

The Executive undertake a review/audit of the Fri Thur | Tue | Agree

government support being put in place to assist the | 19- 19- 17- The Warm Homes Plan was released in January 2026. This

market to deliver the quantum of carbon neutral Dec- | Feb- | Feb- | aims to triple the number of homes with solar power by up

homes. 25 25 26 to 3 million homes, deliver 450,000 heat pump installations,
upgrade 5 million homes in total and double the amount of
heat demand met via heat networks by 2035.

In the development of the Local Plan ‘building Fri Thur | Tue | Reject

control standards’ are reviewed to ensure they are | 19- 19- 17- The Herefordshire Local Plan will include specific policies

aligned with the Future Homes Standard and Dec- | Feb- | Feb- | addressing climate change and carbon neutrality, with all

provide viable and affordable compliance with the 25 25 26 policies and proposals underpinned by a viability

development of ‘carbon neutral’ homes.

assessment to ensure deliverability. The Future Homes
Standard, which will apply to all new homes once it comes
into force, is expected to be implemented, following
legislation anticipated in 2026, with full compliance
subsequently required. Government is yet to produce a
formal timetable for the FHS. National guidance is clear that




79T

OFFICIAL

local plans should not duplicate statutory requirements,
including Building Regulations, or repeat matters already
covered by national policy. This is a long-standing principle
set out in the current National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) (and the consultation draft version) and in national
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). This ensures that local
plans are clear and that unnecessary duplication is avoided

The Local Plan — through building control policies
ensures that every new home built is fitted with
solar panelling and/or renewable heat sources to
reduce the pressure on the national grid.

Fri
19-
Dec-
25

Thur
19-
Feb-
25

Tue
17-
Feb-
26

Reject

The Future Homes Standard, which will apply to all new
homes once it comes into force, is expected to be
implemented, following legislation anticipated in 2026, with
full compliance subsequently required. Government is yet to
produce a formal timetable for the FHS. The Herefordshire
Local Plan will include specific policies addressing climate
change and carbon neutrality, with all policies and proposals
underpinned by a viability assessment to ensure
deliverability. However, national guidance is clear that local
plans should not duplicate statutory requirements, including
Building Regulations, or repeat matters already covered by
national policy. This is a long-standing principle set out in
the current National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
(and the consultation draft version) and in national Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG). This ensures that local plans are
clear and that unnecessary duplication is avoided.

Note: alongside the consultation draft NPPF, Government is
also consulting on its draft Design and Placemaking
Planning Practice Guidance (ending on 10 March 2026).
This includes a section on how the design of new buildings
can maximise adaptation, mitigation and resilience to
extreme weather and other effects of climate change.

The Executive encourages government and other
stakeholders to investigate and consider options
that allow a more balanced approach to the
financial products available for home buyers to
allow for downstream energy cost savings to
provide a more attractive purchase options carbon

Fri
19-
Dec-
25

Thur
19-
Feb-
25

Tue
17-
Feb-
26

Agree

The Warm Homes Plan was released in January 2026. This
aims to triple the number of homes with solar power by up
to 3 million homes, deliver 450,000 heat pump installations,
upgrade 5 million homes in total and double the amount of
heat OFFICIAL demand met via heat networks by 2035. It




qoT

OFFICIAL

neutral homes for those who have income but
lower equity.

states that innovative financial products will be made
available via various schemes to help improve the housing
stock that will include low and zero-interest loans for
households irrespective of income. No further detail has
been supplied.







	Agenda
	 
	The seven principles of public life (the 'Nolan principles')

	4 Minutes
	8 Local Cycling Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan
	Appendix 1 for Local Cycling,Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan Scrutiny Report
	Appendix 2 for Local Cycling,Walking and Wheeling Infrastructure Plan Scrutiny Report
	Appendix 3 - Recommendations road safety and LCWIP

	9 Work programme
	Appendix 1 for Work Programme 2025-26 to 2026-27
	Appendix 2 for Work Programme 2025-26 to 2026-27
	Appendix 3 for Work Programme 2025-26 to 2026-27


